
 
1 of  4 

 

 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MONDAY, MARCH 5, 2018 
7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 
 
 

A. Call to Order by the Mayor. 
 

B. Roll Call. 
 

C. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 19, 2018. 
 

D. Agenda Revisions. 
 

E. Special Order of Business: 
 
1. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 

2018 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 
 
a. Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published February 23, 

2018) 
 

b. Written objections filed with the City Clerk. 
 

c. Oral comments. 
 

2. Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for 
the 2018 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 
 

3. Public hearing on a proposal to undertake a public improvement project for the Campus Street 
Bridge Replacement University Branch of Dry Run Creek Project and to authorize acquisition of 
private property for said project. 
 
a. Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published February 23, 

2018) 
 

b. Written objections filed with the City Clerk. 
 

c. Oral comments. 
 

4. Resolution approving a public improvement for the Campus Street Bridge Replacement University 
Branch of Dry Run Creek Project and authorizing acquisition of private property for said project. 
 

5. Hearing on a complaint issued to B & B West, 3105 Hudson Road, for a first tobacco violation. 
 
a. Oral comments. 

 
6. Approve and authorize execution of an Order Assessing Penalty relative to a First Tobacco 

Violation regarding B & B West, 3105 Hudson Road. 
 



 
2 of  4 

 

7. Hearing on a complaint issued to Great Wall, 2125 West 22nd Street, for a first tobacco violation. 
 
a. Oral comments. 

 
8. Approve and authorize execution of an Order Assessing Penalty relative to a First Tobacco 

Violation regarding Great Wall, 2125 College Street. 
 

F. Old Business: 
 
1. Reconsider action taken relative to a Highway Corridor and Greenbelt (HCG) Overlay Zoning 

District site plan for construction of a convenience store/gas station and detached carwash on Lots 
33 & 34 of Pinnacle Prairie Business Center North. (4515 Coneflower Parkway) 
 

G. New Business: 
 
1. Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without 

separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be 
considered separately.) 
 
a. Receive and file the resignation of Eashaan Vajpeyi as a member of the Human Rights 

Commission. 
 

b. Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Evan Renfro to the 
Library Board of Trustees, term ending 06/30/2022. 
 

c. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of February 19, 2018 relative to the 
following items: 
(1) Library Board of Trustees interview (Evan Renfro).  
(2) On-street parking regulations for trailers. 
(3) Butchering/harvesting animals within city limits. 
(4) Recreation/Aquatics Programs. 
(5) Bills & Payroll. 
 

d. Approve and adopt action taken at the Committee of the Whole meeting of February 19, 
2018 relative to the following items: 
(1) On-street parking regulations for trailers. 
(2) Butchering/harvesting animals within city limits. 
 

e. Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of February 26, 2018. 
 

f. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of January 2018. 
 

g. Approve a request for street closures for the Downtown Show and Shine, May 6, 2018. 
 

h. Approve and authorize execution of an Order Accepting Settlement Agreement relative to a 
First Tobacco Violation regarding Metro Mart, 103 Franklin Street. 
 

i. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
(1) Pheasant Ridge Golf Course, 3205 West 12th Street, Class B beer & outdoor service - 
renewal. 
(2) Happy's Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue, Class E liquor - renewal. 
 

2. Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion 
without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific 
item be considered separately.) 
 



 
3 of  4 

 

a. Resolution deleting the pay for an employee in the position of PT-Community Service Officer 
I in the Police Operations Division. 
 

b. Resolution deleting the pay for an employee in the position of Public Safety Officer in the 
Police Operations Division. 
 

c. Resolution establishing the pay for a new employee hired in the position of PT-Community 
Service Officer I in the Police Operations Division. 
 

d. Resolution establishing the pay for a new employee hired in the position of PT-Assistant 
Equipment Mechanic in the Public Works & Parks Division. 
 

e. Resolution establishing the pay for a new employee hired in the position of Traffic 
Operations Supervisor in the Public Works & Parks Division. 
 

f. Resolution establishing the pay for an employee assigned to the position of Acting Battalion 
Chief-POC in the Fire Operations Division. 
 

g. Resolution establishing the pay for an employee reclassified to the position of Public Safety 
Officer in the Police Operations Division. 
 

h. Resolution adjusting the pay for two employees in the position of PT-Community Service 
Officer I in the Police Operations Division. 
 

i. Resolution approving and adopting the Classification and Compensation Study relative to job 
classifications and pay grade allocations for certain employees of the City of Cedar Falls. 
 

j. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Amendment to Agreement for Animal 
Control Services with the City of Waterloo, Iowa. 
 

k. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a grant agreement with the Black Hawk 
County Gaming Association relative to construction of pickle ball courts at Orchard Hill Park. 
 

l. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Aspro, Inc. for 
the 2017 Street Restoration Project. 
 

m. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Blacktop 
Service Company for the 2017 Seal Coat Project. 
 

n. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peterson Contractors, Inc. for 
the 2018 Street Construction Project. 
 

o. Resolution approving funding and authorizing execution of an Application for Assistance with 
the Black Hawk Soil and Water Conservation District relative to the University Avenue 
Bioretention Cells. 
 

p. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Form of Contract for Asbestos Removal 
with Advanced Environmental Testing and Abatement, Inc., in conjunction with a nuisance 
abatement relative to 216 Iowa Street. 
 

q. Resolution approving the Pinnacle Ridge Minor Plat. 
 

r. Resolution approving the preliminary plat of Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls. 
 

s. Resolution setting March 19, 2018 as the date of public hearing to consider entering into a 
proposed Agreement for Private Development and to consider conveyance of certain city-



 
4 of  4 

 

owned real estate to ACOH, L.L.C. 
 

t. Resolution setting March 19, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the proposed vacation of 
utility easements on Lots 2 & 4 in Auditor’s Mill Company Plat. 
 

u. Resolution setting March 19, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the proposed vacation 
and dedication of utility easements on Lots 32 and 33 of Pinnacle Prairie Business Center 
North. 
 

v. Resolution setting March 19, 2018 as the date of public hearing on a proposed vacation and 
conveyance of a portion of Dallas Drive right-of-way to John G. Investments, Inc. 
 

w. Resolution setting March 19, 2018 as the date of public hearing on proposed amendments to 
the FY18-19 Annual Consolidated Plan and FY15-19 Consolidated Plan for the Community 
Development Block Grant and Home Programs. 
 

x. Resolution setting March 19, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the proposed adoption by 
reference of the 2017 Edition of the National Electrical Code and certain amendments 
thereto. 
 

3. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 6, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances relative to butchering 
and disposal of dead animals, upon its first consideration. 
 

4. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 26, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to prohibiting parking on the Vine Street cul-de-sac, upon its first consideration. 
 

H. Allow Bills and Payroll. 
 

I. City Council Referrals. 
 

J. City Council Updates. 
 

K. Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to 
City business.) 
 

L. Adjournment. 
 

 
 



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, FEBRUARY 19, 2018 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, pursuant to 
law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member thereof, in the City 
Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Absent: None. 

 
51729 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Green that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of February 5, 2018 be approved as presented and ordered of record. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
  The Mayor recognized a Boy Scout in attendance at the meeting. 
 
51730 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 7, 

2018, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed FY19 Budget 
for the City of Cedar Falls. It was then moved by Blanford and seconded by Miller that 
the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
51731 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written objections filed to the proposed 

Budget. Upon being advised that there were no written objections on file, the Mayor 
then called for oral comments. Finance & Business Operations Director Rodenbeck 
commented briefly. There being no one else present wishing to speak either for or 
against the proposed Budget, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to 
the next order of business. 

 
51732 -  It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Wieland that Resolution #20,957, 

approving and adopting the FY19 Budget for the City of Cedar Falls, be adopted. 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion 
and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The 
Mayor then declared Resolution #20,957 duly passed and adopted. 

 
51733 -   It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Wieland that Resolution #20,958, approving 

a Highway Corridor and Greenbelt (HCG) Overlay Zoning District site plan for 
construction of a grocery store on Lots 32 & 33 of Pinnacle Prairie Business Center 
North (4500 South Main Street), be adopted. Following comments by Penny Popp, 
4805 South Main Street, John Dutcher, 1238 Clark Drive, and Curt Olson, 3707 South 
Main Street, questions by Councilmembers deBuhr, Darrah and Green, and 
responses by City Engineer Resler and City Planner III Sturch, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland. Nay: Green. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #20,958 duly passed and adopted. 

 
51734 -   It was moved by Miller and seconded by Blanford that a resolution approving a 

Highway Corridor and Greenbelt (HCG) Overlay Zoning District site plan for 
construction of a convenience store/gas station and detached carwash on Lots 33 & 
34 of Pinnacle Prairie Business Center North (4515 Coneflower Parkway), be 

-1-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

adopted. City Planner III Sturch provided a brief background on the proposed site plan 
and responded to questions by Councilmembers Kruse, Darrah and deBuhr. 

 
  The following individuals expressed concerns or spoke in opposition to the proposed 

site plan: 
       Rosemary Beach, 5018 Sage Road          
       Larry Wyckoff, 4241 Eastpark Road 
       Penny Popp, 4805 South Main Street 
       Jerry Dixon, 218 Spruce Hills Drive 
       Ron Flory, 301 Spruce Hills Drive 
       Kathy Barfels, 305 Spruce Hills Drive 
 
  The following individual spoke in support of the proposed site plan: 
       John Dutcher, 1238 Clark Drive 
 
    Following additional comments and questions by Councilmembers deBuhr, Darrah, 

Green, Wieland, Kruse, Miller and Blanford, and responses by City Planner III Sturch, 
City Engineer Resler and Kwik Star Representative Emily Kronebusch, the Mayor put 
the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, Blanford, Darrah. Nay: deBuhr, Kruse, Wieland, 
Green. Motion failed.  

 
51735 -   It was moved by Green and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #2917, amending 

Chapter 26, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
changing the speed limit on University Avenue from Hudson Road to the east city 
limits from 45 miles per hour to 35 miles per hour, be passed upon its third and final 
consideration. The Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, 
Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance 
#2917 duly passed and adopted. 
 

51736 -  It was moved by Miller and seconded by Green to remove from the table the motion by 
Miller and second by Wieland to consider a resolution approving a College Hill 
Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District site plan for a commercial/residential mixed use 
development at 2119 College Street. Motion to remove from the table carried 5-2, with 
Blanford and Darrah voting nay.  

 
City Planner II Graham and Community Development Director Sheetz provided a brief 
summary of the proposed site plan and responded to questions and comments by 
Councilmembers Miller and Blanford. 

 
  The following individuals spoke in support of the proposed site plan: 
  Dan Drendel (Slingshot Architect), 305 East Court Avenue, Des Moines, Iowa 
  Nick Taiber, 1709 Clay Street 
  Andy Fuchtman, 422 North Ellen Street 
  Dave Diebler, 1616 Campus Street 
    
  The following individuals spoke in opposition to the proposed site plan: 
        James Bunkofske, 1706 Cottage Lane  
  Attorney Eashaan Vajpeyi, 3831 Convair Lane 
  Dr. Brian Sires, 1939 College Street 

-2-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

  Karla Bigelow-Baker (Razor’s Edge), 1826 Quail Ridge Lane 
  Dennis Bigelow, 3909 Beaver Ridge Circle 
  Chris Warnimont, 415 ½ Washington Street 
 
 Following questions by Councilmembers Green and responses by Community 

Development Director Sheetz and City Planner II Graham, the Mayor put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Darrah, Wieland. Nay: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Green. Motion failed. 

 
51737 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Wieland that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of February 5, 2018 relative to 
the following items: 
   (1) Vine Street parking restrictions. 
   (2) FY19 Budget. 
   (3) Public Safety Services Update. 
   (4) Bills & Payroll. 
 
Approve and adopt action taken at the Committee of the Whole meeting of February 
5, 2018 relative to Vine Street parking restrictions. 
 
Receive and file the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 
2018 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 
 
Receive and file the bids received for the 2018 Street Construction Project. 
 
Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
   (1) Panchero's Mexican Grill, 6421 University Avenue, Class B beer - renewal. 
   (2) Asian Fusion Vietnamese and Thai Cuisine, 5725 University Avenue, Special 

Class C liquor - renewal. 
   (3) Chad's Pizza and Restaurant, 909 West 23rd Street, Class C liquor & outdoor 

service - renewal. 
   (4) Sakura Japanese Steakhouse & Sushi Bar, 5719 University Avenue, Class C 

liquor - renewal. 
 
 Motion carried unanimously. 
 
51738 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution #20,959, establishing the pay for a new employee hired in the position of 
Planner I in the Planning & Community Services Division. 
 
Resolution #20,960, establishing the pay for an employee reclassified to the position 
of PT-Maintenance Worker in the Public Works & Parks Division. 
 
Resolution #20,961, establishing the pay for an employee reclassified to the position 
of Police Captain-PSO in the Police Operations Division. 
 
Resolution #20,962, establishing the pay for three employees reclassified to the 

-3-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

position of Police Lieutenant-PSO in the Police Operations Division. 
 
Resolution #20,963, establishing the pay for eight employees reclassified to the 
position of Public Safety Officer in the Police Operations Division. 
 
Resolution #20,964, establishing the pay for an employee assigned to the position of 
Acting Police Lieutenant-PSO in the Police Operations Division. 
 
Resolution #20,965, adjusting the pay for four employees in the position of Public 
Safety Officer in the Police Operations Division. 
 
Resolution #20,966, declaring an official intent under Treasury Regulation 1.150-2 to 
issue debt to reimburse the City for certain original expenditures paid in connection 
with a specified project. 
 
Resolution #20,967, approving and authorizing execution of an Amendment, 
Assignment and Assumption Agreement between the University of Northern Iowa, 
University Book and Supply Company, Inc. and the City of Cedar Falls relative to a 
ground lease agreement. 
 
Resolution #20,968, approving and adopting the recommendation of the Parks & 
Recreation Commission relative to the FY19 Municipal Cemetery Fee Schedule. 
 
Resolution #20,969, approving and authorizing execution of a Lease relative to 
property vacated by the 2008 flood buyout programs. 
 
Resolution #20,970, approving the completion and accepting the work of WHKS & 
Co., and authorizing final payment relative to a Professional Service Agreement for 
the Sanitary Sewer Inflow/Infiltration Control Project, Phase I. 
 
Resolution #20,971, approving and accepting the low bid of Peterson Contractors, 
Inc., in the amount of $4,676,551.93, for the 2018 Street Construction Project. 
 
Resolution #20,972, approving and accepting a Temporary Easement, in conjunction 
with the 2017 Levee/Floodwall System Improvements Project. 
 

  Resolution #20,973, approving and authorizing submission of the Iowa Certified Local 
Government (CLG) 2017 Annual Report of the Historic Preservation Commission to 
the State Historical Society of Iowa. 
 
Resolution #20,974, approving a College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Zoning District 
site plan for facade improvements at 917 West 23rd Street. 
 
Resolution #20,975, approving and authorizing execution of Agreement to Amend 
Restrictions in Deed of Dedication of Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park, Phase I 
Addition. 
 

  Resolution #20,976, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service 
Agreement with the Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) 
relative to the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program. 
 

-4-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

  Resolution #20,977, setting March 5, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 
Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 
 

 Resolution #20,978, setting March 5, 2018 as the date of public hearing on a proposal 
to undertake a public improvement project for the Campus Street Bridge Replacement 
University Branch of Dry Run Creek Project and to authorize acquisition of private 
property for said project. 
 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion 
and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The 
Mayor then declared Resolutions #20,959 through #20,978 duly passed and adopted. 

 
51739 -     It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Kruse that the bills and payroll be allowed 

as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be authorized to issue City 
checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in payment of the same. Upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried.  

 
51740 - Northern Iowa Student Liaison Cade Olmstead announced an event hosted by UNI 

Humanities, Arts and Sciences on February 22, 2018, 12:30-4:00 P.M. 
 
 Director of Municipal Operations and Programs Mark Ripplinger announced a Black 

Hawk County Gaming Grant awarded to the City for the Pickle ball project.  
 
51741 - The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 9:15 P.M. 
 
51742 - Larry Wyckoff, 4241 Eastpark Road, requested that citizens work with schools to 

make them harder targets. 
  
 Councilmember Wieland invited citizens to contact him with concerns regarding 

trailers being parked in their neighborhood. 
 

Mayor Brown reconvened the Council Meeting at 10:04 P.M. and stated that Legal 
Matters had been discussed but that no further action was required at this time. 

 
51743 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Green that the meeting be adjourned at 

10:05 P.M. Motion carried unanimously. 
   
  _______________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 
 

-5-

Item C. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
501 E. 4th Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8633 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Water Reclamation Division 

  

  

 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 

 TO:  Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Mike Nyman, Manager  

           Water Reclamation/Sewer Division 

 DATE: February 14, 2018 

 SUBJECT: 2018 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project  

  Project No. WR – 000 - 3150 

 

The plans, specifications and form of contract for the 2018 Sanitary Sewer 

Rehabilitation (liner) Project have been prepared and are on file in the City Clerk’s 

office. I’ve identified approximately 8,500 feet of sanitary sewer lines for rehabilitation. 

I’m requesting that the City Council receive and file these plans, specifications and form 

of contract at the council meeting of February 19, 2018 and set the public hearing for 

this project for March 5, 2018. 

 

The FY17 CIP includes $250,000 for various sewer rehabilitation projects and is 

designated as such in budget line item 552-7755-436-9201. The estimated cost of this 

project is $240,000.     

 

Thank you very much. Please let me know if you have any questions.     

 
 
 
 
 
 

-7-

Item E.1. 



 



1 

 
 

PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS 
FOR 

2018 SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION 
PROJECT 

Project No. WR – 000 – 3150 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATION 

 

 
 

 
I hereby certify that this engineering document was prepared by me or 
under my direct personal supervision and that I am a duly licensed 
professional engineer under the laws of the State of Iowa. 
 

 
________________________________________  Date: 02/02/2018 
Jon L. Resler, P.E.      Iowa License No. 16911 
My license renewal date is December  31, 2019 
 
Pages or sheets covered by this seal: 1-25. 

 

 

 

-9-

Item E.1. 



2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 
    Page Number 
 
TITLE SHEET  1 
 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 - 3 
 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 4 
 
NOTICE TO BIDDERS 5 
 
DIVISION 1 – Instruction to Bidders 
 

01 Definition & Terms 6 
 02 Qualification of the Bidder 6  

03 Contents of the Proposal Forms 7 
04 Taxes  7 
05 Submission of the Proposal, Identity of Bidder & Bid Security 7 - 8 
Form of Proposal 9 - 10 
Bid Bond  11  
Bidder Status Form 12 
Authorization to Transact Business 13 

           Non-Collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder 14  
Form of Contract 15-16 

 
DIVISION 2 – Special Provisions 
 

01 Award of Contract 17 
02 Availability of Site 17 
03 Subletting or Assignment of Contract 17 
04 Contract Time 18 
05 Weekly record of Working Days 18 
06 Progress Payments 18 
07 Pollution Prevention Plan 18-19 
08 Method of Measurement 20 
09 Basis of Payment 20 

-10-

Item E.1. 



3 

DIVISION 3 – Standard Specifications 

 
The City of Cedar Falls has adopted the 2018 edition of the Iowa “Statewide 
Urban Design and Specifications” (SUDAS) as the City’s Standard Specification. 
 
This “Standard Specification” is amended by the City of Cedar Falls’ 2018 
Supplemental Specifications to the 2018 edition of the Iowa “Statewide Urban 
Design and Specifications” (SUDAS). 

 

Links to both documents can be found on the City’s website at: 
www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards   
 
DIVISION 4 – Supplemental Plans and Specifications 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS - BID ITEMS 21-23 
 

2018 SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PLAN 
 
List of Locations  24-25 

-11-

Item E.1. 



4 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, 
FORM OF CONTRACT, AND ESTIMATE OF COST FOR THE  

2018 SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT 
IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
 

TO ALL TAXPAYERS OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND OTHER 
PERSONS INTERESTED: 
 

Public notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, will conduct a Public Hearing on Plans, Specifications, Form of Contract, and 

Estimate of Cost for the construction of the 2018 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project 

in said City at 7:00 p.m. on the 5th day of March, 2018, said meeting to be held in the 

Council Chambers in the City Hall in said City. 

Said Plans, Specifications, and Form of Contract are now on file in the office of 

the City Clerk in the City Hall in Cedar Falls, Iowa, and may be inspected by any 

persons interested. 

Any person interested may appear at said meeting of the City Council for the 

purpose of making objections to said Plans, Specifications or Contract or the cost of 

making said improvement. 

This notice given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

                              

    City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
 
    By: _______________________________ 
       Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC 
            City Clerk

-12-

Item E.1. 



5 

     

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 
2018 SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT 

IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 

Time and Place for Filing Sealed Proposals: Sealed proposals will be received for 2018 Sanitary Sewer 
Rehabilitation Project at the City Clerk's office by the Water Reclamation Manager or an authorized 
representative of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, until 2:00 p.m. on the 13th day of March, 2018. 
 

Time and Place Sealed Proposals will be Opened and Considered: Sealed proposals will be opened and 
read at 2:00 p.m. on the 13th day of March, 2018 in the City Council Chambers at City Hall, 220 Clay 
Street Cedar Falls, Iowa, for consideration by the City of Cedar Falls City Council at its meeting at 7:00 
p.m. on the 19th day of March, 2018 or at such later time and place as may be fixed. The City of Cedar 
Falls reserves the right to reject any and all proposals including without limitation, nonconforming, 
nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional bids. 
  

Time for Commencement and Completion of Work: The work under the proposed contract shall 
commence within eight (8) calendar weeks after the date set forth in the written Notice to Proceed and 
shall be performed regularly and diligently throughout the duration of the project.  
 

Bid Security: Each Form of Proposal shall be accompanied in a separate envelope by a proposal 
guaranty as defined in Division 1 Section 05.  
 

Contract Documents: Plans, specifications, and Form of Proposal blanks may be obtained from the 
Water Reclamation Manager’s Office, 501 East 4th Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa. Contract documents are 
also available electronically by calling 319-268-5161 for ftp site location and access rights. 
 

Preference for Iowa Products and Labor: The Contractor shall give preference to Iowa domestic labor in 

the construction or building of such public improvement or works in accordance with Section 73 of the 
Code of Iowa. 
 

Sales Tax: Contractors and approved subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax Exemption 

Certification to purchase building materials, supplies or equipment to be used in the performance of this 
project. Products utilized in the construction of this project will be exempt from tax as provided by Iowa 
Code Sections 423.2 and 423.45. 
 

Project Description: This work shall consist furnishing and installing a cured in place liner within existing 
8 and 12 inch diameter sewer lines in selected areas of the city and in accordance with the contract 
documents. Total project involves approximately 8,487 feet and 149 service taps. A complete list of 
sewers to be rehabilitated and TV inspection reports for most lines are available.  Contractors may wish 
to perform their own evaluation prior to the bid. 
 

Published upon order of the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 

      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 

      BY: __________________________ 
            Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC, 

                  City Clerk  

 
 

-13-

Item E.1. 



6 

DIVISION I – Instruction to Bidders 

 
The work comprising the 2018 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project shall be constructed in 
accordance with the 2018 edition of the Iowa “SUDAS” and as further modified by the City of 
Cedar Falls’ 2018 Supplemental Specifications and the special provisions included in the contract 
documents. The terms used in the contract revision of the documents are defined in said 
Standard Specifications.  
 
Before submitting your bid, please review the requirements of “Division One, General Provisions 
and Covenants”, in particular the sections regarding proposal requirements, bonding, contract 
execution, and insurance requirements.  Please be certain that all documents have been 
completed properly; as failure to complete and sign all documents and to comply with the 
requirements listed below can cause your bid not to be read. 
 
01 Definition & Terms 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1010 – 1.03: 
 
Code of Iowa: The latest edition of the Code of Iowa 
 
Engineer: The City Engineer of Cedar Falls, Iowa or an authorized representative. 
 
Project Manager: The Water Reclamation Manager of Cedar Falls, Iowa or an authorized 
representative.  
 
Owner: The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa acting through its City Council. 
 
Project: 2018 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project; City Project No. WR – 000 – 3150 
 

02 Qualification of the Bidder 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.01: 
 
To demonstrate bidder’s qualifications to perform the work, within five days of the Owners 
request, bidder shall submit written evidence such as may be called for below: 
 
The address and description of the bidder’s place of business; the present firm name, and the 
name of the state where incorporated. 
 
The Owner hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that in any contract entered 
into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will be afforded full 
opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on 
the grounds of race, color or national origin in consideration for an award. 
 
 
 

-14-

Item E.1. 



7 

03 Contents of the Proposal Forms 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.02: 
 
Plans, specifications, and proposal forms may be obtained from the office of the Water 
Reclamation Manager’s Office, 501 East 4th Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa. Plans, specifications, and 
proposal forms have been approved by the City Council and are now on file for public 
examination in the office of the City Clerk. Contract documents are also available electronically 
by calling 319-268-5161 for ftp site location and access rights. 
 
04 Taxes 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.08: 
 
Contractors and approved subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax Exemption Certification 
to purchase building materials, supplies or equipment in the performance of this project. 
Products utilized in the construction of this project will be exempt from tax as provided by Code 
of Iowa Sections 423.2 and 423.45. 
 
05 Submission of the Proposal, Identity of Bidder & Bid Security 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.12: 
 
The bid security must be in the minimum amount of 10% of the total bid amount including all add 
alternates (do not deduct the amount of deduct alternates).  Bid security shall be in the form of a 
cashier’s check, a certified check, or a bank money order drawn on a FDIC insured bank in Iowa 
or drawn on a FDIC insured bank chartered under the laws of the United States; or a certified 
share draft drawn on a credit union in Iowa or chartered under the laws of the United States; or a 
bid bond executed by a corporation authorized to contract as a surety in Iowa or satisfactory to the 
Jurisdiction.  The bid bond must be submitted on the enclosed Bid Bond form, as no other bid 
bond forms are acceptable.  All signatures on the bid bond must be original signatures in ink; 
facsimile (fax) of any signature on the bid bond is not acceptable.  Bid security other than said bid 
bond shall be made payable to City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls”. 
 
 
“Miscellaneous Bank checks”, as well as “Money Orders” and “Traveler’s Checks” issued by 
persons, firms or corporations licensed under Code of Iowa Chapter 533B are not acceptable bid 
security. 
 
The bid shall be submitted on the Form of Proposal included herewith or on a computer printed 
proposal. All entries on this proposal shall be filled in ink, typed or computer printed. The bidder 
shall not alter the quantity, unit price, or the extension that has been provided for items that 
have been predetermined by the contracting authority. 
 
If the proposal is computer generated, the bidder shall submit a form titled as “Form of 
Proposal,” followed by: the project name, project number, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa and the 
bidder's name. The form shall then include the item numbers, item descriptions, and units and 

-15-

Item E.1. 



8 

their quantities. The bidder shall specify a unit price in figures of dollars and cents for all pay 
items, the extensions for the respective unit prices and quantities in figures in a column provided 
for the purpose, and the total amount of the proposal obtained by adding the amounts of the 
several items. The form shall then conclude with the bidder's name, that of its representative 
and the representative's signature. 
 
The computer generated proposal then is to be attached to the Form of Proposal included 
herewith, which has the following entries completed: bid security sum and form, the name of the 
bidder and its official address, and the bidder's representative's name, signature, and title. Also 
the total bid shall be completed with the entry of "see attached." 
 
The Proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope separate from the Bid Security, Bidder 
Status Form, and the Non-Collusion Affidavit. The envelope shall bear the return address of the 
Bidder and shall be addressed as follows: 
 

To: City Clerk 
City of Cedar Falls 
City Hall 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 
Proposal for: 2018 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project  
  Project No. WR – 000 – 3150 

   
 

-16-

Item E.1. 



9 

FORM OF PROPOSAL 
2018 SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
PROJECT NO. WR – 000 – 3150 

 
To the Mayor and City Council 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
The undersigned hereby certifies that _________________________ have personally and 

carefully examined the specifications, general conditions, and form of contract annexed hereto.  

Having made such examination, the undersigned hereby proposes to construct the 

improvements for the 2018 SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT in accordance 

with the plans and specifications on file in the office of the City Clerk, the published Notice to 

Bidders and the Form of Contract, herewith, complying with all the laws of the State of Iowa, and 

the Rules, Regulations and Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, and to the satisfaction of the 

City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including the guaranteeing of this Project for a 

period of two (2) years from the date of final acceptance thereof at the following prices, to-wit: 

Item 
No. 

Description Units Quantity Unit Price Extended Price 

1 Pipe Lining, 8 Inch Linear 
Feet 

7,862 
    

2 Pipe Lining, 12 Inch 
Linear 
Feet 

625 
    

3 Building Sanitary Sewer Service 
Reconnection 

Each 149 
    

4 Grouting Service Laterals Each 149 
    

   
 Total Bid 

  

 
 
Bidders may not independently bid on selective items of work. In this project, all items constitute 
one indivisible work that will be let to one bidder. Bids shall be submitted for all of the items. The 
successful bidder will be determined by evaluating the Total Bid shown above. Failure to submit 
a bid on any item shall be just cause for disqualification of the entire proposal. Unit bids must be 
filled in ink, typed or computer generated, or the bid will be rejected. The Owner reserves the 
right to delete any part or all of any item. 
 

-17-

Item E.1. 



10 

The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all bids, including without limitation, 
nonconforming, nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional bids. The Owner further reserves the 
right to reject the bid of any bidder whom it finds, after reasonable inquiry and evaluation, to be 
non-responsible. The Owner may also reject the bid of any bidder if the Owner believes that it 
would not be in the best interest of the project to make an award to that bidder. The Owner also 
reserves the right to waive all informalities not involving price time or changes in the work 
 

If written notice of approval of award is mailed, telegraphed or delivered to the undersigned 
within thirty (30) calendar days after the opening thereof, or any time thereafter before this bid is 
withdrawn, the undersigned agrees to execute and deliver an agreement in the prescribed form 
and furnish the required bond within ten (10) calendar days after the Contract is presented to 
him for signature, and start work within ten (10) calendar days after "Notice to Proceed" is 
issued. 
 

Bid Security in the sum of _________________________________ in the form of 
__________________________________, is submitted herewith in accordance with the 
Instructions to Bidders. 
 

The bidder is prepared to submit a financial and experience statement upon request. 
 

The bidder has received the following Addendum or Addenda: 
 

Addendum No.  ______________     Date _____________ 
Addendum No.  ______________     Date _____________ 
Addendum No.  ______________     Date _____________ 
 

The bidder has filled in all blanks on this Proposal. 
 

Note: The Penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.A., Section 1001. 
Name of bidder 
________________________________  _____________________________ 

   By 
________________________________  _____________________________  
Official Address   Title  

 

 
 

-18-

Item E.1. 



11 

BID BOND 
PROJECT NO. WR – 000 – 3150 

 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, ___________________________________________ 
__________________________, as Principal, and ___________________________________________ 
as Surety are held and firmly bound unto the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as Obligee, hereinafter called "OBLIGEE," 
In the penal sum of______________________________________ Dollars ($______________) lawful money of 
the United States, for the payment of which sum will and truly be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, 
administrators, and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. Whereas the Principal has submitted 
the accompanying bid dated the _______ day of_______________________, 20_____, for 
______________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________________. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, 
 
(a) If said Bid shall be rejected, or in the alternate, 
 
(b) If said Bid shall be accepted and the Principal shall execute and deliver a contract in the form specified and 

shall furnish a bond for the faithful performance of said contract, and for the payment of all persons 
performing labor or furnishing materials in connection therewith, and shall in all other respects perform the 
agreement created by the acceptance of said Bid, 

 
Then this obligation shall be void, otherwise the same shall remain in force and effect; it being expressly 
understood and agreed that the liability of the Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall, in no event, exceed the 
penal amount of this obligation as herein stated. 
 
By virtue of statutory authority, the full amount of this bid bond shall be forfeited to the Obligee in liquidation of 
damages sustained in the event that the Principal fails to execute the contract and provide the bond as provided in 
the specifications or by law. 
 
The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the obligations of said Surety and its bond shall 
be in no way impaired or affected by any extension of the time within which the Obligee may accept such Bid or 
execute such contract; and said Surety does hereby waive notice of any such extension. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety have hereunto set their hands and seals, and such of them 
as are corporations, have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to be signed by their 
proper officers this ______ day of ____________________, A.D., 20_____. 
 
 
 

_________________________________ (Seal) 
Principal 

 
 
_______________________________________ By_______________________________ (Title) 
Witness 

_________________________________ (Seal) 
Surety 

 
_______________________________________ By____________________________________ 
Witness                                  Attorney-in-fact 

                
 
 
 
 

-19-

Item E.1. 



12 

 
 
 

-20-

Item E.1. 



13 

 
 
 
 

-21-

Item E.1. 



14 

    NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT OF PRIME BIDDER           
 PROJECT NO. WR – 000 – 3150 

 
 
STATE OF _______________________  

                           ss 
COUNTY OF _____________________ 
 
 
__________________________________, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that: 
 
(1)  We are _______________________________________________________ of ______________          
  (owner, partner, officer, representative, or agent) 
 
_____________________________, the Bidder that has submitted the attached bid: 
 
(2)  We are fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached bid and of all pertinent 
circumstances respecting such bid: 
 
(3)   Such bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham bid: 
 
(4)  Neither the said Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees 
or parties in interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or 
indirectly, with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collusive or sham bid in connection with the 
Contract for which the attached bid has been submitted or to refrain from bidding in connection with such 
Contract, or has in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication or 
conference with any other Bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached bid or of any other 
Bidder, or, to fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the bid price of any other Bidder, or to secure 
through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement any advantage against the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, or any person interested in the proposed Contract; and 
 
(5)   The price or prices quoted in the attached bid are fair and proper and are not tainted by a collusion, 
conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents, representatives, 
owners, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant. 
 
 
 
   __________________________________________ 

Signed      
  __________________________________________ 

    Title 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me 
 
this _______ day of ________________, 20_____ 
 
________________________________________ 
 
_________________________________________ 
Title 
 
My Commission expires ______________________. 

 

-22-

Item E.1. 



15 

 

FORM OF CONTRACT 

 
This Contract entered into in quadruplicate at Cedar Falls, Iowa, this ____ day of 

_________, 2018, by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter called the 

Owner, and_____________ of ___________________, hereinafter called the Contractor. 

WITNESSETH: 

The Contractor hereby agrees to furnish all labor, tools, materials, and equipment 

and construct the public improvement consisting of:  2018 SANITARY SEWER 

REHABILITATION PROJECT; PROJECT NO. WR – 000 – 3150 all in the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, ordered to be constructed by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

by Resolution duly passed on the 5th day of March, 2018 and shown and described in the 

Plans and Specifications therefore now on file with the City Clerk of said City. 

Said improvement shall be constructed strictly in accordance with said Plans and 

Specifications. 

The following parts of the Plans and Specifications for said 2018 SANITARY 

SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT attached hereto shall be made a part of this 

contract as fully as though set out herein verbatim: 

a. Resolution of Necessity 
b. Resolution ordering construction of the improvement 
c. Plans 
d. Notice of Public Hearing on Plans and Specifications 
e. Notice to Bidders 
f. Instructions to Bidders 
g. Supplemental Conditions 
h. General Conditions 
i. Project Specifications 
j. Form of Proposal 
k. Performance Bond 
l. Maintenance Bond 
m. Form of Contract 

-23-

Item E.1. 



16 

n. Non-collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder 
o. Bidder Status Form 
 

On completion of the said improvement, the Owner agrees to pay to the Contractor the 

prices set out in the Form of Proposal of the Contractor, said payment to be made in the 

manner stated in the published Notice to Bidders. 

In Witness whereof, this Contract has been executed in quadruplicate on the date first 

herein written.   

 
 __________________________ 
 Contractor 

 
 
    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
    By____________________________ 

   James P. Brown, Mayor City of Cedar Falls 
 
 
Attest: _________________________ 
 Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC 
 City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-24-

Item E.1. 



17 

DIVISION 2 – Special Provisions 
 

 
Special Provisions are intended to amend or supplement the General Provisions and 
Covenants of the “SUDAS” Standard Specifications. All sections that are not amended or 
supplemented remain in full force and effect. 
 
01 Award of Contract 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1030 – 1.03: 
 
The lowest responsive bidder will be required to furnish a performance, payment, and 
maintenance bond in the sum equal to one hundred (100%) percent of the total bid. The 
maintenance bond shall guarantee the maintenance of the improvements for a period of 
two (2) years from and after its completion and acceptance by the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
02 Availability of Site 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1050 – 1.04: 
 
During construction of this project, the Contractor will be required to coordinate all work 
operations with the Department of Community development, City project contractors, and / 
or others involved with, but not limited to, the following events: 
 

1) Public Works Garbage Collection Operations 
2) Street Construction – 2018 
3) University Ave Phase 2&3 
4) Cedar Falls Util. Co. electrical, communications, gas & water main projects 
5) 2018 Public Sidewalk & Patching Project 
6) College Hill Arts Festival – June 15 and 16, 2018 
7) Sturgis Falls Celebration – June 22 thru 24, 2018 

 
03 Subletting or Assignment of Contract 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.01: 
 
The Contractor's own organization shall perform work amounting to not less than fifty 
(50%) percent of the total contract cost unless otherwise specified. An item designated as 
a specialty item may be performed by subcontract, and the cost of any such specialty item 
as performed by subcontract may be deducted from the total cost before computing the 
amount of work required by the Contractor's organization. 
 
 
 
 

-25-

Item E.1. 



18 

04 Contract Time 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.02: 
 
The work under the proposed contract shall commence within eight (8) calendar weeks 
after the date set forth in the written Notice to Proceed and shall be performed regularly 
and diligently throughout the duration of the project. There is no specified number of 
allotted working days for this contract; however, much of this work is in conjunction with 
street reconstruction or resurfacing. To minimize conflicts, and avoid encountering a 
situation that may require a possible spot repair under a newly laid street, Contractor 
should plan to finish by July 1, 2018.  
 
05 Weekly Record of Working Days 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.06: 
 
Work shall not begin before 7:00 a.m. and shall stop at sunset.  
 
06 Progress Payments 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1090 – 1.01: 
 
Pay estimates will be submitted to the City Council for approval on the first (1st) and third 
(3rd) Mondays of each month. 
 
Payment for the work may be made in three parts, if requested by the Contractor.  The 
Contractor may request from the Owner a progress payment when the job is 33% 
complete and another when the job is 66% complete. Final payment will be made upon 
satisfactory completion of this contract.  Payment will be in accordance with the prices set 
forth in the proposal for the quantity of work performed.  This shall include any additional 
expenses preapproved by the Owner. 
 
Before final payment is made, the Contractor shall furnish vouchers showing that all 
subcontractors and all persons furnishing labor and materials have been fully paid for such 
materials and labor and that the City may retain ten (10) percent of the project cost from 
the last payment for a period of ninety (90) calendar days following such completion and 
approval, unless satisfied that material and laborers have been paid for in full. 
 
07 Pollution Prevention Plan 
 
1. Project Description 
 
This work shall consist furnishing and installing a cured in place liner within existing 8 and 
12 inch diameter sewer lines in selected areas of the city and in accordance with the 
contract documents. Total project involves approximately 8,487 feet and 149 service taps. 

-26-

Item E.1. 



19 

This project encompasses multiple locations within the city.   

 
2. Erosion and Sediment Controls 
 
All contractors and subcontractors operating on the site shall take efforts to prevent 
contamination of storm water runoff, groundwater, and soils by hazardous material and / or 
pollutants caused by their operations or encountered in their work. All waste materials and 
supplies must be removed from the site(s). If construction equipment maintenance or 
repair is performed on any site, provisions must be made to capture and remove any 
lubricants or other fluids. 
 
The Contractor shall notify the Owner immediately upon finding a hazardous material 
contamination either existing at the site or caused by construction activities. 
 
The Contractor and every Subcontractor shall be responsible to the Owner to: 
 

1. Execute Contractor’s part of the pollution prevention plan as described. 
 

2. Conduct all work activities to not damage an existing erosion control 
measure or stabilizing vegetation.  If damages occur, the Contractor shall 
make repairs with no additional cost to the Owner. 
 

3. Coordinate with the Owner for installation of additional erosion control 
measures that may be needed during construction. 

 
3. Certification Statement  
 

N.P.D.E.S. CERTIFICATION 
 
The contractor certifies under penalty of law that they understand the terms and conditions 
of the general National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit that 
authorizes the storm water discharges associated with industrial activity from the 
construction site as part of this certification. Further, by signing and entering into contract 
for this work, the contractor understands that they are becoming a co-permittee, along with 
the owner(s) and other contractors and subcontractors, to the Iowa Department of Natural 
Resources NPDES General Permit No. 2 for “Storm Water Discharge Associated with 
Industrial Activity for Construction Activities” at the identified site. As co-permittee, the 
contractor understands that they and their company are legally required under the Clean 
Water Act and the Code of Iowa, to ensure compliance with the terms and conditions of 
the Storm Pollution Prevention Plan developed under this NPDES permit and the terms of 
this NPDES permit. 
 

-27-

Item E.1. 



20 

08 METHOD OF MEASUREMENT 
 
The Engineer will measure the items of work that have been acceptably constructed as 
specified in the contract documents for the 2018 SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION 
PROJECT in accordance with the 2018 edition of the Iowa “Statewide Urban Design and 
Specifications” (SUDAS) for public improvements and as further modified by the City of 
Cedar Falls’ 2018 Supplemental Specifications, except as amended or supplemented as 
follows: 
 
Item No. 4 – Grouting Service Laterals 
The number of grouting service laterals will be measured on a per each location basis.  
 
09  BASIS OF PAYMENT 
 
Payment for the items listed in the Method of Measurement will be determined by 
multiplying the item quantity (as determined in the Method of Measurement) by the unit 
price as bid on the proposal form in accordance with the 2018 edition of the Iowa 
“STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS” (SUDAS) as amended by the 
City of Cedar Falls’ 2018 Supplemental Specifications to the 2018 edition of the Iowa 
“STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND  SPECIFICATIONS” (SUDAS), except as amended 
or supplemented as follows: 
 
Item No. 4 – Grouting Service Laterals 
The Contractor will be paid the contract unit price per each measured.  

 

-28-

Item E.1. 



21 

DIVISION 4 - SUPPLEMENTAL PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

All work shall be constructed as specified in the Contract documents for the 2018 
SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT in accordance with the 2018 Edition of 
the Iowa “STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS” (SUDAS) as amended 
by the City of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental Specifications to the 2018 edition of the Iowa 
“STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS” (SUDAS), except as amended 
or supplemented as follows: 
 
Item No. 1-2 – Pipe Lining, 8 and 12 Inch 
 
Traffic control as per I.D.O.T. Specification Section 2528.12 shall be incidental to bid 
items. The bypassing of sewage shall be incidental the bid items. The cleanup of the work 
site is incidental to the bid items including maintenance of surfaces such as paving, 
seeding, sodding and graveling, as needed, if damaged.  
 
Resin-Impregnated Tube for Cured-in-place pipe (CIPP) Lining shall be used per SUDAS 
Section 4050 2.05.  
 
Water-tight end seals are required. Sealing is incidental to lining. The Contractor is 
responsible for using one or more of the following methods to achieve a water tight seal at 
both ends of the liner: 
 
 1. Install gasketed stainless steel bands (LMK or pre-approved equal) inside each 
end of the host pipe prior to lining. This method shall be the only acceptable method for 
pipes 18” or larger in diameter, or those subject to hydrostatic pressure (ground water 
table) at any time of the year. 
  
 2. Apply a hydrophilic sealing material (Hydrotite or pre-approved equal) 360 
degrees inside the circumference of the host pipe at each end.   
 
 3. Chemical pressure grout between the exterior of the pipe and annulus of the liner 
after lining at the manhole.   
 
The Contractor shall provide liner "coupon" specimens for testing to the Owner after 
installation.  The Owner will pay all expenses for the testing of these specimens.  The cost 
of retests made necessary by the failure of the samples of specimens to meet the specified 
requirements shall be paid for by the Contractor. Any liner installed failing this test shall be 
replaced at the Contractor’s expense. 
 

-29-

Item E.1. 



22 

The Contractor shall furnish a general purpose felt/unsaturated polyester resin and catalyst 
system that meets ASTM Test Procedures D-638 and D-790 and the finished formed 
physical strengths specified herein. The Formed liner shall conform to the minimum 
structural standards as listed below: 
 

Physical Characteristics Test Procedure Pipe Material Felt/Resin 

Tensile Strength ASTM D-638 3000 psi 

Tensile Modulus ASTM D-638 300000 psi 

 
If, due to broken or offset pipe at the manhole wall, the pipe liner fails to make a tight seal, 
the Contractor shall apply a seal at that point.  The seal shall be of a resin mixture 
compatible with the liner pipe material. 
 
After insertion is completed, the Contractor shall supply suitable heat source equipment.  
The equipment shall be capable of delivering the appropriate heat source through the 
lining section to uniformly raise the temperature to effect forming of the cured-in-place 
liner.  This temperature shall be determined by the system employed. 
 
Any steam for processing shall utilize monitoring methods and forming period as 
recommended by the liner manufacturer. If water is utilized, the water temperature in the 
line during the forming period shall be as recommended by the liner manufacturer. 
 
If the liner fails to form, the Contractor shall remove the failed liner and replace it with a 
new liner.  This work shall be performed without additional cost to Owner. 
 
Any defects which will affect in the foreseeable future or warranty period, the integrity or 
strength of the liner pipe shall be repaired at the Contractor's expense.  Allowance shall be 
given for excess pipe (rib) when the cross-sectional area has been reduced due to offset 
joints, partial collapse, out of round sections, etc. 
 
Item No. 3 – Building Sanitary Sewer Service Reconnection 
 

Traffic control as per I.D.O.T. Specification Section 2528.12 shall be incidental to bid 
items. The cleanup of the work site is incidental to the bid items including maintenance of 
surfaces such as paving, seeding, sodding and graveling, as needed, if damaged.  
 
After the pipe liner has been formed in place, the Contractor shall reconnect the existing 
active service connections as designated by the Owner.  This shall be done without 
excavation, and in the case of non-man entry pipes, from the interior of the pipeline by 
means of a television camera and a cutting device that re-establishes the service 
connections to not less than 90 percent capacity.  The CCTV inspection of the formed liner 
shall show a "dimple effect", which is an indication that there is a tight fit of the liner against 
the host pipe.  If this is not the case, the liner must be reprocessed until there is a good 
definition of a "dimple" at the service connection, before reconnecting the service 
connection.  

-30-

Item E.1. 



23 

Item No. 4 – Grouting of Service Lines 
 
Chemical grouting equipment shall consist of a closed circuit television system, necessary 
chemical sealant containers, pumps, regulators, valves, hoses, etc., and lateral connection 
sealing packers for the various sizes of sewer pipes. 
 
Grout packer shall be cylindrical and have a diameter less than the pipe size and have 
cables attached at each end to pull it through the line.  The same equipment shall be used 
for both testing and sealing sewer lateral connections.  The packer shall contain a lateral 
sealing inversion tube.  This tube should be designed to accommodate two sizes of 
laterals, 4” and 6” diameters.  The inversion tubes are one length to facilitate sealing of 
approximately 2’ of the lateral. 
 
Sewer main shall be televised before service line is grouted; testing of grouted service will 
also be televised. 
 
The chemical grout shall be a type which has a documented record of satisfactory 
performance in sewer usage.  All grouting materials shall be delivered to the job site in the 
original, labeled, and unopened containers.  Grouts shall be Acrylic base gel chemical 
sealing material – Avanti AV-100 or equal.   
 
Laterals shall be air tested by isolating the area to be tested with the packer and applying 
positive pressure into the isolated “void” area.  The test procedure will consist of applying 
air pressure into each isolated void area.  The packer ends will be inflated to isolate the 
lateral and insert and inflatable inversion tube.  The lateral shall be tested with a gauge 
pressure of one-half (1/2) p.s.i. per foot of depth of sewer or a minimum of four (4) p.s.i., 
whichever is larger.  The void pressure will be observed during this test for a minimum of 
10 seconds.  If the void pressure drop is greater than 1 psi in 10 seconds, the lateral is 
considered to have failed the air test.  If no pressure can be built up, the connection will 
also have failed the test.  Any connection failing the test shall be sealed and retested 
utilizing the same method and procedures until it does pass the test.  The cost of retesting 
lateral connections shall be considered incidental and included in the cost of sealing 
sanitary sewer lateral connection. 
  

-31-

Item E.1. 



24 

FY 2018 Rehabilitation (Lining) List 
 (In Alphabetical Order by size) 

Video ID# Street Length Taps Description 

Line 
Size 
(in) 

1 Bluff 240 4 
500 Blk, MH 382 (9'3") at 600 Bluff St to MH 381 
(8'6") at 504 Bluff St. 

8" 

2 College 308 9 
1000 Blk, MH 2825 (8'2") at 10th & College to MH 
3084 (Lid Cold Patched) at 11th & College. 

8" 

3 Hillside 285 8 
3900 Blk, MH 1176 (8'11") at 3908 Hillside to MH 
1177 9' at 4007 Hillside. 

8" 

4 Hillside 284 2 
4000 Blk, MH 1177 (9') at 4007 Hillside to MH 
3629 (7'7") at Hillside and Valley High. 

8" 

5 Highland 292 6 
100 Blk, MH 3101 (9'3") at 202 Highland to MH 
3213 (8'6") at Hightland and Crescent. 

8" 

6 Highland 235 4 
200 Blk, MH 3104 (7'9") at 209 Highland to MH 
3103 (10'1") at Highland and W. 3rd. 

8" 

7 Highland 345 5 
300 Blk, MH 3103 (10'1") at Highland and W. 3rd 
to MH 3189 (8'3") at Highland and W. 4th. 

8" 

8 Iowa 326 13 
600 Blk, MH 3193 (8'10") at 6th and Iowa to MH 
3194 (9'6") at 7th and Iowa. 

8" 

9 Iowa 332 10 
700 Blk, MH 3194 (9'6") at 7th and Iowa to MH 
3195 (9'2") 8th and Iowa. 

8" 

10 Kennedy 249 6 
2600 Blk, MH 1995 (8'4") at 2626 Kennedy to MH 
1996 (9'5") at Kennedy and Thomas. 

8" 

11 Kennedy 243 8 
2700 Blk, MH 1995 (8'4") at 2626 Kennedy to MH 
1994 (5'11") at Kennedy and Douglas. 

8" 

12 McClain 222 5 
3100 Blk, MH 1145 (6'10") at 3121 McClain to  
MH 1146 (6'4") at 1708 Maplewood. 

8" 

13 Minnetonka 396 7 
2700 Blk, MH 3791 (10') at Minnetonka and 
Horizon to MH 3804 (9'10") in ROW at 2725 
Minnetonka. 

8" 

14 Minnetonka 133 1 
2800 Blk, MH 3804 (9'10") in ROW at 2725 
Minnetonka to MH 3374 (10'11") in ROW at 2821 
Minnetonka. 

8" 

15 Minnetonka 395 4 
2800-2900 Blk, MH 3378 (11'3") in ROW at 2914 
Minnetonka to MH 2491 (9'9") in ROW at 2806 
Minnetonka. 

8" 

16 Minnetonka 378 4 
2900/3000 Blk, MH 3377 (10'1") in ROW at 3014 
Minnetonka to MH 3378 (11'3") in ROW at 2914 
Minnetonka. 

8" 

17 Minnetonka 388 6 

3000 Blk, MH 3376 (11'6") in ROW at 3037 
Minnetonka to MH 3372 (10'11") in ROW at 3003 
Minnetonka. Service for 3020 either in MH or 
within first 10' of MH 3376. 

8" 

18 Neola 330 6 
3000 Blk, MH 326 (7'10") in ROW at 3104 Neola 
to MH 327 (8'6") in ROW at 2703 Neola. 

8" 

-32-

Item E.1. 



25 

19 N. College St. 146 4 
100 Blk, MH 1457 (8'7") at 117 N. College to MH 
1217 (16'3") at 117 N. College. 

8" 

20 N. College St. 236 5 
300 Blk, MH 1215 (10'2") at 313 N. College to MH 
1216 (9'2") at 225 N. College. 

8" 

21 Orchard 319 5 
500 Blk, MH 1618 (8'9") at Dallas and Orchard to 
MH 1619 (7'7") in ROW at 609 Orchard. 

8 

22 Pleasant 202 2 
1900 Blk, MH 1039 (8'10") at 1912 Pleasant  to 
MH 1038 (8') at Pleasant and McClain. 

12" 

23 Pleasant 201 4 
1900 Blk, MH 1537 (7'2") at 1923 Pleasant to MH 
1039 (8') at 1912 Pleasant. 

12" 

24 Pleasant 222 1 
Kuehn's Park, MH 1537 (7'2") at 1923 Pleasant to 
MH 2500 (7'8") at Pleasant and Edgewood. 

12" 

25 Rainbow 185 2 
3000 Blk, MH 2906 (6.83') at Rainbow and 
Bronson Ct to MH 1018 (6') at Rainbow and 
Parrish. 

8" 

26 
Ravine Dr to River 
Bluff Dr 

191 2 
MH 1581 (5') at 1511 River Bluff Drive to MH 
1582 (4') at Willow and Ravine Dr. Under 
house/driveway of 1518 Ravine Drive. 

8" 

27 River Ridge 110 0 
10 Blk. MH 1517 (10') at Timberledge Dr. and 
River Ridge to MH 2143 (13'5") in ROW at 18 
River Ridge. 

8" 

28 River Ridge 278 5 
20 Blk. MH 1512 (7'2") in ROW at 46 River Ridge 
to MH 2143 (13'5") in ROW at 18 River Ridge. 

8" 

29 River Ridge 90 1 
40 Blk, MH 1511 (8'3") in ROW at 54 River Ridge 
to MH 1512 (7'2") in ROW at 46 River Ridge. 

8" 

30 River Ridge 292 4 
100 Blk, MH 1504 (8'4") in ROW at 2019 
Timberledge Dr to MH 1505 (8'5") in ROW at 119 
River Ridge. 

8" 

31 River Ridge 88 2 
100 Blk, MH 1505 (8'3") in ROW at 119 River 
Ridge to MH 1506 (11'4") in ROW at 101 River 
Ridge. 

8" 

32 River Ridge 110 1 
100 Blk, MH 1506 (11'4") in Row at 101 River 
Ridge to MH 1509 (18'3") at River Ridge Rd and 
River Ridge Ln. 

8" 

33 Timberledge 177 1 
1700 Blk. MH 1522 (9'7") at Timberledge and 
Westwood to MH 1519 (6'10") at 1716 
Timberledge. 

8" 

34 Timberledge 89 1 
1900 Blk, MH 1515 (8'1") at 1906 Timberledge to 
MH 1516 (8'2") at 1828 Timberledge. 

8" 

35 Timberledge Place 170 1 
20 Blk, MH 1514 (8'1") at 15 Timberledge Pl to 
MH 1516 (8'2") at 1828 Timberledge Dr. 

8" 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-33-

Item E.1. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Terra Ray, Engineer Technician II 
 
 DATE: February 2, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: Set Public Hearing for Right of Way Acquisition 
  Campus Street Bridge Replacement University Branch of Dry Run Creek 
  Project NO. BR-101-3043 
 
 
The City of Cedar Falls engineering is planning to reconstruct the Campus Street Bridge 
at the University Branch of Dry Run Creek during the 2018 construction season. The 
Project will require the acquisition of temporary and permanent easements along the 
corridor. Plans for the project show the need for acquisitions from two properties.  
 
Iowa law requires that the City Council hold a public hearing to authorize proceeding 
with the project, including the purchase of right of way.  The public hearing offers an 
opportunity for the public, especially those from whom the easements will be purchased, 
to comment on the project. 
 
We recommend that the Council schedule a Public Hearing for March 5, 2018, to be 
held at the regularly scheduled City Council meeting. 
 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 

-35-

Item E.3. 



 



BEFORE THE CEDAR FALLS CITY COUNCIL 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
IN RE:       ORDER  
Sarwar Corporation     ASSESSING PENALTY 
d/b/a B & B West     FIRST VIOLATION 
3105 Hudson Road 
Cedar Falls, IA  50613 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

On this ______ day of _______________, 2018, after a public hearing on the 

matter, the Cedar Falls City Council finds that based upon evidence submitted by the City 

Attorney's Office, the above-captioned permittee committed a violation of Iowa Code 

Section 453A.2(1), selling, giving, or otherwise supplying any tobacco, tobacco products, 

or cigarettes to any person under eighteen years of age. 

THEREFORE, the Cedar Falls City Council hereby orders that a civil penalty in 

the amount of $300.00 be remitted by the above-captioned permittee, to the City of Cedar 

Falls, check made payable to the "City of Cedar Falls" on or before 30 days from date of 

this order.  This sanction will count as a first violation of Iowa Code Section 453A.2(1), 

pursuant to Iowa Code Section 453A.22(2)(a).  Be advised that failure to pay the civil 

penalty by this date shall result in the automatic permit suspension for a period of 

fourteen (14) days. 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 
      Mayor 
      City of Cedar Falls 
 

-37-

Item E.5. 



 



-39-

Item E.5. 



 



-41-

Item E.5. 



-42-

Item E.5. 



-43-

Item E.5. 



-44-

Item E.5. 



BEFORE THE CEDAR FALLS CITY COUNCIL 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
IN RE:       ORDER  
Great Wall      ASSESSING PENALTY 
2125 West 22nd Street #D    FIRST VIOLATION 
Cedar Falls, IA  50613 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

On this ______ day of _______________, 2018, after a public hearing on the 

matter, the Cedar Falls City Council finds that based upon evidence submitted by the City 

Attorney's Office, the above-captioned permittee committed a violation of Iowa Code 

Section 453A.2(1), selling, giving, or otherwise supplying any tobacco, tobacco products, 

or cigarettes to any person under eighteen years of age. 

THEREFORE, the Cedar Falls City Council hereby orders that a civil penalty in 

the amount of $300.00 be remitted by the above-captioned permittee, to the City of Cedar 

Falls, check made payable to the "City of Cedar Falls" on or before 30 days from date of 

this order.  This sanction will count as a first violation of Iowa Code Section 453A.2(1), 

pursuant to Iowa Code Section 453A.22(2)(a).  Be advised that failure to pay the civil 

penalty by this date shall result in the automatic permit suspension for a period of 

fourteen (14) days. 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 
      Mayor 
      City of Cedar Falls 
 

 
 

-45-

Item E.7. 



 



-47-

Item E.7. 



 



-49-

Item E.7. 



-50-

Item E.7. 



-51-

Item E.7. 



-52-

Item E.7. 



   Mayor James P. Brown 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

M E M O R A N D U M
Office of the Mayor

 

 TO: Council 

 FROM: Mayor Jim Brown 

 DATE: March 2nd, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Kwik Star Site Plan Reconsideration 

 
Dear Council, 
 
Councilmen Wieland and Green have requested that I place the Kwik Star site plan 
resolution on the agenda for Reconsideration per Administrative Policy No. 07. If 
passed by Council, the item will be discussed further, allowing for input from Council. 
 
Please note; By those same Admin Policy Rules, the item must be resolved at the same 
meeting (March 5th), however, it will be my strong recommendation for Council to Table 
the item, once again if the Reconsideration passes, until April 2nd where all stakeholders 
can give input and discuss. 

-53-

Item F.1. 



 



-55-

Item G.1.a. 



 



   MAYOR JIM BROWN 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

M E M O R A N D U M
Office of the Mayor

 

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Jim Brown 

 DATE: February 21, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Appointment 

 

I am recommending the following appointment: 

 

Name: Board/Commission: Term Ending: 
   
Evan Renfro Library Board of Trustees (fills vacancy) 06/30/2022 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

 

 
 

-57-

Item G.1.b. 



 



-59-

Item G.1.b. 



-60-

Item G.1.b. 



-61-

Item G.1.b. 



-62-

Item G.1.b. 



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

February 19, 2018 
 

The Committee of the Whole met in the Council Chambers at 5:50 p.m. on February 19, 
2018, with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Jim Brown, Tom 
Blanford, Frank Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Rob Green, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, and David 
Wieland. Staff members attended from all City Departments. Pat Kinney with the 
Waterloo Courier, Evan Renfro, and other members of the community attended.  

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda, 
Library Board of Trustees Interview – Evan Renfro.  Mr. Renfro gave a brief introduction 
of himself.  He stated he is a professor at the University of Northern Iowa.  He answered 
a few questions from the council. 

Mayor Brown introduced the second item on the agenda, On-Street Parking Regulations 
for Trailers.  Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, reviewed other larger cities in Iowa and 
conducted other research over the parking regulations.  He reviewed the current 
ordinance for parking and stated the ordinance refers to “gross capacity”.  He stated the 
language should be clarified and to use terms in the Iowa Code Chapter 321 dealing 
with Motor Vehicles.  He reviewed the staff recommendation:  

No person shall park a motor home, camper, travel trailer, fifth-wheel travel 
trailer, motor sports recreational vehicle, boat, off road utility vehicle, 
manufactured or mobile home, all-terrain vehicle, semi-tractor, semi-trailer, bus, 
tank vehicle, special truck, multipurpose vehicle, motor truck, road tractor, truck 
tractor, commercial motor vehicle, commercial vehicle, commercial trailer, panel 
delivery truck, light delivery truck other than pickup, implement of husbandry, 
special mobile equipment, construction equipment, or any other trailer capable of 
transporting any of the above, on any public street or right of way or in any public 
parking lot at any time. This section does not apply to persons actively loading or 
unloading, or to persons actively engaged in providing services or conducting 
operations for or upon adjacent or nearby premises, provided that such persons 
are otherwise legally parked.   

Mayor Brown opened it up for discussion.  Mr. Rogers stated the current ordinance is 
difficult to enforce.  He also explained there are parking permits used for 
construction/job trailers who park on the street.  He explained the ordinance is only for 
street and right of way parking, and does not affect vehicles parked in driveways.  David 
Wieland motioned to have staff draft the proposed ordinance. Tom Blandford seconded 
the motion.  Motion failed 3-4. (Aye: Blandford, Darrah, Wieland; Nay:  deBuhr, Green, 
Kruse, Miller) 

Mayor Brown moved on to the third item on the agenda, Butchering/Harvesting Animals 
within City Limits.  City Attorney Rogers stated currently the Code of Ordinance does 
not specifically regulate the butchering of animals for personal consumption within the 
city limits.  He reviewed the staff recommendation:  

No person shall within the city limits slaughter, butcher or process any animal or 
fowl on public property or, within the sensory perception of any person not on the 

-63-

Item G.1.c. 



same premises, on private property. In addition, any remains must be disposed 
of in a sanitary manner and in accordance with the law.   

Mayor Brown opened it up for discussion.  Jeff Olson, Director of Public Safety 
Service/Police Chief, stated they have had four complaints (two are of one resident) in 
the past year.  Mike Johnson, 2214 Vine Street, had a picture taken from his yard of his 
neighbor’s yard.  He stated he also observed the dead carcass in the back of a vehicle 
for a few days.  Susan deBuhr motioned for staff to draft the proposed ordinance, 
seconded by Mark Miller.  The motion carried unanimously.  

City Attorney Rogers continued with the review of disposal of animal carcasses.  He 
reviewed the code section which addresses this.  He explained this is difficult to enforce 
since it cannot be proven that the person owned or had control over the animal at the 
time of the death.  Also, the current ordinance does not address leaving carcasses on 
public property.  He reviewed the staff recommended change to the ordinance: 

No person shall place or allow to be placed any dead animal or fowl in any public 
right of way or other public place in the city. No person shall allow any dead 
animal or fowl which the person owned or had control over at the time death to 
remain in any public right of way or other public place for more than twenty-four 
hours after death. No person shall allow any dead animal or fowl to remain on 
such person’s premises for more than twenty-four hours after death. Such 
persons, and all other persons in possession of a dead animal or fowl within the 
city, shall properly dispose of such dead animal or fowl within twenty-four hours.   

Mr. Rogers stated this is consistent with the Iowa Code 167.18.  Tom Blanford motioned 
for staff to draft the proposed ordinance, seconded by Rob Green.  The motion carried 
unanimously.  

Mayor Brown introduced the fourth item on the agenda, Recreation/Aquatic Programs.  
Chris Schoentag, Recreation Program Supervisor, reviewed a PowerPoint presentation.  
He stated they have been using a new financial software over 1-year and it is shared by 
the Hearst Center and Tourism.  He stated they recently upgraded the fitness 
equipment; he reviewed the location of this new equipment throughout the Rec. Center.  
Mr. Schoentag reviewed the membership statistics and recreation rental fee revenues.  
Brock Goos, Recreation Program Supervisor, reviewed the recreation programs offered 
to the youth, ages 4 yrs – 6th grade.  He reviewed the number of participants.  He stated 
the adult softball program has seen a decline in participation and pickle ball is on the 
rise.  Mr. Goos reviewed other offerings the Recreation Center has as well as some of 
the revenue figures.  Mr. Schoentag reviewed the gate and swim lesson attendance and 
revenues associated with them at the Falls Aquatic Center. A brief discussion was held. 

Mayor Brown introduced the final item on the agenda, bills and payroll.  David Wieland 
moved to approve the bills as presented and Susan deBuhr seconded the motion.  The 
motion carried unanimously.  

There being no further discussion Mayor Brown adjourned the meeting at 6:52 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

-64-

Item G.1.c. 



CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
Library Board Room  
February 26, 2018 

 
The City Council held a special work session in the Library Board Room at 5:00 p.m. on 
February 26, 2018, with the following persons in attendance:  Mayor Jim Brown, Tom 
Blanford, Frank Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Mark Miller, Rob Green, Daryl Kruse, and David 
Wieland. Staff members attended from all City Departments, including City Attorney 
Rogers as well as Charlie Carlson and Jennifer Hassrick from Carlson Dettmann 
Consulting.  

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the agenda, 
Presentation of Pay Plan Study.  Charlie Carlson reviewed the report with their pay plan 
recommendations and presented a power point presentation that outlined the factors 
that went into their recommendations.  In addition to the report Charlie also noted that 
they looked at our plan as requested to ensure gender equity.  They noted that our plan 
does not have any evidence illustrating gender inequity and that the job analysis tool 
they use to point factor the jobs is 100% gender neutral.  City Council members had 
questions about our competitiveness in the market and noted the difficulty we have had 
in recruiting some positions.  Council members discussed whether there would be a 
benefit in adding 5% to the market control point to ensure that we are competitive.  
Council members also noted that we do run lean from an operational standpoint and we 
expect our employees to do a lot of duties.  Charlie noted that if the 5% was added into 
the plan, the cost of implementing the plan would increase from approximately $15,000 
to $45,000.  The cost is from moving employees that fall below the minimum rate up to 
the new pay grade minimum.  A majority of the council members supported the idea of 
adding 5% to ensure we are competitive from a recruiting and retention standpoint.  
Some council members had concerns about adding in the 5%.  Mayor Brown noted that 
the Consultant’s recommendation along with the 5% adjustment will be brought forward 
to the next City Council agenda to be formally voted up or down by the Council.  He 
asked that council members let him or staff know if they have additional questions prior 
to the Council meeting. 

There being no further discussion, Mayor Brown adjourned the meeting at 6:40 p.m.  

 

 

Minutes by Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

-65-

Item G.1.e. 



 



-67-

Item G.1.f. 



-68-

Item G.1.f. 



-69-

Item G.1.f. 



-70-

Item G.1.f. 



-71-

Item G.1.f. 



-72-

Item G.1.f. 



-73-

Item G.1.f. 



-74-

Item G.1.f. 



-75-

Item G.1.f. 



-76-

Item G.1.f. 



-77-

Item G.1.f. 



-78-

Item G.1.f. 



-79-

Item G.1.f. 



-80-

Item G.1.f. 



-81-

Item G.1.f. 



-82-

Item G.1.f. 



-83-

Item G.1.f. 



-84-

Item G.1.f. 



-85-

Item G.1.f. 



-86-

Item G.1.f. 



-87-

Item G.1.f. 



-88-

Item G.1.f. 



-89-

Item G.1.f. 



-90-

Item G.1.f. 



-91-

Item G.1.f. 



-92-

Item G.1.f. 



-93-

Item G.1.f. 



-94-

Item G.1.f. 



-95-

Item G.1.f. 



-96-

Item G.1.f. 



-97-

Item G.1.f. 



-98-

Item G.1.f. 



-99-

Item G.1.f. 



-100-

Item G.1.f. 



-101-

Item G.1.f. 



-102-

Item G.1.f. 



-103-

Item G.1.f. 



-104-

Item G.1.f. 



-105-

Item G.1.f. 



-106-

Item G.1.f. 



-107-

Item G.1.f. 



-108-

Item G.1.f. 



-109-

Item G.1.f. 



-110-

Item G.1.f. 



-111-

Item G.1.f. 



-112-

Item G.1.f. 



-113-

Item G.1.f. 



-114-

Item G.1.f. 



-115-

Item G.1.f. 



-116-

Item G.1.f. 



-117-

Item G.1.f. 



-118-

Item G.1.f. 



-119-

Item G.1.f. 



-120-

Item G.1.f. 



-121-

Item G.1.f. 



-122-

Item G.1.f. 



-123-

Item G.1.f. 



-124-

Item G.1.f. 



-125-

Item G.1.f. 



-126-

Item G.1.f. 



-127-

Item G.1.f. 



-128-

Item G.1.f. 



-129-

Item G.1.f. 



-130-

Item G.1.f. 



-131-

Item G.1.f. 



-132-

Item G.1.f. 



-133-

Item G.1.f. 



-134-

Item G.1.f. 



-135-

Item G.1.f. 



-136-

Item G.1.f. 



-137-

Item G.1.f. 



-138-

Item G.1.f. 



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 
  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  February 21, 2018 

Re:  Special Event Related Requests 

Police Operations has received the following special event related requests and 
recommends approval:  

(1) Street closures, Downtown Show and Shine, May 6, 2018. 

-139-

Item G.1.g. 



 



-141-

Item G.1.g. 



-142-

Item G.1.g. 



-143-

Item G.1.g. 



 



BEFORE THE CEDAR FALLS CITY COUNCIL 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
IN RE:       ORDER ACCEPTING 
Metro Fuel, Inc. d/b/a Metro Mart   ACKNOWLEDGMENT/ 
103 Franklin Street     SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 
Cedar Falls, IA  50613 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 ON this ______ day of _______________, 2018, in lieu of a public hearing on the 

matter, the Cedar Falls City Council approves the attached Acknowledgment/Settlement 

Agreement between the above-captioned permittee and the City of Cedar Falls. 

 Therefore, the Cedar Falls City Council FINDS that the above-captioned 

permittee has remitted to the "City of Cedar Falls", a civil penalty in the amount of Three 

Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($300.00).  Be advised that this sanction will count as a first 

violation of Iowa Code Section 453A.2(1), pursuant to Iowa Code Section 453A.22(2)(a).  

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the judgment in this matter is hereby satisfied. 

 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Mayor 
      City of Cedar Falls 
 
 

-145-

Item G.1.h. 



 



-147-

Item G.1.h. 



 



-149-

Item G.1.h. 



 



-151-

Item G.1.h. 



-152-

Item G.1.h. 



-153-

Item G.1.h. 



-154-

Item G.1.h. 



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 
  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  February 28, 2018 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

(1) Pheasant Ridge Golf Course, 3205 West 12th Street, Class B beer & outdoor 
service - renewal. 

(2) Happy's Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue, Class E liquor - renewal. 

-155-

Item G.1.i. 



 



 RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 
 
RESOLUTION DELETING PAYSCALE FOR EMPLOYEE AND DIMINISHING THE 

FOLLOWING POSITION 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA, that the pay, be deleted from the payroll scale for the below listed employee. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the following position be diminished in accordance with 
Chapter 400.28 of State Code and Section 2.5 of the Cedar Falls Civil Service Commission 
Rules and Regulations. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Controller/City Treasurer of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, is hereby authorized to make such deletion. 
 

 
 
    

 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 
Band/ 
Step 

 
Hrly 

 
Hrs. 
Schd. 

 
Stat. 

 
Cls. 

 
Union 

 
Alexandra Fox 
   PSS/Police Operations 

         
Community Service Officer I 
   Deleted effective Feb. 16, 2018 

 
013 

 
9.104 

 
20 

 
PT 

 
HN 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED THIS ________ day of _____________________, 2018. 
 
 

                    
 
                                                                              _______________________________________ 
                                                                                       James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: ____________________________________ 

       Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
 

-157-

Item G.2.a. 



 



 RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 
 
RESOLUTION DELETING PAYSCALE FOR EMPLOYEE AND DIMINISHING THE 

FOLLOWING POSITION 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA, that the pay, be deleted from the payroll scale for the below listed employee. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the following position be diminished in accordance with 
Chapter 400.28 of State Code and Section 2.5 of the Cedar Falls Civil Service Commission 
Rules and Regulations. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Controller/City Treasurer of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, is hereby authorized to make such deletion. 
 

 
 
    

 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 
Band/ 
Step 

 
Hrly 

 
Hrs. 
Schd. 

 
Stat. 

 
Cls. 

 
Union 

 
Brian Shock 
   PSS/Police Oper. 

         
Public Safety Officer 
   Deleted effective Mar. 2, 2018 

 
P2S-IX 

 
35.660 

 
40 

 
FT 

 
HN 

 
TEAM 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED THIS ________ day of _____________________, 2018. 
 
 

                    
 
                                                                              _______________________________________ 
                                                                                       James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: ____________________________________ 

       Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
 

-159-

Item G.2.b. 



 



                                              RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING PAYSCALE FOR NEW EMPLOYEE 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA, that the pay, be and the same is hereby adopted as the payroll scale for the below listed 
employee. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said pay scale shall be effective from the date below to 
June 29, 2018. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Controller/City Treasurer of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, is hereby authorized to make payment from the appropriate funds for the period herein 
stated. 
 

 
 
    
 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 
Band/ 
Step 

 
Hrly 

 
Hrs. 
Schd. 

 
Stat. 

 
Cls. 

 
Union 

 
Kaleb Bruggeman 
  PSS/Police Oper. 

 
Community Service Officer I 
February 26, 2018 
   

 
 
013 
         

 
 
$9.104 
 

 
 
20 

 
 
PT 

 
 
HN 

 
 
 

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED THIS ________ day of _____________________, 2018. 
 
 

                    
 
                                                                              _______________________________________ 
                                                                                       James P. Brown, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST: ____________________________________ 

       Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
 

 
 

-161-

Item G.2.c. 



 



 RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING PAYSCALE FOR NEW EMPLOYEE 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA, that the pay, be and the same is hereby adopted as the payroll scale for the below listed 
employee. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said pay scale shall be effective from the date below to 
June 29, 2018. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Controller/City Treasurer of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, is hereby authorized to make payment from the appropriate funds for the period herein 
stated. 
 

 
 
    
 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 
Band/ 
Step 

 
Hrly 

 
Hrs. 
Schd. 

 
Stat. 

 
Cls. 

 
Union 

 
Nick Martin 
   MOP/PWP-Vehicle Maint. 

 
Assistant Equipment Mechanic 
    February 19, 2018 
     
     

 
 
10A 
 

 
 
$15.207 

 
 
29 

 
 
PT 

 
 
HN 

                        
                           
TEAM   
 

 
 
 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED THIS ________ day of _____________________, 2018. 
 
 

                    
 
                                                                              _______________________________________ 
                                                                                       James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 

       Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
 

-163-

Item G.2.d. 



 



                                              RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING PAYSCALE FOR NEW EMPLOYEE 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA, that the pay, be and the same is hereby adopted as the payroll scale for the below listed 
employee. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said pay scale shall be effective from the date below to 
June 29, 2018. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Controller/City Treasurer of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, is hereby authorized to make payment from the appropriate funds for the period herein 
stated. 
 

 
 
    
 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 
Band/ 
Step 

 
Hrly 

 
Hrs. 
Schd. 

 
Stat. 

 
Cls. 

 
Union 

 
Matthew Lukehart 
   MOP/PWP-Traffic Oper. 

 
Traffic Operations Supervisor 
March 1, 2018 
   

 
 
234 
         

 
 
$28.500 
 

 
 
40 

 
 
FT 

 
 
SE 

 
 
 

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED THIS ________ day of _____________________, 2018. 
 
 

                    
 
                                                                              _______________________________________ 
                                                                                       James P. Brown, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST: ____________________________________ 

       Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
 

 
 

-165-

Item G.2.e. 



 



 RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 
 
RESOLUTION ADOPTING PAYSCALE FOR EMPLOYEE ASSIGNED IN ACTING 

CAPACITY 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA, that the pay, be and the same is hereby adopted as the payroll scale for the below listed 
employee assigned in the capacity of acting Battalion Chief. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said pay scale shall be effective from the date below to 
June 29, 2018 for the acting position. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Controller/City Treasurer of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, is hereby authorized to make payment from the appropriate funds for the period herein 
stated. 
 

 
 
    
 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 
Band/ 
Step 

 
Hrly 

 
Hrs. 
Schd. 

 
Stat.

 
Cls. 

 
Union 

 
Bobby Wright 
   PSS/Fire Oper. 

 
Acting Battalion Chief-POC 
    February 24, 2018 
    March 16, 2018 

 
 
240  
240       

 
 
38.949 
40.009 

 
 
40 

 
 
FT 

 
 
SE 

                            
                            
  

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED THIS ________ day of _____________________, 2018. 
 
 
 

                    
       _______________________________________ 
                                                                                       James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

       Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 

-167-

Item G.2.f. 



 



 RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING PAYSCALE FOR RECLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE  
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA, that the pay, be and the same is hereby adopted as the payroll scale for the below listed 
reclassified employee. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said pay scale shall be effective from the date below until 
June 29, 2018.  This resolution hereby reclassifies the employee back to the position, which they 
held prior to their current appointment. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Controller/City Treasurer of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, is hereby authorized to make payment from the appropriate funds for the period herein 
stated. 
 

 
 
    
 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 
Band/ 
Step 

 
Hrly 

 
Hrs. 
Schd. 

 
Stat.

 
Cls. 

 
Union 

 
Mike Haislet 
   PSS/Police Oper. 

 
Public Safety Officer 
    February 25, 2018 

 
 
P2S-9               

 
 
35.660                 
                   

 
 
40 

 
 
FT 

 
 
HN 

                            
                            
TEAM  
 

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED THIS ________ day of _____________________, 2018. 
 
 

                    
 
       _______________________________________ 
                                                                                       James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

       Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

-169-

Item G.2.g. 



 



 RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING PAY ADJUSTMENT FOR EMPLOYEES 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA, that the pay, be and the same is hereby adopted as the payroll scale for the below listed 
employees receiving a pay adjustment.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said pay scale shall be effective from the date below to 
June 29, 2018.   This resolution herby adjusts the pay rate for the below listed employees. 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Controller/City Treasurer of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, is hereby authorized to make payment from the appropriate funds for the period herein 
stated. 
 

    
 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 
Band/ 
Step 

 
Hrly 

 
Hrs. 
Schd. 

 
Stat.

 
Cls. 

 
Union 

 
Brennan Kohls 
  PSS/Police Oper. 

 
Community Service Officer I 
   February 22, 2018 

 
 
013 

 
 
$9.354 

 
 
20 

 
 
PT 

 
 
HN 

 
 
 

 
Kenzie Hamlet 
   PSS/Police Oper. 

 
Community Service Officer I 
    February 15, 2018 

 
013 

 
$9.354 

 
20 

 
PT 
 

 
HN 

 

 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED THIS ________ day of _____________________, 2018. 
 
 

                    
 
                                                                              _______________________________________ 
                                                                                       James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: ____________________________________ 

       Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
 

 

-171-

Item G.2.h. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: March 2, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Pay Plan Study 

 
As you are aware, as part of the FY18 budget, the City Council directed staff to perform 
a formal pay plan study.  Carlson Dettmann consulting firm was hired in May, 2017.  
During the summer of 2017 employees covered under the study completed Job 
Description Questionnaires (JDQs).  The consultant reviewed those and also performed 
a market study and a benefits analysis.  We are now at the point that the Consultant 
has completed their study.  Their report was presented to Council at a special work 
session on February 26th.   
 
Attached is that report that the Council discussed at the work session.  The report is the 
recommendation from the Consultant.  During the work session, the Council discussed 
adding 5% to the plan to ensure that they are competitive with the market and are able 
to recruit and retain high quality employees. Therefore, also attached are the revised 
pay grades developed by the Consultant after that work session to incorporate this 5% 
market adjustment.   If the report and the revised pay grades are adopted, the pay plan 
will be implemented as of July 1, 2018.  
 
If you have any questions about the report or the study, please feel free to contact me.  
 
 
 

-173-

Item G.2.i. 



 



 

Carlson Dettmann Consulting LLC 1 

  

 

February 19, 2018 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 

FR: Charles E. Carlson and Jennifer S. Hassrick 

RE: Pay Plan Recommendations 

The City of Cedar Falls retained Carlson Dettmann Consulting (CDC) to review its compensation 

plan and policies covering 72 non-represented job classifications, evaluate internal 

classification relationships, develop a competitive market analysis, and recommend changes 

CDC believes will enhance the plan and policies.  

CDC has completed these tasks and submits the following executive summary and pay plan for 

your consideration. 

Overview 

The City of Cedar Falls (the City) employs staff in two major groups: 

Management/Administration – the focus of this study – and Police, Fire, and Public Works non-

management staff who are covered by collective bargaining agreements.  

This study covers the 72 positions employing 142 staff in the Management/Administrative pay 

plan.  The City adopted the current Management/Administration pay plan over twenty years 

ago and has updated it internally since then. The current annual salary budget for this group is 

approximately $8 million. 

Structurally, the current plan has over 140 pay grades or bands.  The grades have a 52% spread 

from range Minimum to Maximum salaries or hourly rates.  The Director of Finance and 

Business Operations is responsible for the City’s human resource program and approves all 

starting salaries. Typically, employees hired externally start at salaries between the range 

Minimum and Midpoint, depending on qualifications and the market.  Employees promoted 

from within are awarded a modest increase in advancing to a higher pay grade.   

The City’s current policy is to increase individual pay within a pay range based upon individual 

performance as measured by a performance review.  Individual pay increases are separated 

from pay structure changes.  The City adjusts the pay structure periodically based on 

considerations of market conditions, changes in cost-of-living, the size of negotiated increases 

with the collective bargaining unit, and its ability to pay.  

-175-

Item G.2.i. 



 

Carlson Dettmann Consulting LLC 2 

A significant number of City staff covered by this pay plan will be eligible to retire over the next 

15 years.  Specifically, as the table below indicates, over fifty-five percent of staff are over the 

age of 45. 

 

  

 

In our experience, the public sector workforce is aging, and the demographic shown above is 

consistent with what we are seeing regionally.  Most public organizations intentionally are 

career-based employers due to a desire to provide experience public service.  Accordingly, 

states typically provide defined benefit pension systems consistent with this strategic 

objective.  One of the consequences of this combination of career-based employment and a 

strong pension system is long-serving employees have the financial support to retire in their 

late 50’s or early 60’s with full pension rights.   

What this all means is the City, like other public employers, is facing a considerable loss of 

talent over the next fifteen years.  Public employers across the state and the region will be 

replacing key staff at the same time in very competitive labor markets.   

We believe the significance of this demographic for pay plan administration is the challenge 

public organizations will have in keeping their pay plans functioning as designed.  It will be 

critical to support employee development, recognize and reward employees who perform at 

top levels, and continually monitor employee engagement, addressing any concerns as they 

arise. 

Internal Equity, Job Analysis and Job Evaluation 

Our firm emphasizes effective communication in pay administration.  Accordingly, at the outset 

of this study, CDC conducted employee orientation sessions to explain the project and the 

critical role each employee would play in its success.  At those sessions, City leadership 

Grouping Number
Percent	of	
Whole

Cumulative	
Percent

Age	60	or	Older 13 9.7% 9.7%

Age	55	to	Age	60 15 11.2% 20.9%

Age	50	to	Age	55 19 14.2% 35.1%

Age	45	to	Age	50 27 20.1% 55.2%

Age	40	to	Age	45 12 9.0% 64.2%

Age	35	to	Age	40 20 14.9% 79.1%

Age	30	to	Age	35 14 10.4% 89.6%

Age	30	or	Less 14 10.4% 100.0%

Total 134 100%

-176-

Item G.2.i. 



 

Carlson Dettmann Consulting LLC 3 

stressed that this type of project is a standard management process intended to ensure 

employees are classified correctly and the pay plan is competitive and functioning as intended.  

During the project, we discussed policy concerns with the City Council, and we will lead a 

Committee of the Whole workshop on February 26 to discuss this report, followed by staff 

briefing sessions on February 27.   

To provide the necessary job documentation for analysis and evaluation, each employee 

covered by the study completed a Job Description Questionnaire (JDQ). The employee’s 

supervisor and department manager reviewed each JDQ for accuracy and completeness. Based 

on this documentation and our interviews with the management teams in each department, 

CDC consultants evaluated job content using CDC’s Point Factor Job Evaluation System.  This 

System provides a job score subsequently used to group similar positions into pay grades and 

to analyze appropriate relationships to market estimates. 

There are five factors in the CDC Point Factor Job Evaluation System.  We have applied this 

System in hundreds of client applications, and it is a system that has a high degree of construct, 

content, face, and predictive validity.  CDC consistently achieves very high correlation scores 

with benchmark survey data.  The factors and sub-factors in the system are as follows: 

  

 

 

Each factor has sub-factors and points are assigned to each sub-factor.  The City’s current 72 

job classifications in this pay plan group are very diverse in terms of responsibility.  The CDC  

-177-

Item G.2.i. 



 

Carlson Dettmann Consulting LLC 4 

System yields a point score for each factor for each position, as well as a total score, enabling 

CDC to group similar positions into common pay grades.   

In summary, all things being relatively equal, jobs that score closely together should be paid in 

the same pay range, and jobs scoring differently should be in higher or lower grades, 

accordingly.  In this study, benchmark position job evaluation values and market estimates had 

a 0.94 correlation value, a very significant and meaningful result.   

Following CDC’s evaluation, the Director of Finance and Business Operations and the City 

Administrator met with department directors to review preliminary groupings.  They 

accomplished this assignment without market information that might otherwise affect their 

review.  Once the pay ranges were available, the Directors met with their management teams.  

CDC reviewed management suggestions in making our final pay plan recommendations, 

considering both job evaluation outcomes and relevant market factors.  However, the final 

plan is CDC’s objective recommendation based on all the facts we collected and observed. 

As a final check on the accuracy of grade placements, we have recommended, and the City 

Administrator concurs, that the City provide an appeal process giving any employee who feels 

their pay grade is inappropriate, an opportunity to request a follow-up review. The appeal 

process would work as follows.   

Any employee or manager who feels a job is classified incorrectly can request an appeal by 

submitting a written request documenting the appeal.  Department directors would review 

appeal documentations and discuss their observations and recommendations with Finance and 

Business Operations.  CDC would be available for consultation and a follow-up application of 

the Point Factor System.  Finance and Business Operations would make a recommendation on 

each appeal to the City Administrator, who would submit a recommendation to the City 

Council.  CDC would be available for consultation during the appeal process.   

Base Salary Competitiveness 

To determine market competiveness, CDC collaborated with the City to develop a list of data 

sources, and then collected relevant base salary information for analysis.  The sources utilized 

were: 

o Custom survey of over 20 Midwest/Iowa communities selected for this study 

o American Water and Wastewater Association (AWWA) Salary Survey 

o Bureau of Labor Statistics: Waterloo-Cedar Falls, IA 

o CompData Surveys for Iowa and the Midwest region 

o Willis Towers Watson Surveys:  Iowa and the Midwest region  

Based on these data sources, CDC  benchmarked 50% of the job classifications covering 60% of 

the studied employee group. CDC used these excellent data resources to develop a pay plan 

recommendation, balancing considerations of both market competitiveness and internal 

equity.   

-178-

Item G.2.i. 



 

Carlson Dettmann Consulting LLC 5 

 

Pay Plan Design 

The methodology used to develop our recommendations establishes pay range Control Points 

based upon the relationship between estimates of average market base salaries, developed 

through our market measurement process, and job evaluation scores.  This is a market “match” 

policy, contrasted with a “lag” or “lead” emphasis.  It balances both external competitiveness 

and internal equity. Classifications that were not benchmarked are grouped in ranges based 

upon similar job evaluation outcomes.  This method effectively balances consideration of both 

market and internal equity. 

The graph below shows the relationship between job evaluation scores and market estimates 

for the benchmark positions measured in our data analysis.  Visually, the data points group 

well in an orderly progression by job evaluation scores.  The correlation score for the data is 

0.94.  This is a very high correlation and means the job evaluation scores are a very reliable 

predictor of market estimates (predictive validity.  This provides the basis in data for creating a 

pay plan balanced for internal equity and market competitiveness. 

 

 

 

Translating this information into pay ranges is accomplished as follows: 

Each pay grade has a point differential.  For example, Grade 8 is 500 to 549 points, so the 

middle point value for that grade is 524.5 points.  Substituting this point value in the regression 

equation, we have y (predicted pay/pay grade midpoint) = {($0.0511 times 524.5 points) - 

y = 0.0511x - 1.2229
R² = 0.943

$10.00

$15.00

$20.00

$25.00

$30.00

$35.00

$40.00

$45.00

$50.00

$55.00

$60.00

$65.00

250 300 350 400 450 500 550 600 650 700 750 800 850 900 950 1000 1050 1100 1150 1200

M
ed

ia
n 

(5
0t

h 
Pe

rc
en

til
e)

 M
ar

ke
t E

st
im

at
e

Job Evaluation Points

City of Cedar Falls: Regression of Market Estimate on Job Evaluation

-179-

Item G.2.i. 



 

Carlson Dettmann Consulting LLC 6 

$1.2229} = $25.58 (rounded), the new Control Point for Grade 8.  Each Grade is developed 

following this method. 

How does the proposed plan policy line compare to the current pay plan?  The graph on the 

following page compares the market line with the regression (gray line) between job 

evaluation scores and Midpoints of the current plan. 

 

  

 

Essentially, the City’s current pay policy is market competitive.  The major change we are 

proposing is pay plan restructuring for greater administrative simplification and focusing on 

performance. 

One of our assignments was to conduct a high-level review of the City’s benefits program and 

its relation to market practices to inform our recommendations on pay policy.  The policy 

questions are:  If benefits costs are disproportionately high, should the City set the pay plan 

lower so total compensation is more in line?  Conversely, if benefits are low, should the City be 

paying more in salaries to offset the difference? 

Our first consideration was to determine how the major benefit categories at the City compare 

to industry and national standards.  To perform this analysis, we collected data from the City 

and compared costs with data available from the U.S. Department of Labor Bureau of Labor 

Statistics.  

The table below summarizes City benefits, as a percentage of total compensation.  It is our 

observation that the City’s benefits proportion is very similar to the benefits proportion for 

$10.00

$15.00

$20.00

$25.00

$30.00

$35.00

$40.00

$45.00

$50.00

$55.00

$60.00

$65.00

250 300 350 400 450 500 550 600 650 700 750 800 850 900 950 1000 1050 1100 1150 1200

Ho
ur
ly
	P
ay
	R
at
e

Job	Evaluation	 Points

City	of	Cedar	Falls:	Comparison	of	Current	and	Median	Market	Regression	Lines	of	Best	Fit

Market

Current

-180-

Item G.2.i. 



 

Carlson Dettmann Consulting LLC 7 

government employees, in general, and both the City and government employees typically 

have a higher benefits proportion than private industry.  This difference with private sector 

employers is what we typically see, and it is due to the emphasis on a career-based 

employment model.   

 

 

We also performed additional analysis of medical insurance expenses comparing The City’s 

medical insurance cost structure to area and market norms developed by the Kaiser Family 

Foundation (kff.org) as part of its annual survey of medical insurance practices.   

A comparative analysis is summarized in the following table. 

The City currently operates a self-funded medical insurance program, and has successfully kept 

premiums low without compromising the quality of service. As shown in the table, the 

employer contribution is a higher percentage than market norms; however, the annual cost 

per employee is still lower across all geographic sectors for both single and family coverage. 

 

-181-

Item G.2.i. 



 

Carlson Dettmann Consulting LLC 8 

Plan Type Family Premium 
Employer % 
Contribution 

Employer 
Annual Cost 

Employee 
Annual Cost 

City of Cedar Falls - PPO Plan $14,865 93.1% $13,845 $1,020 

            KFF Data for PPO Plans: 
    

National Average (Plan Type) $19,476  68.0% $13,248  $6,228  

State/Local Government $18,228  77.0% $14,040  $4,188  

Midwest $20,112  72.0% $14,484  $5,628  

     
Plan Type Single Premium 

Employer % 
Contribution 

Employer 
Annual Cost 

Employee 
Annual Cost 

City of Cedar Falls - PPO Plan $5,164  93.0% $4,804  $360  

     KFF Data for PPO Plans: 
    

National Average (Plan Type) $6,960  80.0% $5,568  $1,392  

State/Local Government $7,128  89.0% $6,348  $780  

Midwest $7,104  81.0% $5,760  $1,344  

     
     
Sources: Kaiser Family Foundation 2017 Employer Health Benefits Survey (www.kff.org) 

 

Based upon this benefits analysis both overall benefits and health benefits specifically, CDC 

does not recommend adjusting the pay plan from a “match” market policy. 

Accordingly, how should pay ranges be constructed and managed?  We have two observations 

that inform our recommendation on these matters. 

First, the City of Cedar Falls has created an efficient, economical organizational structure.  All 

activities are within four departments.  For example, police and fire services are consolidated 

into a Protective Service Department, with firefighter and police functions brought together 

into Protective Service staff positions through attrition.  In our view, this brings a high level of 

accountability and efficiency. 

Second, the City emphasizes pay-for-performance in the Management/Administration pay 

plan, making periodic performance awards based upon regular evaluations.  This, in 

combination with the consolidation of reporting into four major departments, is consistent 

with the City’s emphasis on efficiency and accountability. 

Accordingly, the pay structure should support this policy approach.  Therefore, the proposed 

plan utilizes 20 pay grades, a major reduction from the City’s current plan with over 142 pay 

grades.  Pay ranges in the new plan would have pay ranges with Minimums at 80% of the range 

-182-

Item G.2.i. 



 

Carlson Dettmann Consulting LLC 9 

Control Point and Maximums at 130%, and there would be appropriate range overlap with 

meaningful differentials between grades.   

It is our experience the current plan structure with a large number of grades encourages 

reclassification for minimal changes in responsibility.  The new plan with fewer grades and 

slightly broader ranges emphasizes pay-for-performance, rather than reclassification for 

relatively minor changes in duties. 

Our pay plan recommendation is attached to this summary.   

A measure compensation professionals use to gauge pay plan effectiveness is a statistic called 

the Compa-Ratio, or C/Ratio.  It is the relationship between a position’s (or group of positions) 

current salary and pay range Control Point.  In addition to providing pay grades with ranges, 

the attached pay plan also shows incumbent C/Ratio’s.  

Overall, assuming the recommended pay plan is implemented, the plan C/Ratio would be 

100.0%. 

Implementation 

In implementing the new plan, CDC recommends the order for consideration of adjustments 

should be as follows: 

• Positions currently paid below the Minimum of the pay range should be increased to 

the Minimum as soon as financially feasible. 

• Positions currently paid below the Midpoint should be given greatest consideration on 

future raises, assuming those persons are reasonably experienced in their positions 

and performing well. 

• The position currently paid above the range Maximum should not receive base pay 

increases until the plan is adjusted in the future for market changes and the Maximum 

exceeds current salary.  

The estimated cost of implementation is approximately $14,900 (0.19% of annual base payroll 

of approximately $7.9 million). 

In terms of plan administration, we recommend the following: 

• If a new hire has the minimum level of preparation required for the position, we 

suggest trying to stay as close to the Minimum of the range as practical. 

• It is understood that a preferred applicant can bring greater immediate value to the City 

whenever that applicant exceeds the minimum requirements.  If the requested starting 

salary would be between the Minimum and the range Control Point, it should require 

the approval of the Director of Finance and Business Operations and City Administrator. 

• In rare cases, if the preferred applicant requires a starting salary exceeding the range 

Control Point, then it should require review by the Director of Finance and Business 

Operations and final approval by the City Administrator. 

• Job Description Questionnaires should be kept current. 

• Of course, going forward, position responsibilities for individual positions will change.  If 

such changes are substantial and relatively stable, rather than temporary, it is 

important we re-evaluate position responsibilities to determine whether a pay grade 

-183-

Item G.2.i. 



 

Carlson Dettmann Consulting LLC 10 

change is warranted.  Changes that are not substantial should be a matter for 

performance review, not reclassification. 

• Finally, it will be important to keep the plan competitive; market re-pricing 

approximately every three years is good practice.  

Conclusion 

CDC believes this has been a very confirming audit of the City of Cedar Falls’s pay plan.  In 

addition, we have recommended a new pay that is simpler and easier to manage.   

Furthermore, the new pay plan is competitive, affordable, fair, legally defensible, and supports 

the City’s ability to recruit, reward, and retain qualified leaders to fulfil its mission. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-184-

Item G.2.i. 



Carlson Dettmann Consulting LLC  2/19/2018

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
RECOMMENDED 2018 WAGE STRUCTURE: OPEN RANGE PLAN

GRADE 80.00% 100.00% 130.00%
Min. C/P Max.

20 $52.22 → $65.27 → $84.85
19 $48.06 → $60.08 → $78.10
18 $43.98 → $54.97 → $71.46
17 $39.89 → $49.86 → $64.82
16 $36.82 → $46.03 → $59.84
15 $34.78 → $43.47 → $56.51
14 $32.74 → $40.92 → $53.20
13 $30.69 → $38.36 → $49.87
12 $28.65 → $35.81 → $46.55
11 $26.60 → $33.25 → $43.23
10 $24.55 → $30.69 → $39.90
9 $22.51 → $28.14 → $36.58
8 $20.46 → $25.58 → $33.25
7 $18.42 → $23.03 → $29.94
6 $16.38 → $20.47 → $26.61
5 $14.85 → $18.56 → $24.13
4 $13.82 → $17.28 → $22.46
3 $12.80 → $16.00 → $20.80
2 $10.76 → $13.45 → $17.48
1 $8.71 → $10.89 → $14.16

-185-

Item G.2.i. 



Carlson Dettmann Consulting LLC 2/19/2018

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS Effective 7/1/2018 2018 GRADE ORDER LIST: OPEN PLAN
RECOMMENDED POSITION GRADES

80.0% 100.0% 130.0%
Grade Job Title Department Minimum Control Point Maximum

20 DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CD-ADMIN $52.22 $65.27 $84.85
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS FINANCE ADMIN
DIRECTOR OF MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS & PROGRAMS PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES PUBLIC SAFETY ADMIN

19 CITY ATTORNEY LEGAL $48.06 $60.08 $78.10

18 VACANT $43.98 $54.97 $71.46

17 CITY ENGINEER ENGINEERING $39.89 $49.86 $64.82
LIBRARY DIRECTOR LIBRARY

16 ASST PUBLIC SAFETY DIRECTOR/ASST CHIEF - POLICE POLICE $36.82 $46.03 $59.84
ASST PUBLIC SAFETY DIRECTOR/CHIEF - FIRE FIRE

15 INFORMATION SYSTEMS MANAGER INFORMATION SYSTEMS $34.78 $43.47 $56.51
PUBLIC WORKS & PARKS MANAGER PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN
PLANNING & COMMUNITY SERVICES MANAGER PLANNING

14 WATER RECLAMATION MANAGER WATER RECLAMATION $32.74 $40.92 $53.20
INSPECTION SERVICES MANAGER INSPECTION SERVICES
CONTROLLER/CITY TREASURER FINANCIAL SERVICES
POLICE CAPTAIN POLICE

13 PRINCIPAL ENGINEER ENGINEERING $30.69 $38.36 $49.87
RECREATION & COMMUNITY PROGRAMS MANAGER RECREATION
V & T/CULTURAL MANAGER V & T
CITY CLERK PUBLIC RECORDS
FIRE BATTALION CHIEF FIRE

12 CABLE TV & TELECOMMUNICATIONS SUPERVISOR CABLE TV $28.65 $35.81 $46.55
PLANNER III PLANNING
SENIOR LIBRARIAN LIBRARY
POLICE LIEUTENANT POLICE
POLICE LIEUTENANT - PSO FIRE POLICE

11 BUILDING MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR PUBLIC BUILDINGS $26.60 $33.25 $43.23
FLEET MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR VEHICLE MAINTENANCE
PUBLIC WORKS & PARKS SUPERVISOR STREETS
LAND SURVEYOR ENGINEERING
TRAFFIC OPERATIONS SUPERVISOR TRAFFIC
RECREATION PROGRAM SUPERVISOR RECREATION
VIDEO PRODUCTION SUPERVISOR CABLE TV
WATER RECLAMATION SUPERVISOR WATER RECLAMATION
GIS ANALYST PLANNING
CULTURAL PROGRAMS SUPERVISOR CULTURAL
CIVIL ENGINEER II ENGINEERING
NETWORK ADMINISTRATOR INFORMATION SYSTEMS
FIRE CAPTAIN FIRE

10 PLANNER II PLANNING $24.55 $30.69 $39.90
CIVIL ENGINEER I ENGINEERING

9 ACCOUNTANT FINANCIAL SERVICES $22.51 $28.14 $36.58
FITNESS COORDINATOR RECREATION
GOLF COURSE MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR GOLF
LIBRARIAN LIBRARY
TECHNOLOGY LIBRARIAN LIBRARY
ADMINISTRATIVE SUPERVISOR PUBLIC RECORDS
STORMWATER SPECIALIST ENGINEERING
PERSONNEL SPECIALIST FINANCIAL SERVICES
INSPECTOR INSPECTION SERVICES
REC PROGRAM COORDINATOR RECREATION
ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN II ENGINEERING

-186-

Item G.2.i. 



Carlson Dettmann Consulting LLC 2/19/2018

INSPECTOR INSPECTION SERVICES

8 FINANCIAL TECHNICIAN FINANCIAL SERVICES $20.46 $25.58 $33.25
INFORMATION SYSTEMS TECHNICIAN II INFORMATION SYSTEMS
EDUCATION COORDINATOR CULTURAL
HEARST COORDINATOR CULTURAL
ARBORIST PARKS
LIBRARY EDUCATION COORDINATOR LIBRARY

7 PLANNER I PLANNING $18.42 $23.03 $29.94
GRAPHIC DESIGNER INFORMATION SYSTEMS
V & T COORDINATOR V & T
PROGRAM COORDINATOR CULTURAL
PAYROLL/HR TECHNICIAN FINANCIAL SERVICES
ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN I ENGINEERING

6 INFORMATION SYSTEMS TECHNICIAN I INFORMATION SYSTEMS $16.38 $20.47 $26.61
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT - LEAD RECREATION
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT - LEAD PUBLIC RECORDS
ADMINISTRATIVE CLERK - FINANCIAL CLERK FINANCIAL SERVICES

5 ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT PUBLIC RECORDS $14.85 $18.56 $24.13
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN
SENIOR SERVICES COORDINATOR CULTURAL

4 OFFICE ASSISTANT LIBRARY $13.82 $17.28 $22.46
OFFICE ASSISTANT CULTURAL
OFFICE ASSISTANT V & T

3 HOUSING SPECIALIST PLANNING $12.80 $16.00 $20.80
LIBRARY ASSISTANT LIBRARY

2 VACANT $10.76 $13.45 $17.48

1 LIBRARY PAGE LIBRARY $8.71 $10.89 $14.16

-187-

Item G.2.i. 



 



Carlson Dettmann Consulting LLC Last Modified: 2/27/18

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS Effective 7/1/2018 2018 GRADE ORDER LIST: OPEN PLAN
RECOMMENDED POSITION GRADES +5% Structure

80.0% 100.0% 130.0%
Grade Job Title Department Minimum Control Point Maximum

20 DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CD-ADMIN $54.82 $68.53 $89.09
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS FINANCE ADMIN
DIRECTOR OF MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS & PROGRAMS PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES PUBLIC SAFETY ADMIN

19 CITY ATTORNEY LEGAL $50.46 $63.08 $82.00

18 VACANT $46.18 $57.72 $75.04

17 CITY ENGINEER ENGINEERING $41.88 $52.35 $68.06
LIBRARY DIRECTOR LIBRARY

16 ASST PUBLIC SAFETY DIRECTOR/ASST CHIEF - POLICE POLICE $38.66 $48.33 $62.83
ASST PUBLIC SAFETY DIRECTOR/CHIEF - FIRE FIRE

15 INFORMATION SYSTEMS MANAGER INFORMATION SYSTEMS $36.51 $45.64 $59.33
PUBLIC WORKS & PARKS MANAGER PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN
PLANNING & COMMUNITY SERVICES MANAGER PLANNING

14 WATER RECLAMATION MANAGER WATER RECLAMATION $34.38 $42.97 $55.86
INSPECTION SERVICES MANAGER INSPECTION SERVICES
CONTROLLER/CITY TREASURER FINANCIAL SERVICES
POLICE CAPTAIN POLICE

13 PRINCIPAL ENGINEER ENGINEERING $32.22 $40.28 $52.36
RECREATION & COMMUNITY PROGRAMS MANAGER RECREATION
V & T/CULTURAL MANAGER V & T
CITY CLERK PUBLIC RECORDS
FIRE BATTALION CHIEF FIRE

12 CABLE TV & TELECOMMUNICATIONS SUPERVISOR CABLE TV $30.08 $37.60 $48.88
PLANNER III PLANNING
SENIOR LIBRARIAN LIBRARY
POLICE LIEUTENANT POLICE
POLICE LIEUTENANT - PSO FIRE POLICE

11 BUILDING MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR PUBLIC BUILDINGS $27.93 $34.91 $45.38
FLEET MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR VEHICLE MAINTENANCE
PUBLIC WORKS & PARKS SUPERVISOR STREETS
LAND SURVEYOR ENGINEERING
TRAFFIC OPERATIONS SUPERVISOR TRAFFIC
RECREATION PROGRAM SUPERVISOR RECREATION
VIDEO PRODUCTION SUPERVISOR CABLE TV
WATER RECLAMATION SUPERVISOR WATER RECLAMATION
GIS ANALYST PLANNING
CULTURAL PROGRAMS SUPERVISOR CULTURAL
CIVIL ENGINEER II ENGINEERING
NETWORK ADMINISTRATOR INFORMATION SYSTEMS
FIRE CAPTAIN FIRE

10 PLANNER II PLANNING $25.78 $32.22 $41.89
CIVIL ENGINEER I ENGINEERING

9 ACCOUNTANT FINANCIAL SERVICES $23.64 $29.55 $38.42
FITNESS COORDINATOR RECREATION
GOLF COURSE MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR GOLF
LIBRARIAN LIBRARY
TECHNOLOGY LIBRARIAN LIBRARY
ADMINISTRATIVE SUPERVISOR PUBLIC RECORDS
STORMWATER SPECIALIST ENGINEERING
PERSONNEL SPECIALIST FINANCIAL SERVICES
INSPECTOR INSPECTION SERVICES
REC PROGRAM COORDINATOR RECREATION
ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN II ENGINEERING

-189-

Item G.2.i. 



Carlson Dettmann Consulting LLC Last Modified: 2/27/18

INSPECTOR INSPECTION SERVICES

8 FINANCIAL TECHNICIAN FINANCIAL SERVICES $21.49 $26.86 $34.92
INFORMATION SYSTEMS TECHNICIAN II INFORMATION SYSTEMS
EDUCATION COORDINATOR CULTURAL
HEARST COORDINATOR CULTURAL
ARBORIST PARKS
LIBRARY EDUCATION COORDINATOR LIBRARY

7 PLANNER I PLANNING $19.34 $24.18 $31.43
GRAPHIC DESIGNER INFORMATION SYSTEMS
V & T COORDINATOR V & T
PROGRAM COORDINATOR CULTURAL
PAYROLL/HR TECHNICIAN FINANCIAL SERVICES
ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN I ENGINEERING

6 INFORMATION SYSTEMS TECHNICIAN I INFORMATION SYSTEMS $17.19 $21.49 $27.94
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT - LEAD RECREATION
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT - LEAD PUBLIC RECORDS
ADMINISTRATIVE CLERK - FINANCIAL CLERK FINANCIAL SERVICES

5 ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT PUBLIC RECORDS $15.59 $19.49 $25.34
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN
SENIOR SERVICES COORDINATOR CULTURAL

4 OFFICE ASSISTANT LIBRARY $14.51 $18.14 $23.58
OFFICE ASSISTANT CULTURAL
OFFICE ASSISTANT V & T

3 HOUSING SPECIALIST PLANNING $13.44 $16.80 $21.84
LIBRARY ASSISTANT LIBRARY

2 VACANT $11.26 $14.07 $18.29

1 LIBRARY PAGE LIBRARY $9.07 $11.34 $14.74

-190-

Item G.2.i. 



RESOLUTION NO. _______ 
 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE CLASSIFICATION AND 
COMPENSATION STUDY RELATIVE TO JOB CLASSIFICATIONS AND PAY GRADE 
ALLOCATIONS FOR CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council as part of the FY18 budget, authorized funding to 

perform a pay plan study since it had been several years since a formal study had been 

performed, and  

WHEREAS, a consulting firm was hired to complete the study, including a total 

benefits analysis, for all full-time and part-time positions not represented by a collective 

bargaining agreement, and  

WHEREAS, the consulting firm has completed the study and has provided a 

report and recommendation to the City Council, and  

WHEREAS, the City Council held a special work session to review the 

recommendation and discussed considering a 5% adjustment to the plan in an effort to 

be competitive in the market and be able to recruit and retain highly qualified 

employees.   

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, that the Classification and Compensation Study for employees of the City of 

Cedar Falls, as developed by Carlson Dettmann Consulting and dated February 2018, 

including the 5% market adjustment, is hereby approved and adopted. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said study, as adjusted, will become effective 

July 1, 2018.  

  

ADOPTED this 5th day of March, 2018. 

                    
                                                                                     
                                     _____________________ 

                                                                                           James P. Brown, Mayor 
                                                                                                         
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

-191-

Item G.2.i. 



 



1 

   CEDAR FALLS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 
  319-273-8612 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Council  

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  February 28, 2018 

Re: Animal Control Services Agreement 

Attached you will find an amendment to our Animal Control Agreement for FY19. The 
only changes made to the Agreement pertain to an increase in costs to average 1.5% 
over last year. The City of Waterloo provides all animal control services with the 
exception of housing of animals, which is provided by the Cedar Bend Humane Society 
(CBHS). I am recommending approval of this amendment.   

 

 

-193-

Item G.2.j. 



 



AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR ANIMAL CONTROL SERVICES 
 

This Amendment to Agreement for Animal Control Services (the “Amendment”) is 
entered into on _________________, 2018, by and between the City of Waterloo, Iowa 
(“Waterloo”) and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (“Cedar Falls”), to be effective as of July 1, 2018. 

 
RECITALS 

 
A. City and Cedar Falls are parties to a certain Agreement for Animal Control 

Services (the “Agreement”) dated as of ________________, 2015. 
 
B. The parties desire to amend the Agreement as set forth herein. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
 NOW, THERFORE, in consideration of the premises and other consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 
 1. The Agreement is amended to strike Section 8 therefrom in its entirety and to 
substitute in lieu thereof a new Section 8, as follows: 
 

 8. Fees.  Cedar Falls shall pay Waterloo in monthly installments for Basic Animal 
Services for the term of this Agreement, as follows:   

  a. A fee of $112.00 per call for each Domestic Animal call which occurs during 
Normal Business Hours, as defined in Section 7(b) of this Agreement. 

  b. A fee of $128.00 per call for each Domestic Animal call which occurs outside 
of Normal Business Hours. 

  c. A fee of $99.00 per call for each wild animal call (sick or injured wildlife 
only) which occurs during Normal Business Hours. 

  d. A fee of $110.00 per call for each wild animal call (sick or injured wildlife 
only) which occurs outside of Normal Business Hours. 

Waterloo will bill for Basic Animal Services and for other services provided under this 
Agreement on a calendar monthly basis for services provided in the preceding month, 
and Cedar Falls will remit payment within three (3) weeks of receiving Waterloo’s 
invoice.   

 
 2. The Agreement is amended to strike Section 9 therefrom in its entirety and to 
substitute in lieu thereof a new Section 9, as follows: 
 

 9. Dead Animal Pickup.  Waterloo shall promptly pick up and dispose of all dead 
Domestic Animals and wildlife found anywhere within the City of Cedar Falls when 
requested by Cedar Falls, during Normal Business Hours.  The fees for dead animal pick-
up and disposal under this Agreement shall be as follows: 
  a. A fee of $68.00 for pick-up and disposal of each dead animal other than 

deer.   

-195-

Item G.2.j. 



 2

  b. A fee of $78.00 for pick-up and disposal of each dead animal other than 
deer which occurs outside of Normal Business Hours. 

  c. A fee of $97.00 for pick-up and disposal of each dead deer. 
Calls for and pick-up of all dead animals shall only occur during Normal Business Hours. 
 
3. Except as modified by this Amendment, the Agreement shall continue unmodified 

in full force and effect.  This Amendment may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original and all of which, taken together, shall constitute one and the 
same instrument. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment to Agreement for 
Animal Control Services by their duly authorized representatives as of the date first set forth 
above. 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   CITY OF WATERLOO, IOWA 
 
 
By: ___________________________  By: ____________________________ 
       James P. Brown, Mayor           Quentin M. Hart, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: ___________________________  Attest: __________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk   Kelley Felchle, City Clerk 
 
 

-196-

Item G.2.j. 



   DEPARTMENT OF MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS & PROGRAMS 

 

PUBLIC WORKS/PARKS DIVISION 
2200 TECHNOLOGY PARKWAY 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 

     M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Mark Ripplinger, Director, Municipal Operations & Programs 

 DATE: February 20, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Pickleball Court Agreement – Black Hawk County Gaming Association 

 
Attached to this cover memo is the form of agreement with the Black Hawk 

County Gaming Association (BHCGA) regarding their commitment to grant $50,000 for 
the new Pickleball courts that will be constructed in Orchard Hill Park. 

The $50,000 award from the BHCGA will be paired with funding from the City 
($50,000) and the Pickleball league members who have raised $35,000 toward the 
project. Public Works and Parks Division staff will be responsible for managing the 
project and completing some portions of construction such as site prep and final 
landscaping. Shortly, city staff and league members will start working on the final design 
for the courts so we can solicit bids to construct the project in 2018. This project is 
shown as item #158 in the FY18 – FY23 CIP. 

The Department of Municipal Operations and Programs recommends that the 
City Council approve the agreement with the BHCGA to fund $50,000 in improvements 
for the new Pickleball courts that will be constructed in Orchard Hill Park. Please let me 
know if you have any questions. 
 

-197-

Item G.2.k. 



 



������������	
��� ��������������������������������������������������������������	����	����������	����	������������������
���������������������������
�� !�������"��������������#����$%&'()*+,-*.(/���	
���0����1�����2�3�4�	�����5�������
67&89*+6:;%<(<�,&*;.+$%&'()*+=8<>(*������������	
���0����1�����2�3�4�	�����5�������
����	���?��@AB�3���C ���D��	��������1����	������6EE.-);9*F�G��
�H����������G��
�H���������I	����������	����JAK!CLB3MMAN�CCNN���	�����������
�����1�������������O�MNLAJ 1����	��P�����5������Q%>;9-R;*-&9F�1�������1�����������3�S�������������5�����T���������U��V�	���WC3LNNWJJC��JAK!CLB3MMWA�MCW�G����U�������1�������������O�MNLAJ����4� �O����	����� ����������MNNNN�NN-199-

Item
 G

.2.k. 



�����������������	��
���������
�������������������
��	������������������������������ !"#�$%&!'("�)*�'+(�,-&./�0&1/�23 !'*�4&56!$�7##3.6&'63!�#+&--�)(� #("�)*�'+(�$%&!'((�16'+6!�89�53!'+#�3:�'+(�3::6.6&-�; )-6.�&!!3 !.(5(!'<� !-(##�3'+(%16#(�#;(.6:6("�3%&$%(("�'3�&'�'+(�'65(�3:�'+(�$%&!'�&1&%"<�3%�)*�# )#(= (!'�&.'63!�3:�'+(�,-&./�0&1/�23 !'*�4&56!$�7##3.6&'63!>�?%3@(.'#�5 #'�)(�#'&%'("�&!"�.35;-('("�3!�'65(�&!"�.35;-('("�&#;%(#(!'(">��&6- %(�'3�"3�#3�5&*�)(�.& #(�:3%�'+(�,3&%"�'3�# #;(!"�: ' %(�;&*5(!'#�&!"�"(5&!"�%(: !"�3:�;&*5(!'#�%(!"(%(">�7�%(= (#'�:3%�&!�(A'(!#63!�5 #'�)(�# )56''("�'3�'+(,-&./�0&1/�23 !'*�4&56!$�7##3.6&'63!�6!�1%6'6!$�;%63%�'3�'+(�(A;6%&'63!�"&'(�#;(.6:*6!$�B&-6"�%(&#3!#>������C�C��D���E
�������F�������G��H��F��I��H��J��K�	����
���H������������	��F�����
������L��
��
�M�K��������������L������K��	��
�����N����O�P������	��F�����
������������������Q������	H��
�������F��
����
�H�F��
����������N����G��������F��HG��RH��������
������FL�����HF���GH��������M���F�����������L�F����������L����������N�����������������������
�����F��M�H���������������	��
������������L��
����������
�������M���K�����	K��
��S���T�U��T�V�H��K���M��������������Q�E
��S���F�M�K��
�����
������F��M�H��F����F���H�����
������HM����������������FQ�����E����VW��X��D��Y��E��Z+(�4%&!'((�16--�&./!31-("$(�'+(�.3!'%6) '63!�3:�,-&./�0&1/�23 !'*�4&56!$�7##3.6&'63!�'3�'+(�;%3$%&5�3%�;%3@(.'�1+(%(B(%�&!"�1+(!(B(%�&;;%3;%6&'(>�Z+6#�16--�6!.- "(<�) '�!3')(�-656'("�'3�!(1#�%(-(&#(#<�.3!#'% .'63!�#6$!&$(<�;-&= (#�:3%�;%3@(.'�#6'(#<�"(.&-#<�)%3.+ %(�3%�;%3$%&5#<�('.>�[�3%�(A&5;-(\�Z+6#�;%3$%&5�;%3@(.'�5&"(�;3##6)-(�)*�: !"#.3!'%6) '("�)*�'+(�,-&./�0&1/�23 !'*�4&56!$�7##3.6&'63!]>�?-(&#(�# )56'�.3;6(#�3:�'+(#(�&./!31-("$(5(!'#�'3�'+(�,-&./�0&1/�23 !'*�4&56!$�7##3.6&'63!̂ :3%�53%(6!:3%5&'63!�;-(&#(�%(:(%�'3�'+(�_̀ abcdcefgh̀ cij�E�k��E�E����Z+(�$%&!'((�#+&--�)(�&�; )-6.�(!'6'*�3%�lm8.n�'&A�(A(5;'�(!'6'*�&'�'+(�'65(�3:�'+(�&1&%">��oY��E��C�����E��X��D��Z3�%(.(6B(�;&*5(!'<�"3. 5(!'&'63!�3:�'+(�(A;(!"6' %(�3:�'+(�: !"#<�&..(;'&)-(�'3�,-&./�0&1/�23 !'*�4&56!$�7##3.6&'63!�5 #'�)(�# )56''(">�p:�'+(�$%&!'�6#�:3%�.&;6'&-�3%�3'+(%; %.+&#("�#(%B6.(#<�6!B36.(#�3%�#6$!("�&..(;'("�)6"#q.3!'%&.'#<�&..(;'&)-(�'3�,-&./�0&1/�23 !'*�4&56!$�7##3.6&'63!�5 #'�)(�# )56''("�'3�3)'&6!�;&*5(!'>�p:�'+(�$%&!'�.3B(%#.3!# -'&!'�&!"�3%q.3!'%&.'("�#(%B6.(#<�# )56'�&�#'&'(5(!'<�&..(;'&)-(�'3�,-&./�0&1/�23 !'*�4&56!$�7##3.6&'63!<�B(%6:*6!$�'+&'�'+(�#(%B6.(#�1(%(�;%3B6"("�&!"�6'(56r(�'+((A;(!#(�6!. %%(">�Z+(�)6--6!$�5 #'�)(�#6$!("�)*�&!�& '+3%6r("�&$(!'�3:�'+(�3%$&!6r&'63!�&!"�.3!'&6!�'+(�$%&!'�! 5)(%�-6#'("�&)3B(>����V����V��D�E�����,6--6!$�5 #'�)(�# )56''("�'3�,-&./�0&1/�23 !'*�4&56!$�7##3.6&'63!�16'+6!�sm�"&*#�3:�'+(�.35;-('63!�3:�'+(�89�53!'+�$%&!'�;(%63"�3%�#33!(%�6:�'+(�$%&!'�: !"#�+&B(�)((!�#;(!'>?-(&#(�#(!"�%(= (#'#�:3%�;&*5(!'�1+6.+�5 #'�6!.- "(�B(!"3%�6!B36.([#]�3%�.3!'%&.'[#]�#6$!("�)*�)3'+�;&%'6(#�'3\p�&$%((�'3�'+(�&)3B(�p�&$%((�'3�'+(�&)3B(�p�&$%((�'3�'+(�&)3B(�p�&$%((�'3�'+(�&)3B(�p�&$%((�'3�'+(�&)3B(�8lm<mmm
-200-

Item
 G

.2.k. 



������������	
��������������	
��������������������������������������������������  !�"#���"���$���%���%������&'()*+,-./01*2*/03-456((7(028�9#��������$
�"����"��������$�������:��������������������"�����
�;��������$#������"���
�����%��#�$��<������=�>?4@ABB-BCB.A?D@E.-&E>@4AF?B8�>?4@ABB-&E>@4AF?B-G4AB8���#��������������<��������#��������$
�"����"��������$�-201-

Item
 G

.2.k. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 
 
 DATE: February 27, 2017 
 
 SUBJECT: 2017 Street Restoration Project 
  Project No. RS-000-3125 
  Project Final Out 
 
 
The 2017 Street Restoration Project is complete and ready for final acceptance. This 
project reconstructed and resurfaced portions of ten (10) streets and one (1) public 
alleys within Cedar Falls.  The project was under contract with Aspro, Inc of Waterloo, 
Iowa. Attached please find the following final documents: 
 

 Final Pay Estimate (releases retainage) 

 Copy of Maintenance Bond, Aspro, Inc.  
 
 
The following lien wavers have been received and reviewed by the Engineering Division 
and forwarded to the City Clerk's Office: 

A) ASPRO Subcontractors and Subcontractor Material Suppliers: 
- B&B Builders & Supply  

o Manatts Inc. 
o Stetson Building Products, Inc 

- Iowa Plains & Signing 
- K. Cunningham Construction 

o Benton’s Ready Mix Concrete 
- Manatt’s, Inc. 
- Matthias Landscaping 

o Oleson Sod Co. 
- Meli, LLC 

o Bentons Concrete, Inc 
o Utility Equipment Co. 

- Peterson Contractors, Inc. 
o BMC Aggregates  

-203-

Item G.2.l. 



o Coleman Moore Company 
o Northern Iowa Construction Products 
o Triple D Enterprises 
o Utility Equipment Co. 

- Service Signing L.C. 
- W.K. Construction 

 
B) ASPRO Material Suppliers : 

- BMC Aggregates 
- Bituminous Material and Supply 
- Utility Equipment Company 
 

 
This project was funded primarily by the Local Option Sales Tax fund. Following is a 
breakdown of final contract costs for items that were not funded by the Local Option 
Sales Tax and the funding sources:  
 

Alley Cost, $50,637.75 ; Road Use Tax 
 
Center Street Bike Trail Repairs, $10,965.30 ; Public Assistance Fund 404 
 

I certify that the public improvements for the 2017 Street Restoration Project were 
completed in reasonable compliance with the project plans and specifications. 
 
       
  

                                          2/27/18                 
      Chase Schrage                     Date 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
 Lisa Roeding, CMFO, Controller/City Treasurer 

 
 

-204-

Item G.2.l. 



-205-

Item G.2.l. 



 



-207-

Item G.2.l. 



-208-

Item G.2.l. 



-209-

Item G.2.l. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 

 DATE: February 26, 2017 

 SUBJECT: 2017 Seal Coat Project 

  City Project Number SC-000-3137 

  Final Acceptance  

The 2017 Seal Coat Project is completed and ready for final acceptance. This project 
seal coat overlaid several existing city streets and parking lots. The project was under 
contract with Blacktop Service Co. of Humboldt, Iowa. Attached please find the following 
final documents: 
 
• Final Pay Estimate (releases retainage) 
 
The following documents have been received and reviewed by the Engineering Division 
and forwarded to the City Clerk's Office: 
 

A) Suppliers: 
- Bituminous Materials & Supply  

- BMC Aggregates L.C. 

B) Subcontractors: 
- C&J Construction 
- Service Signing L.C. 

 
Following is a breakdown of final contract costs for items that were not funded by the 
Local Option Sales Tax and the funding sources: 
 

 Public Works and Parks Division parking lots funded by the Streets Construction 
Fund, $19,156.28  

 
I certify that the public improvements for the 2017 Seal Coat Project were completed in 
reasonable compliance with the project plans and specifications. 
 
 

              ______________________2/26/18__ 
     Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor         Date 
 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
 Lisa Roeding, CMFO, Controller/City Treasurer       

-211-

Item G.2.m. 



 



-213-

Item G.2.m. 



 



-215-

Item G.2.m. 



-216-

Item G.2.m. 



-217-

Item G.2.m. 



-218-

Item G.2.m. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 
 
 DATE: February 26, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: 2018 Street Construction Project 
  Project No. RC-000-3141 
  Contract Documents 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract, the Performance, Payment, and 
Maintenance Bonds, Certificates of Insurance, and Form of Proposal with Peterson 
Contractors Inc. for the construction of the 2018 Street Construction Project. 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends approving and executing the 
contract with Peterson Contractors Inc. for the construction of the 2018 Street 
Construction Project. This project will reconstruct 4.60 miles of City streets with new 
P.C.C. pavement and associated watermain, subgrade and drainage work. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz,  Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, City Engineer 
 
 
 
 

-219-

Item G.2.n. 



 



-221-

Item G.2.n. 



-222-

Item G.2.n. 



-223-

Item G.2.n. 



-224-

Item G.2.n. 



-225-

Item G.2.n. 



-226-

Item G.2.n. 



-227-

Item G.2.n. 



-228-

Item G.2.n. 



-229-

Item G.2.n. 



-230-

Item G.2.n. 



-231-

Item G.2.n. 



-232-

Item G.2.n. 



-233-

Item G.2.n. 



-234-

Item G.2.n. 



-235-

Item G.2.n. 



-236-

Item G.2.n. 



-237-

Item G.2.n. 



-238-

Item G.2.n. 



-239-

Item G.2.n. 



-240-

Item G.2.n. 



-241-

Item G.2.n. 



-242-

Item G.2.n. 



-243-

Item G.2.n. 



-244-

Item G.2.n. 



-245-

Item G.2.n. 



-246-

Item G.2.n. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: March 1, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: University Ave Bioretention Cells 
  Project No. ST-115-3147 
  Black Hawk Soil and Water Conservation District 
  IDALS Division of Soil Conservation 
  Contract for Financial Assistance Grant 
 
 
The attached Financial Assistance Application is for the University Ave Bioretention Cell 
project between the City of Cedar Falls and Black Hawk Soil and Water Conservation 
District.  
 
This project is in coordination with Black Hawk Soil and Water conservation, IDALS 
Division of Soil Conservation, and Cedar Falls High School’s Center for Advanced 
Professional Studies program. The University Ave Bioretention Cell project will 
implement practices to benefit the Dry Run Creek through decreased runoff, sediments 
and other contaminants carried by storm runoff.  
 
Upon approval of the Financial Assistance Application, Black Hawk Soil and Water 
Conservation District will provide up to 75% of the total cost and 25% will be paid by the 
City from the Storm Water Fund. 
 
The Engineering Division recommends approving of this item and signing the contract 
for Financial Assistance with the Black Hawk Soil and Water Conservation District. 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
 
 

-247-

Item G.2.o. 



 



-249-

Item G.2.o. 



-250-

Item G.2.o. 



-251-

Item G.2.o. 



-252-

Item G.2.o. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 
 

 DATE: February 28, 2018 

SUBJECT: Asbestos Abatement – Contract Documents 
 216 Iowa Street 
 
 
As Council may recall, the City condemned the dwelling and structures at 216 Iowa Street 
last November. The owner was given until February 5, 2018 to abate the nuisance by repair 
or removal of the structures. As of that date, the dwelling and structures still remain on the 
property. After the deadline, the City scheduled an asbestos inspection. Upon inspection of 
these structures, asbestos containing material was identified, quantified, and will need to be 
removed prior to demolition. 
 
Advanced Environmental Testing and Abatement, Inc. of Waterloo, Iowa submitted a bid in 
the total amount of $1,000 to remove and dispose the asbestos material. Funding for 
asbestos removal and subsequent demolition of this property is identified in the current City 
of Cedar Falls’ Capital Improvements Program under Code Enforcement, Property Clean-up 
and Condemnation. 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract and Certificate of Insurance from 
Advanced Environmental Testing and Abatement, Inc. 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends approving and executing the 
contract with Advanced Environmental Testing and Abatement, Inc for the asbestos 
abatement of the dwelling and structures at 216 Iowa Street. It is anticipated that asbestos 
removal will be completed this month and then staff will proceed with demolition bids. 
  
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Property Owner 

-253-

Item G.2.p. 



-254-

Item G.2.p. 



-255-

Item G.2.p. 



-256-

Item G.2.p. 



02/26/2018

Brummel Madsen & Associates

318 Main Street

P.O. Box 399

Cedar Falls IA 50613

Cathy Wigant

(319)266-2644 (319)277-2429

cathyw@brummelmadsen.com

Advanced Environmental Testing & Abatement, Inc

803 Ricker St.

Waterloo IA 50703

Crum & Forster

Western National Insurance

2/18 IA IL MN

A

Asbestos

Contractors Pollution

Professional Liability

Y Y EPK-118939 09/13/2017 09/13/2018

2,000,000

100,000

5,000

2,000,000

5,000,000

5,000,000

Transportation Occ 1,000,000

B Y CPP1013320 02/28/2018 02/28/2019

1,000,000

A

10,000

Y EFX-108622 (Liab & WC) 09/13/2017 09/13/2018

5,000,000

5,000,000

B Y WCV1001609 09/13/2017 09/13/2018
1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

B
Umbrella Liab
Retention $10,000 UMB1016518 (Auto) 02/28/2018 02/28/2019

Each Occurrence $3,000,000

Aggregate $3,000,000

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all its employees and volunteers, all its board, commissions
and/or authorities and their board members, employees and volunteers are an Additional Insured on the General Liability policy on a primary
and non-contributory basis.  Governmental Immunities Endorsement including 30 day notice of cancellation included.  Waiver of Subrogation
under the Workers Compensation and General Liability are included.

City of Cedar Falls Dept of Community Development

220 Clay St

Cedar Falls IA 50613

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

-257-

Item G.2.p. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

  

 TO: Mayor and Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: March 1, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Pinnacle Ridge Minor Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Review and approve the Pinnacle Ridge Minor Plat. 

PETITIONER: 
 

KBKR Investments, LLC, Owners; Helland Engineering and Surveying, 
Surveyor 
 

LOCATION: 
 

Southwest Corner of Green Creek Road and Prairie Dock Road 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
It is proposed consolidate Lots 19, 20, and 21 
Pinnacle Ridge First and create two lots. The 
newly created Parcel M and N would be available 
for a new residential unit on both lots. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Final Plat for Pinnacle Ridge First was 
approved by the City Council on February 6, 
2017. This plat includes a mixture of single unit 
homes (Lots 3-45) along with townhomes (Lots 
1-2) and professional/commercial uses (Lot 46).  
The plat identifies the building setbacks drawn on 
each lot. These setbacks satisfy the MU district 
standards of 20 feet, front yard and 30 feet rear 
yard. The side yard setbacks are 10 feet on each 
side. All utility easements run along the front and 
back lot line. There are no side lot utility 
easements on the lots in question. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The property is currently zoned MU, mixed use 
residential. This subdivision has activity with the 

 
Pinnacle Ridge First 

-259-

Item G.2.q. 



construction of several homes along 
Green Creek Road and Wild Flower 
Lane. This consolidation and 
reconfiguration of the originally platted 
Lots 19, 20 and 21 conforms to all 
zoning requirements. Normally, when 
staff receives a survey of this type, 
review by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and City Council is not 
necessary since the plat does not 
create a new lot. Under this 
consideration, the platted building lines 
or building setbacks identified with a 
red dash line on the figure to the right create an issue with merging these lot lines. Essentially, 
the lot lines can change, but the platted building lines stay the same. Therefore, a new plat for 
these three lots is needed to eliminate the platted building lines from the original plat. 
 
Parcel M is created from the west half of Lot 
20 and all of Lot 21. Parcel N is the east half 
of Lot 20 and all of Lot 19. The existing lots 
are approximately 95 feet wide and the 
proposed lots are approximately 142 feet 
wide. The petitioner has a couple of buyers 
for these two lots that are planning to build a 
single unit dwelling on each lot. A deed of 
dedication for this minor plat has been 
submitted. There is an 8-foot drainage 
easement along the east 95 feet of Parcel N.  
That drainage easement cannot be 
encumbered with any structure, fence or 
landscaping. 
 
This property is not located in the 100 year 
floodplain district. All submittal requirements 
have been met. A courtesy notice has been 
sent to property owners within 200 feet of this 
plat. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls 
Utilities (CFU) personnel, identified revisions 
needed to the submittal. Water, electric, gas, and communications utility services are available 
in accordance with the service policies of CFU. The three original lots already have water 
services stubbed into them. Since lot 20 is split, the water service must be plugged at the water 
main at the owner’s expense. The electric services have also been run into these lots with 
secondary electric cabling running along the front of lot 20. All of these modifications can be 
completed but would be the cost of the developer or land owners. 
 
 
 

 

 
Pinnacle Ridge Minor Plat 

-260-

Item G.2.q. 



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
2/28/2018 

Chair Oberle introduced this item and asked staff to present the minor plat. 
Planner David Sturch provided some background information on the plat. It is 
proposed to reconfigure three lots on Green Creek Road into two lots for new 
single family dwellings. All plat details satisfy the ordinance requirements.  
 
There were no comments and the commission approved the Pinnacle Ridge 
Minor Plat.  

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the Pinnacle Ridge Minor 
Plat. 

-261-

Item G.2.q. 



D
A

IN
A

 D
R

D
E

E
N

A
 D

R

RP

P
R

A
IR

I E
 P

K
W

Y

BLUEGRASS CIR

BLUEGRASS CIR

BLUEGRASS CT

O
S

T
E

R
 P

K
W

Y

FAITHWAY DR

MU

Park
School

E
A

S
T
 P

A
R

K
 R

D

B
R

IA
R

W
O

O
D

 D
R

K
N

O
L
L
 R

ID
G

E
 D

R

STANW
O
O
D DR

M
AUCKER RD

C
R

E
S

T
V

IE
W

 D
R

M
A
R
Y
H
IL
L 
D
R

 

 

VALLEY HIGH DR
L
A

T
H

A
M

 P
L

M
ELEN

DY LAN
E

 

GREEN HILL DR

 

 

R
O

W
N

D
 S

T

O
R

C
H

A
R

D
 H

IL
L
 D

R

J
E

N
N

IF
E

R
 L

N

BRIARWOOD DR

B
R

IA
R

W
O

O
D

H
IL

L
S

 D
R

RP

R-2

R-4

A-1

R-1

R-1

Pinnacle Ridge Minor Plat

1
Location
Map

Cedar Falls City Council
March 5, 2018

-262-

Item G.2.q. 



-263-

Item G.2.q. 



-264-

Item G.2.q. 



-265-

Item G.2.q. 



-266-

Item G.2.q. 



1 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 
  Jon Resler, PE, City Engineer 
 

 DATE: February 28, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls Preliminary Plat 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 

Request to approve the Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls Preliminary 
Plat 
 

PETITIONER: CF Gateway Park, Inc., Owner; Shive-Hattery, Engineer; Russell 
Construction, Contractor 
 

LOCATION: 
 

46 acre parcel at the northeast corner of Hudson Road and W Ridgeway 
Avenue 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
It is proposed to create six (6) lots zoned HWY-1 Highway Commercial District for commercial 
development on a 46-acre parcel in southwestern Cedar Falls. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-267-

Item G.2.r. 



2 
 

BACKGROUND 
This 46-acre property has been utilized as farm ground for as far back as City records go, and 
was purchased by the applicant in the fall of 2017 with the intent of developing it into lots for 
potential commercial and office uses.  
 
ANALYSIS 
The subdivision plat is located on 46 acres of land in the southwest portion of Cedar Falls. 
Cyber Lane will be a new north/south street that connects the subdivision to Technology 
Parkway to the north and W Ridgeway Avenue to the south. Commerce Drive will be extended 
from Chancellor Drive to the west through the subdivision and will connect into Cyber Lane. 
Waterway Avenue will extend from the north through the plat and connect with W Ridgeway 
Avenue to the south. And Gateway Lane will be a new road that connects from Commerce Drive 
to W Ridgeway Avenue. All of the new streets within the development will be constructed as 31-
foot wide public streets. The original submittal that the Commission reviewed on January 10, 
2018 showed a roundabout at the intersection of Commerce Drive and Cyber Lane. This has 
been revised to remove the roundabout and replace it with a standard “t” intersection. This was 
done in part because the intersection of Cyber Lane and W Ridgeway Avenue was requested by 
City staff to move further to the east in order to keep the intersection further away from Hudson 
Road. Because this intersection moved approximately 150 feet to the east, the intersection of 
Gateway Lane and W Ridgeway Avenue also moved 150 feet to the east as well. The location 
of the intersection of Waterway Avenue and W Ridgeway Avenue remains unchanged. 
 
The six lots range in size from 3.37 acres to 9.79 acres. There is one tract (Tract B) shown for 
storm water detention purposes, with several other detention areas shown on the individual lots. 
All lots, except for Lot 1, would gain access from the new interior streets and not from W 
Ridgeway Avenue or Hudson Road. Lot 1, which the applicant has submitted a site plan for, 
would include 2 right-in/right-out accesses onto Hudson Road. Development within this 
subdivision will include a site plan review by the Planning & Zoning Commission and City 
Council for each proposed use, as the property is zoned HWY-1 Highway Commercial District.  
 
A future trail connection along Hudson Road and W Ridgeway Avenue is also shown. An 
existing trail is located along W Ridgeway Avenue, and ends at the roundabout at the 
intersection of W Ridgeway Avenue and Chancellor Drive. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, gas 
and communication services are available to the site. The developer will be responsible for 
extending the utility services to the proposed development. The easements identified on the plat 
satisfy CFU requirements. 
 
The plat shows 3 full accesses onto W Ridgeway Avenue. At Cyber Lane, there currently exists 
a median within W Ridgeway Avenue that will need to be removed in order to gain access. At 
Gateway Avenue, there was a median cross-over to gain access to the road; however, the 
intersection is being moved approximately 150 feet to the east, so the existing median cross-
over will need to be closed, and a new cross-over constructed where the location of the new 
intersection will be located. Waterway Avenue already has a median cross-over, and no 
changes are being made to that intersection location. It should be noted that left turn lanes will 
also be needed at these intersections in order for traffic to turn onto these streets from W 
Ridgeway Avenue. The developer is responsible for installing the median cross-overs where 

-268-

Item G.2.r. 



3 
 

necessary, closing the existing median cross-over, and installing the left turn lanes, as these 
intersections develop. 
 
Although the accesses from W Ridgeway Avenue are shown as typical intersections, staff has 
been working with the developer to provide additional right of way for two potential roundabouts. 
These would be located at the intersection of Cyber Lane and W Ridgeway Avenue, and at the 
intersection of Waterway Avenue and W Ridgeway Avenue. The plat has been updated to 
provide this additional right of way at these two intersections in the event that a roundabout 
would be constructed. 
 
All necessary infrastructure will be extended to serve the subdivision, including a public water 
main, storm sewer and sanitary sewer. Water mains will be extended along W Ridgeway 
Avenue and Hudson Road, and from Commerce Drive and Technology Parkway. A 15” Sanitary 
sewer will extend along Hudson Road south to the corner of W Ridgeway Avenue. An 8” main 
will extend between Lots 1 and 2 and will connect in with Cyber Lane and over to Commerce 
Drive. Also, 8” sanitary sewer mains will be located within Gateway Avenue, Waterway Avenue 
and Commerce Drive, which will head north through Waterway Avenue to tie into an existing 
main located within Technology Parkway. Storm sewers are located within the public right-of-
way, and will collect storm water runoff from the streets to several regional detention basins 
located on Lots 1, 2 and 3, and Tract B. Gas, electric and fiber optic service are also included in 
this subdivision.  
 
A storm water management plan has been submitted and reviewed for this plat. The plan for the 
storm water will be collected via intakes along the new streets and directed to several regional 
detention basins. These basins are located on the north side of Lot 1, the north side of Lot 2, the 
east side of Lot 3, and all of Tract B. The developer is planning on phasing this development, 
where only the approximate west half of the 46-acre parcel would be final graded at this time. 
This would call for the construction of detention basins A and B right away, with basins C and D 
being constructed at a later time. There have been some minor technical comments from our 
Engineering Department regarding the stormwater management plan, and the developer has 
answered those questions to the satisfaction of the City.  
 
A wetland delineation report has been submitted for this plat, which shows several areas of 
wetlands on or near the property. There is a wetland area shown along the ditch along the east 
side of Hudson Road adjacent to the property, an area at the east end of Lot 3 where storm 
water detention basin C is located, and a very small area located at the southeast corner of Lot 
5. The developer’s engineer has submitted an application to the Iowa DNR and US Army Corps 
of Engineers to determine if the wetland areas need to be mitigated or not as part of this 
development. Any applicable permits from all regulation authorities must be submitted prior to 
final stormwater management approval during the final plat approval process. 
 
A traffic impact study has been submitted and reviewed for this plat, with several 
comments/questions noted by the City Engineer. Those comments/questions were given back 
to the developer’s traffic engineer, who has made some changes to the report based on the 
feedback from the City Engineer. A revised report has been resubmitted, to the satisfaction of 
the City Engineer. 
 
City zoning staff notes that the proposed lots appear to be of sufficient lot area to meet the 
anticipated development plans. The HWY-1 District requires a 20-foot setback along the 

-269-

Item G.2.r. 



4 
 

perimeter of the district and interior street network. Buildings and parking lots must be located 
outside this setback area. A more detailed site plan for these lots will be presented to the 
Commission in the coming months once they are proposed to be developed. 
 
The property is located outside of the designated 100-year floodplain.   
 
Approval of a Preliminary Plat allows the developer to proceed with the construction and 
installation of all required public infrastructure such as streets, sewers and other utilities. The 
platting documents including the Deed of Dedication, proof of ownership, and a plat fee of 
$300.00 have been submitted. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the preliminary plat of 
Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
1/10/2018 

Acting Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Graham provided background 
information. Staff answered brief questions by the Commission regarding the 
traffic study and turn lanes, as well as curb cuts. The item was continued to the 
next meeting. 

 
Vote 
2/14/2018 

Mr. Graham indicated that there have been some slight modifications to the plat 
since the last P&Z Commission meeting, which included changing a roundabout 
to a T-intersection as well as moving Gateway Lane and the median 150 ft. to 
the east.  
 
Mr. Holst asked about the roundabout and why it would be necessary. Mr. 
Graham stated that they are looking to the future and trying to prepare the 
access for more traffic. Mr. Leeper noted the future traffic projections on West 
Ridgeway and asked if there are too many access locations. Mr. Graham stated 
that the City Engineer felt that it would not be a problem. 
 
Ms. Saul asked if the recreation trail will have any connections to anything else 
along Hudson Road. Mr. Graham explained that there are no immediate plans to 
go any further north but the city would investigate it for future development. 
 
Mr. Holst made a motion to approve. Ms. Saul seconded the motion. The motion 
was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Adkins, Arntson, Giarusso, Hartley, 
Holst, Leeper, Oberle and Saul), and 0 nays. 
 

 

-270-

Item G.2.r. 



-271-

Item G.2.r. 



-272-

Item
 G

.2.r. 



-273-

Item
 G

.2.r. 



-274-

Item
 G

.2.r. 



-275-

Item
 G

.2.r. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by and Return to: Jennifer Belby, PC, 4600 E. 53

rd
 Street, Davenport, IA 52807, (563) 459-4600             

(Space above this line for recording purposes) 

  

DEED OF DEDICATION 

OF 

GATEWAY BUSINESS PARK AT CEDAR FALLS FIRST ADDITION 
IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 

 
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:  

That, Cedar Falls Gateway Park, Inc., with its principal office in Independence, Iowa, being 

desirous of setting and platting into lots and streets the land described in the attached 

Certificate of Survey by VJ Engineering, a licensed land surveyor, dated the _____ day of 

_____________, 2017, does by these presents designate and set apart the aforesaid premises 

as a subdivision of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, the same to be known as  

  
GATEWAY BUSINESS PARK AT CEDAR FALLS FIRST ADDITION 
IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 

 
all of which is with the free consent and the desire of the undersigned, and the undersigned 

does hereby designate and set apart for public use the streets and avenues as shown upon the 

attached plat.  

EASEMENTS  

The owner does hereby grant and convey to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its successors and 

assigns, and to any private corporation, firm or person furnishing utilities for the transmission 

and/or distribution of water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, drain tile, surface drainage, gas, 

electricity, communication services or cable television, perpetual easements for the erection, 

laying, building, and maintenance of said services over, across, on and/or under the property as 

shown on the attached plat. 

  

-276-

Item G.2.r. 



RESTRICTIONS  

  

Be it also known that the undersigned does hereby covenant and agree for itself and its 

successors and assigns that each and all of the lots in said subdivision be and the same are 

hereby made subject to the following restrictions upon their use and occupancy as fully and 

effectively to all intents and purposes as if the same were contained and set forth in each deed 

of conveyance or mortgage that the undersigned or its successors in interest may hereinafter 

make for any of said lots and that such restrictions shall run with the land and with each 

individual lot thereof of for length of time and in all particulars hereinafter started to wit:  

  

I. DEFINITIONS.  

  

For the purpose of this Declaration, the following terms shall have the following definitions, 

except as otherwise specifically provided:  

  

A. “Plat” shall mean and refer to the real property described as Lot 1, Gateway Business Park at 

Cedar Falls First Addition in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa.  

  

B. “Declarant” shall mean and refer to Cedar Falls Gateway Park, Inc. 

  

C. “Lot” shall mean and refer to an individual parcel of land within the Plat.  

  

D. “Owner” shall mean and refer to the record owner, whether one or more persons or entities, 

of the legal or equitable title to any Lot that is a part of the Plat.  

  

E. “City” shall mean the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  

  

II. DESIGNATION OF USE.  

  

All Lots shall be known and described as commercial or neighborhood commercial lots and shall 

not be improved, used or occupied for other than those purposes. Commercial activity may be 

conducted on any Lot or in any structure constructed or maintained on any Lot as permitted 

under the terms of the zoning ordinance of the City. The authority to enforce the restrictions and 

easements set forth herein shall be vested in the Declarant.   

 

III. BUILDING TYPES.  

  

The development of the subdivision shall be in accordance with the current zoning district 

classification set forth in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, zoning ordinance.  

  

IV. BUILDING AREA DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION.  

All buildings erected on any Lot in the subdivision shall be construed in accordance with the 

Building, Plumbing, and Electrical Codes of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  

-277-

Item G.2.r. 



  

The Declarant, its successors or assigns, shall have the right to review and approve all building 

and site plan designs, including, but not limited to, location of access, drives, landscaping, and 

other improvements. All plans and specifications for structures to be built on any Lot in the 

subdivision, shall be submitted in writing to and approved in writing by the Declarant or its 

authorized agent or agents. All buildings on any Lot in the subdivision shall be kept in a 

reasonable state of repair and upkeep.  

  

V. EASEMENTS.  

  

Easements for installation and maintenance of utilities and drainage facilities, and sewer, are 

reserved as shown on the Plat as recorded.  The Owner of each Lot, shall, at the expense of 

such Owner, maintain, keep, and preserve that portion of the easement within the Lot at all 

times in good repair and condition and shall neither erect nor permit erection of any building, 

structure, fence or other improvement of any kind within the easement areas (except customary 

ground cover) which might interfere in any way with the use, maintenance, replacement, 

inspection or patrolling of any of the utility services, drainage facilities and pedestrian trail, within 

such easements areas.  Any berm and/or swale constructed for drainage purposes shall be 

preserved and maintained to accomplish the purposes for which it was constructed.  

  

VI. NUISANCE.  

  

No noxious or offensive activity or odors shall be permitted on or to escape from any Lot, nor 

shall anything be done thereon which is or may become an annoyance or a nuisance, either 

temporarily or permanently.  

  

VII. SIGNS.  

  

Any signs erected on any Lot in the subdivision shall be constructed in accordance with the Sign 

Ordinance of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and subject to the review and approval of Declarant.  

  

VIII. UTILITIES.  

  

Except for necessary above ground utility devices, all utility lines shall be underground.  

 

IX. CURBLINE MAINTENANCE.   

 

The Owner and/or occupant of each Lot shall jointly and severally be responsible to keep in 

good order or to maintain the area between the curbline and the property line abutting their 

property including keeping said area free of holes, pitfalls, stumps of trees, fences, brick, stone, 

cement, stakes, posts or rods to which a metal, plastic or similar receptacle designed to hold 

newspapers are affixed, private irrigation or sprinkler systems, retaining walls, landscaping 

brick, block, stone, timber or other similar material, or any other similar obstructions.  

 

-278-

Item G.2.r. 



X. MAINTENANCE.  

  

The Owner and/or occupant of each Lot shall be responsible to keep the same free of trash, 

weeds and debris and to keep the lawn and landscaping well maintained in accordance with 

governing ordinances. The Owner and/or occupant of each Lot shall be responsible to maintain 

the exterior of any structure and all other improvements.  

  

XI. SURFACE WATER.  

  

The topography of the Plat is such that the surface water may flow from certain Lots onto other 

Lots.  In regard to all matters concerning surface water, each Lot shall be subject to an 

benefited by such easements as may exist from the flowage of surface water under the laws of 

the State of Iowa, as may be in effect from time to time; and all Owners shall have such rights 

and obligations with respect thereto as may be provided by such laws.  

  

XII. DEVIATION BY AGREEMENT.  

  

The Declarant hereby reserves the right to enter into agreements with the purchaser of any Lot 

in the subdivision to deviate from any and all of these restrictive covenants and any such 

deviation (which shall be manifested by an agreement in writing) shall not constitute a waiver of 

the particular covenant involved or any other as to the remaining Plat. Such deviation shall be 

reasonably consistent with the purpose of these restrictions, and provide that the requested 

deviation is in the best interest of the part or parts of the Plat and the variance requested is 

compatible with the character of the Plat.  

 

Whenever, in the exercise of its discretion, the Declarant grants a deviation, each Owner of a 

Lot hereby acknowledges that such variance shall constitute a waiver of any conflicting 

provisions of these restrictions and this Declaration. Each Owner of a Lot appoints the Declarant 

as its true and lawful attorney-in-fact for the limited purpose of consenting to and granting 

variances in compliance with the terms of these covenants.  

  

XIII. ENFORCEMENT OF COVENANTS.  

  

This Declaration shall be deemed to run with the land, and the Declarant or the Owner of any 

Lot may bring an action in any court of competent jurisdiction to enforce this Declaration to 

enjoin its violation or for damages for the breach thereof, or for any other remedy or combination 

of remedies recognized at law or in equity, and shall further be entitled to recover reasonable 

legal fees and costs if the Declarant or Owner prevails in any such action.  

  

XIV. AMENDMENTS OF COVENANTS.  

  

A. For so long as Declarant owns any Lot or any part of the Plat, Declarant may amend these 

Restrictions by an instrument in writing filed and recorded in the records of Black Hawk County, 

Iowa, without the approval of any Owner of any Lot or part of the Plat estate. Provided, 

-279-

Item G.2.r. 



however, that (i) in the event that such instrument materially alters or changes any Owner’s 

and/or occupant’s right to the use and enjoyment of such Owner’s and/or occupant’s Lot or if 

such amendment adversely effects the title to any Lot or part of the Plat, such amendment shall 

be valid only upon approval thereof by all Owners and/or occupants affected thereby, and (ii) in 

the event that such amendment adversely affects the security, title and interest of any 

mortgagee, such amendment shall be valid only upon the approval thereof by all mortgagees 

affected thereby. Each Owner, by acceptance of a deed or other conveyance to a Lot or part of 

the real estate, agrees to be bound by such amendments as are permitted by this section and 

further agrees that, if requested to do so by Declarant, such Owner will consent to the 

amendment of this Declaration or any other instruments related to the real estate: (i) if such 

amendment is necessary to bring any provisions hereof or thereof into compliance or conformity 

with the provisions of any applicable governmental statute, rule or ordinance or any judicial 

determination which shall be in conflict therewith; (ii) if such amendment is necessary to enable 

any reputable title insurance company to issue title insurance coverage with respect to any Lot 

subject to these restrictions; and (iii) if such amendment is necessary to correct a scrivener’s 

error in the drafting of these restrictions.  

  

B. At such time as Declarant no longer owns any Lot or any part of the Plat, these restrictions 

may be amended from time to time with the approval of the Owners. Such approval shall be 

given by the affirmative vote of not less than two-thirds (2/3) of the Owners. The Owner of each 

Lot (or joint Owners of a single Lot in the aggregate) shall be entitled to cast one vote on 

account of each Lot owned.  

  

XV. PERIOD OF COVENANTS.  

  

This Declaration shall continue and remain in full force and effect at all times as to the Plat and 

as to the Owners of any Lot, regardless of how title was acquired, until the date twenty-one (21) 

years after the recording of this Declaration, on which date this Declaration shall automatically 

be extended for two (2) successive periods of five (5) years each, unless on or before the end of 

the base period, or the first extension period, the Owners of not less than fifty percent (50%) of 

the Lots, by written instrument duly recorded, declare a termination of the same.  

  

XVI. ENFORCEMENT AND WAIVER.  

  

A. In the event that any one or more of the foregoing covenants, conditions or restrictions shall 

be declared for any reason by a court of competent jurisdiction to be null and void, such 

judgment or decree shall not in any manner whatsoever affect, modify, change, abrogate, or 

nullify any of the covenants, conditions and restrictions not so expressly held to be void, which 

shall continue unimpaired and in full force and effect.  

  

B. The Plat shall also be subject to any and all rights and privileges of the City, now held or 

hereafter acquired, by dedication or conveyance, or by reason of the platting and recording of 

the Plat, or by this Declaration or by law.  Wherever there is a conflict between this Declaration 

and the zoning ordinance of the City, the more restrictive shall be binding.  

-280-

Item G.2.r. 



  

C. This Declaration shall not be applicable to property dedicated to the City, and the City may 

allow appropriate public use on city-owned property within the Plat.  

 

XVII. PUBLIC IMPROVMENTS REQUIRED IN PLAT.   

  

The Owner, in consideration of approval of this Plat by the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning  

Commission and the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, agrees for itself, its  

successors and assigns, as follows:  

  

A. That the streets shown on the attached Plat will be brought to city grade and that the streets 

will be thirty-one (31) feet, back of curb to back of curb, with approved hard surface pavement in 

accordance with City of Cedar Falls Standard Specifications. Parking shall be allowed on only 

one side of each street as determined by the City Engineer.  

  

B. That concrete sidewalks four (4) inches thick will be installed during or immediately after 

construction of a building on any particular Lot, and the sidewalks constructed shall be across 

the full width of the Lot and on corner Lots and also across the parking and full length of the Lot.  

  

C. That sanitary sewer, together with the necessary manholes and sewer service lines to all 

Lots in the subdivision will be provided.  

  

D. That underground utilities, as required by the City of Cedar Falls Subdivision Ordinance, shall 

be installed.  

  

E. That City water shall be provided and stubbed in to each Lot as required by the Cedar Falls 

Municipal Utilities. 

 

F. That Municipal fire hydrants will be provided as required by the Cedar Falls Public Safety 

Department.  

  

G. That storm sewer will be provided as required by the City Engineer of the City of Cedar Falls.  

  

H. That handicap ramps will be provided as required by law.  

  

I. All buildings erected on any Lot in said subdivision shall be constructed in accordance with the 

building, plumbing and electrical codes of the City of Cedar Falls.  

  

J. The Declarant shall construct and install all required public improvements within the 

subdivision plat, to conform with approved construction plans which meet the specifications of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Such required public improvements shall meet the following 

requirements:  

  

1. Shall be constructed and installed in a good and workmanlike manner;  

-281-

Item G.2.r. 



  

2. Shall be free of defects in workmanship or materials;  

  

3. Shall be free of any conditions that could result in structural or other failure of said 

improvements;  

  

4. Shall be constructed and installed in accordance with the design standards and 

technical standards established for such public improvements by the City and by Cedar 

Falls Utilities;  

  

5. Shall be constructed and installed in strict compliance with the minimum acceptable 

specifications for the construction of public improvements set forth in the Cedar Falls Code 

of Ordinances, including without limitation, Chapter 24, Subdivisions, and as such 

specifications shall be recommended for approval by the City Engineer from time to time, 

and approved by the City Council.    

  

The Developer’s construction plans are now on file in the Office of the City Engineer.  

  

K. That the work and improvements called for herein shall be in accordance with City 

specifications under the supervision of the City Engineer, and shall be completed within 

eighteen (18) months of the date of approval of the final Plat.  Further, the Owner and its 

successors and assigns shall comply with site plan review and approval by the Cedar Falls 

Planning and Zoning Commission and the Cedar Falls City Council.  

  

L. That in the event the improvements called for herein shall not be performed in accordance 

with the City Ordinances and the above Agreement, the City may perform said work, levy the 

costs thereof as assessments, and the undersigned agree that said assessments so levied shall 

be a lien on all of the Lots in this Addition with the same force and effect as though all legal 

provisions relating to the levy of such special assessments have been observed and further 

authorize the City Clerk to certify such assessments to the County Auditor as assessments to 

be paid in installments as provided by law.  

  

  

  

-282-

Item G.2.r. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Deed of Dedication, was made the date first written above by the 

Declarant.  

  

DECLARANT:        

  

CEDAR FALLS GATEWAY PARK, INC.  

  

By: ___________________________     

Atuldesi Patel, Officer     

  

  

STATE OF IOWA                                  )  

 ) ss.  

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK              )  

  

This record was acknowledged before me on this ________ day of ________, 2017, by Atuldesi 

Patel, as Officer of Cedar Falls Gateway Park, Inc.  

  

  

__________________________________  

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

-283-

Item G.2.r. 



 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AND APPROVING THE GATEWAY BUSINESS 
PARK AT CEDAR FALLS PRELIMINARY PLAT, CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  

 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has reviewed the attached 
Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls Preliminary Plat at their regular meeting on 
February 14, 2018, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended 

approval of said preliminary plat, and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council does hereby recommend approval of the 
Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls Preliminary Plat.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that the attached preliminary plat heretofore filed for the 
property to be known as 

 
GATEWAY BUSINESS PARK AT CEDAR FALLS PRELIMINARY PLAT, CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 
 
shall be accepted and approved.  
 

ADOPTED this _______ day of ___________________, 2018. 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
        
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-284-

Item G.2.r. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 

 DATE: March 1, 2018 

SUBJECT:      Sale of Lots 14, 15 and 16, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III, 
City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 3.94 acres more 
or less). 

    
The Community Development Department would like to request that a public hearing be 
scheduled for March 19, 2018 to address the proposed transfer of the above referenced 
City owned real estate to ACOH, L.L.C. The proposed project would consist of an 
approximate 30,000 sf. new manufacturing/office facility to be constructed along the 
west side of Development Drive, just north of Capital Way, in the West Viking Road 
Industrial Park. Additional information pertaining to the land transaction and the 
Agreement for Private Development will be provided to City Council prior to the public 
hearing. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 
       Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 
       Mark Rolinger, Attorney 
       Sean Abbas, ACOH, L.L.C. 
        
 
 
 

-285-

Item G.2.s. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: Shane Graham, Planner II, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 268-5160 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 
 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING (1) TO CONSIDER 
ENTERING INTO A PROPOSED AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ACOH, L.L.C.; AND (2) TO 
CONSIDER CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN CITY-OWNED REAL ESTATE 
LEGALLY DESCRIBED ON EXHIBIT "A" ATTACHED HERETO TO ACOH, 
L.L.C., PURSUANT TO SAID PROPOSED AGREEMENT 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has received a proposal from 

ACOH, L.L.C., an Iowa limited liability company (the “Developer”), to enter into a proposed 
Agreement for Private Development (the "Agreement") between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and 
ACOH, L.L.C.. on terms which include: 
 

(1) Conveyance of certain city-owned real estate legally described on Exhibit "A" attached 
hereto (the "Development Property"), on certain terms and conditions; and  
 
(2) Entering into a Minimum Assessment Agreement whereby the minimum actual taxable 
value of the land and improvements to be constructed on the Development Property would be 
established at an amount not less than $1,657,000.00 for a period through December 31, 2030; 
and  

 
 WHEREAS, as required by law, a hearing is to be held by the City Council of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, to consider entering into the proposed Agreement for Private Development and conveyance 
of the Development Property to the Developer pursuant to the terms of said Agreement.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that a hearing be held on the 19th  day of March, 2018, at 7:00 p.m., in the 
Council Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
to consider entering into a proposed Agreement for Private Development between the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, and ACOH, L.L.C., and to consider conveyance of the Development Property to the 
Developer on certain terms as set forth in the proposed agreement.  A copy of the proposed agreement is 
on file in the Office of the Cedar Falls City Clerk.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish said 
notice of said public hearing. 
 

-286-

Item G.2.s. 



ADOPTED this _____ day of _____________, 2018. 
 

   
  James P. Brown, Mayor 
   
ATTEST:   
   
   
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk   

 
  

-287-

Item G.2.s. 



CERTIFICATE 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA   ) 
     ) SS: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 
 
 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that the above 

and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution No. _______________ duly and 

legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the _____ day of ____________________, 2018. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 2018. 

   

  
Jacqueline Danielsen 
City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

-288-

Item G.2.s. 



EXHIBIT A 
 

DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY 
 
 
 The Development Property is described as consisting of all that certain parcel or parcels of 
land located generally in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, more 
particularly described as follows: 
 

Lots 14, 15 and 16, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III, City of Cedar Falls, 
Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 3.94 acres more or less). 

 
 

-289-

Item G.2.s. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: Shane Graham, Planner II, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 243-2713 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING (1) TO CONSIDER ENTERING INTO A 
PROPOSED AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ACOH, L.L.C., AND (2) TO CONSIDER 
CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN CITY-OWNED REAL ESTATE LEGALLY 
DESCRIBED ON EXHIBIT "A" ATTACHED HERETO TO ACOH, L.L.C., 
PURSUANT TO SAID PROPOSED AGREEMENT 

 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
Notice is hereby given that on the 19th  day of March, 2018, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of 
the City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, a Public Hearing will be held by the City Council of 
said City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on a proposal from ACOH, L.L.C., an Iowa limited liability company 
(the “Developer”), to enter into a proposed Agreement for Private Development between the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, and ACOH, L.L.C., on terms which include: 
 

(1) Conveyance of certain city-owned real estate legally described on Exhibit "A" attached 
hereto (the "Development Property"), to Developer, on certain terms and conditions; and  
 
(2) Entering into a Minimum Assessment Agreement whereby the minimum actual taxable 
value of the land and improvements to be constructed on the Development Property would be 
established at an amount not less than $1,657,000.00 for a period through December 31, 2030; 
and 
 

A copy of the proposed agreement is on file in the Office of the Cedar Falls City Clerk. 
 
Any interested party may appear at the time and place of hearing and be heard, or may file written 
objections with the City Clerk on or before the date and time of said hearing. 
 

-290-

Item G.2.s. 



This notice is given pursuant to Resolution No. ________________ by the City Council of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa on the _____ day of ____________, 2018. 
 
 

   

  
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

 

-291-

Item G.2.s. 



EXHIBIT A 
 

DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY 
 
 
 The Development Property is described as consisting of all that certain parcel or parcels 
of land located generally in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, 
more particularly described as follows: 
 

Lots 14, 15 and 16, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III, City of Cedar Falls, 
Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 3.94 acres more or less). 

 

-292-

Item G.2.s. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
  

 TO: Mayor and Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: March 1, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Hampton Inn Utility Easement Vacation Request 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Utility Easement Vacation 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Hawkeye Hotels, Om Patel – contract buyer; VJ Engineering 
 

LOCATION: 
 

Northwest Corner of Main Street and W. 1st Street 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The Hampton Inn hotel site plan located at the northwest corner of Main Street and W. 1st Street 
includes the vacation of a 15-foot wide utility easement running through the middle of the 
property.  
 
BACKGROUND 
Hawkeye Hotels is proposing the construction of a new Hampton Inn hotel on the site of the 
existing Cedar Falls Chamber building at 10 Main Street. The site plan and easement vacation 
for this project was reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission on February 28, 2018 
and recommended for approval by the City Council.  
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities personnel has no concerns with the proposed 
easement vacation. All CFU services are located along W. 1st Street. Mediacom is the only utility 
occupying this easement and they have plans to relocate their lines in conjunction with the 
construction of the proposed hotel.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
2/14/18 and 
2/28/18 

Vice Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Sturch provided background 
information. He explained the need to vacate the existing utility easement for 
the construction of the new hotel.  

There were no comments on this item. The Commission approved the 
easement vacation request.  

-293-

Item G.2.t. 



 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Department of Community Development recommends that on March 5, 2018, the City 
Council schedule a Public Hearing for said utility easement vacation on March 19, 2018. 

 

-294-

Item G.2.t. 



-295-

Item G.2.t. 



 



 
 
 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED VACATION OF UTILITY EASEMENTS 
ON LOT 2 AND LOT 4 IN AUDITOR’S MILL COMPANY PLAT, CEDAR FALLS, BLACK 
HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Planning and Zoning Commission has 
recommended to the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to vacate the following utility easement. 
Said property being situated in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa, and legally 
described as: 
 
A FIFTEEN (15) FOOT WIDE EASEMENT OF WHICH THE CENTERLINE IS DESCRIBED 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT NO. 4; THENCE S26° 17’W A 
DISTANCE OF 70.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE S81° 12’E A 
DISTANCE OF 23.50 FEET; THENCE S65° 02’E A DISTANCE OF 150.00 FEET TO THE 
EASTERLY BORDER OF SAID PARCEL 
 

A hearing will be held in the Council Chambers of the City Hall in the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 p.m. on the 19th day of March, 2018, on the proposal to vacate said utility 
easement, at which hearing all interested parties for and against such utility easement vacation 
may be heard, and written objections thereto may be filed on or before the time set for the 
hearing. 
 
 

_________________________________ 
                 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-297-

Item G.2.t. 



 



 
RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 

 
RESOLUTION FIXING DATE OF HEARING ON PROPOSED VACATION OF UTILITY 
EASEMENTS ON LOT 2 AND LOT 4 IN AUDITOR’S MILL COMPANY PLAT, CEDAR 

FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 
 
 

 WHEREAS, a request was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 
Commission to vacate utility easements within Lot 2 and Lot 4 in Auditor’s Mill Company Plat 
in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa and 
 
 WHEREAS, said Commission has recommended approval of said request, and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is desired to submit the same for consideration to the City Council to have 
a public hearing on the same as provided by law; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that there shall be a public hearing on a proposal to vacate the 
15-foot utility easements over, under and upon the property described as: 
 
A FIFTEEN (15) FOOT WIDE EASEMENT OF WHICH THE CENTERLINE IS DESCRIBED 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT NO. 4; THENCE S26° 17’W A 
DISTANCE OF 70.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE S81° 12’E A 
DISTANCE OF 23.50 FEET; THENCE S65° 02’E A DISTANCE OF 150.00 FEET TO THE 
EASTERLY BORDER OF SAID PARCEL 
 
And that said public hearing shall be held on the 19th day of March, 2018, at 7:00 o’clock P.M., 
in the Council Chambers in the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. The City Clerk is 
hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of said hearing the Waterloo-Cedar Falls 
Courier, said notice to be published at least seven (7) days prior to the hearing date. 
 
 
 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this   day of    , 2018. 
 
 

  _________________________ 
                                                                                           James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-299-

Item G.2.t. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
  

 TO: Mayor and Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: March 1, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Easement Vacation and Dedication Request 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Easement Vacation and Dedication 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Fareway Grocery Store 
 

LOCATION: 
 

Lots 32 and 33 Pinnacle Prairie Business Center North 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
This property is located on Lots 32 and part of 33 of the Pinnacle Prairie Business Center North 
development, which is at the southeast corner of the intersection of S. Main Street and Greenhill 
Road. This item includes the vacation of a utility easement between Lots 32 and 33. The 
proposal also includes the dedication of an 8-foot wide utility easement in Lot 33.  
 
BACKGROUND 
Fareway Grocery stores submitted a site plan for the development of Lots 32 and 33 in Pinnacle 
Prairie Business Center North. Fareway will occupy all of Lot 32 and the west half of Lot 33. The 
existing utility easements along the interior lot lines need to be vacated and new utility 
easements will be dedicated on the new lot line. The site plan and easements for the Fareway 
store was reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission on January 10, 2018 and 
recommended for approval by the City Council. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities personnel have no concerns with the proposed 
easement vacation. All CFU services are located in the Bluebell Street right of way. There are 
no utilities (CFU, Mediacom, Century Link, INS) that occupy the easements to be vacated.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
1/10/18 

Vice Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Sturch provided background 
information. He explained the need to vacate the existing utility easement for 
the construction of the new grocery store and the dedication of a new utility 

-301-

Item G.2.u. 



easement on the relocated lot line. This item was discussed at the previous 
Planning and Zoning meeting on December 27, 2017. 

There were no comments on the proposed utility easement and vacation 
request. The Commission approved the easement vacation and dedication 
request.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Department of Community Development recommends that on March 5, 2018, the City 
Council schedule a Public Hearing for said utility easement vacation on March 19, 2018. 

 

-302-

Item G.2.u. 



 
 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED VACATION OF UTILITY 
EASEMENTS ON LOTS 32 AND 33 PINNACLE PRAIRIE BUSINESS CENTER 

NORTH, CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 
 

To Whom It May Concern: 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Planning and Zoning Commission has 
recommended to the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to vacate the following utility easements. 
Said property being situated in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa, and legally 
described as: 
 
VACATE A 10-FOOT WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT IN LOTS 32 AND 33 PINNACLE 
PRAIRIE BUSINESS CENTER NORTH RECORDED IN BOOK 27 PAGE 207, BLACK 
HAWK COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA, WHOSE 
CENTERLINE IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
THE EAST 5 FEET, EXCEPT THE NORTH 50 FEET AND THE SOUTH 10 FEET OF LOT 
32 AND THE WEST 5 FEET, EXCEPT THE NORTH 50 FEET AND THE SOUTH 10 FEET 
OF LOT 33, PINNACLE PRAIRIE BUSINESS CENTER NORTH 
 

A hearing will be held in the Council Chambers of the City Hall in the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 p.m. on the 19th day of March, 2018, on the proposal to vacate said utility 
easement, at which hearing all interested parties for and against such utility easement vacation 
may be heard, and written objections thereto may be filed on or before the time set for the 
hearing. 
 
 

_________________________________ 
                 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-303-

Item G.2.u. 



 
RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 

 
RESOLUTION FIXING DATE OF HEARING ON PROPOSED VACATION OF UTILITY 
EASEMENTS ON LOTS 32 AND 33 PINNACLE PRAIRIE BUSINESS CENTER NORTH, 
CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA AND DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF 

NOTICE OF SAID PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 

 WHEREAS, a request was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 
Commission to vacate utility easements within Lots 32 and 33 Pinnacle Prairie Business Center 
North in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa and 
 
 WHEREAS, said Commission has recommended approval of said request, and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is desired to submit the same for consideration to the City Council to have 
a public hearing on the same as provided by law; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that there shall be a public hearing on a proposal to vacate the 
10-foot utility easements over, under and upon the property described as: 
 
VACATE A 10-FOOT WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT IN LOTS 32 AND 33 PINNACLE 
PRAIRIE BUSINESS CENTER NORTH RECORDED IN BOOK 27 PAGE 207, BLACK 
HAWK COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA, WHOSE 
CENTERLINE IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
THE EAST 5 FEET, EXCEPT THE NORTH 50 FEET AND THE SOUTH 10 FEET OF LOT 
32 AND THE WEST 5 FEET, EXCEPT THE NORTH 50 FEET AND THE SOUTH 10 FEET 
OF LOT 33, PINNACLE PRAIRIE BUSINESS CENTER NORTH 
 
And that said public hearing shall be held on the 19th day of March, 2018, at 7:00 o’clock P.M., 
in the Council Chambers in the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. The City Clerk is 
hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of said hearing the Waterloo-Cedar Falls 
Courier, said notice to be published at least seven (7) days prior to the hearing date. 
 
 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this   day of    , 2018. 
 
 

  _________________________ 
                                                                                           James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-304-

Item G.2.u. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor and Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: March 1, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Dallas Drive Right-of-Way Vacation Request 
  Set Date for Public Hearing 
 

 
A request has been submitted to vacate a portion of the Dallas Drive right of way to John Deery 
Motors at 6823 University Avenue. This property is located at the southeast corner of University 
Avenue and Dallas Drive. The proposed vacated right of way contains approximately 12,850 
square feet or 0.3 acres of land. A permanent utility and access easements will be retained over 
the entire right of way area.  
 
John Deery Motors operates their automobile dealership on both sides of Dallas Drive from 
University Avenue to Idaho Road. Dallas Drive operates as a public street that divides the 
dealership between the sales lot and office building. The dealership is renovating and making 
improvements to their property and building. They desired improvements to Dallas Drive, which 
is not in the City’s 5 year pavement management plan. This will provide the opportunity for the 
petitioner to make improvements to this section of Dallas Drive. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed this Dallas Drive right of way vacation request 
on February 28, 2018 and recommended approval by the City Council.    
 
Therefore, the Department of Community Development requests that a public hearing be 
scheduled on March 19, 2018 and direct the City Clerk to publish the notice for the right of way 
vacation. 

-305-

Item G.2.v. 



(I) ..... 
ca o 
� 
"O 
(I) 
Cl) 
0 a. e 

a.. 

-306-

Item G.2.v. 



 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED VACATION OF A PORTION OF 
DALLAS DRIVE RIGHT-OF-WAY BY THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND THE 

PROPOSED CONVEYANCE TO JOHN G INVESTMENTS, INC. 
 
TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: 
 
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
proposes to vacate the following described right-of-way: 
 
THAT PART OF DALLAS DRIVE RIGHT OF WAY LYING SOUTH OF THE SOUTHERLY 
RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF UNIVERSITY AVENUE AND LYING NORTH OF THE NORTHERLY 
RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF IDAHO ROAD 
 

Subject to restrictions, easements, covenants and ordinances. 
 
A hearing will be held in the Council Chambers of the City Hall in the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, at 7:00 p.m. on the 19th day of March, 2018, on the proposal to vacate and convey said 
right-of-way, at which hearing all interested parties for and against such vacation and 
conveyance of said right-of-way may be heard, and written objections thereto may be filed on or 
before the time set for the hearing. 

 
 

 ___________________________________ 
 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-307-

Item G.2.v. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Prepared by:  David Sturch, Planner III, 220 Clay St., Cedar Falls, IA 50613    (319) 273-8600 
After Recording, Return to: City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay St., Cedar Falls, IA  50613 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ____________________ 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF NOTICE AND SETTING DATE FOR PUBLIC 
HEARING ON THE PROPOSED VACATION OF A PORTION OF DALLAS DRIVE RIGHT-OF-
WAY AND THE PROPOSED CONVEYANCE OF SUCH REAL ESTATE TO THE ADJACENT 

PROPERTY OWNER 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has 
recommended to the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, the vacation of a portion of 
the Dallas Drive road right-of-way from University Avenue to Idaho Road as described below; 
and 
  

WHEREAS, the City Council does hereby propose to consider vacating said Dallas Drive 
right-of-way after public hearing on required notice hereof, and the proposed conveyance of 
such real estate to John G. Investments, Inc. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, that the City Clerk be and is hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of a public 
hearing to be held in the Council Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 
7:00 p.m. on the 19th day of March, 2018, on the proposal to vacate the following described 
right-of-way:  

 
THAT PART OF DALLAS DRIVE RIGHT OF WAY LYING SOUTH OF THE SOUTHERLY 
RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF UNIVERSITY AVENUE AND LYING NORTH OF THE NORTHERLY 
RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF IDAHO ROAD INSERT LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 
And further to convey said real estate to John G. Investments, Inc., subject to restrictions, 
easements, covenants and ordinances. 
 
 
ADOPTED this   day of    , 2018. 
 
 
 ______________________________________ 
 James P. Brown, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:        
 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-308-

Item G.2.v. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: February 28, 2018 

SUBJECT: FY18-19 Annual Action Plan Amendment (CDBG and HOME Funds) 
 Five Year Consolidated Plan Amendment FY2015-2019 (CDBG) 

    Request to Set Date of Public Hearing 
 
 
The FY18-19 Annual Action Plan (AAP) was adopted by Council on April 17, 2017.  It 
outlined the activities that would be conducted in accordance with the Five Year 
Consolidated Plan (July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2019) for the HUD FY17 Community 
Development Block Grant award in the amount of $232,553, a carryover of 
approximately $77,079 from the HUD FY16 CDBG budget, and HOME funds in the 
amount of $48,000.  The activities in the AAP primarily provide benefit to low and 
moderate income citizens (one of the three HUD national program requirements).   
 
As a result of a HUD monitoring visit in July 2017, the City must make changes to both 
the Five Year Consolidated Plan and the Annual Action Plan.  The changes are 
consistent between the two documents, generally including: 

• Removing the Façade Improvement Program since HUD has determined it is not 
eligible activity. 

• Updating staff references. 
• Removing the Public Sidewalk Improvements since HUD has determined it is not 

eligible activity as currently designed.  Staff may consider changes to the 
program in the future, in an effort to support sidewalk improvements that have a 
benefit to low/moderate income areas. 

• Adding a Repair Program specifically supporting “emergency repairs” in areas 
such as roofing, heating, etc. 

• Removing support for Service Agencies starting in FY19-20, due to the level of 
administration required. 

 
The Housing Commission considered the changes at their January 9th and February 
13th meetings.  There were no public comments on the proposed changes.  The 
Commission recommends approval of the changes. 
 

-309-

Item G.2.w. 



In accordance with HUD requirements, the Department of Community Development 
requests a public hearing be scheduled for Monday, March 19, 2017 to take public 
comments on the changes and approve the amended Five Year Consolidated Plan 
(FY2015-2019) and the amended FY18-19 Annual Action Plan (HUD FY17).  A 
resolution adopting the amended plan would be requested on March 19, 2018. 
 
The amended plans are with the City Clerk and available for public review.  They will be 
provided in the packet for the March 19th meeting.   Please contact me with any 
questions or if an advance copy is desired. 
 
Thank you. 
 
 

-310-

Item G.2.w. 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING FOR AN AMENDMENT TO  
THE CEDAR FALLS FY18-19 

 CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL PLAN 
FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

 AND HOME PROGRAM FUNDING AND AMENDMENT TO THE CEDAR FALLS 
FY15-19 CONSOLIDATED PLAN 

 
Notice is hereby given that the City of Cedar Falls is amending the adopted 
Consolidated Annual Plan for the period of FY18-19 and its FY15-19 Consolidated Plan. 
The City of Cedar Falls receives an annual award of Community Development Block 
Grant funds (CDGB) from the U.S. Department of Housing (HUD).  Use of funds are 
required to be in accordance with an Annual Action Plan and a Five Year Consolidated 
Plan.  The City also receives HOME Investment Partnership funds in the approximate 
amount of $48,000, through a consortium with Waterloo.  The Annual Action Plan 
provides for the use of HOME funds too.  
 
A public meeting was conducted on February 8, 2017 prior to the adoption of the Annual 
Action Plan, in accordance with the Final Rule for revised program regulations, 24 CFR, 
Parts 91, et. al. and the Cedar Falls Citizen Participation Plan.  This hearing is being 
scheduled for amendments to the adopted Annual Action Plan.  The purpose of the 
hearing is to obtain the views and comments of individuals and organizations relative to 
the changes being made.  Individuals and organizations will have the opportunity to 
comment. 
 
The time, date and location of the public meeting are as follows: 
 
 PUBLIC MEETING SCHEDULE 
 
Date:         Monday, March 19, 2018 
 
Time:  7:00 P.M.  
 
Location:   Cedar Falls City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
     
The City of Cedar Falls will consider comments on the proposed plan amendments prior 
to adoption. 
 
Information relative to the FY18-19 Consolidated Annual Action Plan and FY15-19 
Consolidated Plan is available during normal business hours of 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M., 
Monday through Friday by contacting the City Clerk at City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar 
Falls, IA. 
 
Any person with a disability requiring special accommodations to attend the public 
meeting should notify the City Clerk.  Every effort will be made to provide reasonable 
accommodations.   

-311-

Item G.2.w. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

__________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Jim Brown and City Council 

FROM:  Craig J. Witry, Building Official  

DATE:  February 20, 2018 

RE:  Proposed Adoption of the 2017 National Electrical Code and Amendments 

   
  
The Department of Community Development would like to request that a public hearing 
be scheduled for March 19, 2018 to consider adopting the 2017 National Electrical 
Code and Amendments. 
 
The proposed 2017 National Electrical Code and Amendments are available for review 
at the City Clerk’s Office or Inspection Services of Community Development. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 
 
CW:dp 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Developmental Services 
       Kevin Rogers, City Attorney  
       Ron Gaines, City Administrator 
 
 

-313-

Item G.2.x. 



  Page 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. __________________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 7-49, NATIONAL ELECTRICAL 
CODE ADOPTION, AND SECTION 7-50, NATIONAL ELECTRICAL 
CODE AMENDMENTS, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE III, 
ELECTRICAL REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER 7, BUILDINGS AND 
BUILDING REGULATIONS, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF 
NEW SECTION 7-49, NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE ADOPTION, 
ADOPTING THE 2017 EDITION OF THE NATIONAL ELECTRICAL 
CODE, AND NEW SECTION 7-50, NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE 
AMENDMENTS, MAKING AMENDMENTS TO THE 2017 EDITION OF 
THE NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1.  Section 7-49, National Electrical Code Adoption, of Division 1, Generally, of 
Article III, Electrical regulations, of Chapter 7, Buildings and Building Regulations, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety, and a new 
Section 7-49, National Electrical Code Adoption, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 
 

Sec. 7-49. - National Electrical Code adoption. 
 
(a) The 2017 Edition of the National Electrical Code, including Article 90, Chapters 1 
through 9, and Annex A, B, C, D and H, inclusive, as published by the National Electrical 
Code Committee, and adopted by the National Fire Protection Association, is hereby 
adopted by reference and is effective as if fully set forth in this article. Where, in any 
specific case, different sections of this article specify different materials, methods of 
construction or requirements, the most restrictive shall govern.  

 
(b) An official copy of the code adopted by this article, including a certificate by the 
city clerk as to its adoption and effective date, is on file in the office of the city clerk, in 
either hardbound or electronic version, available for public inspection. 

 
 Section 2.  Section 7-50, National Electrical Code Amendments, of Division 1, Generally, 
of Article III, Electrical regulations, of Chapter 7, Buildings and Building Regulations, of the Code 
of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety, and a new 
Section 7-50, National Electrical Code Amendments, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

-314-

Item G.2.x. 



  Page 2 

 
 
Sec. 7-50. - National Electrical Code amendments.  
 

The provisions of this section specify certain amendments, by deletion, addition or 
substitution of the 2017 edition of the National Electrical Code. Where this section states that an 
article, subsection, enumeration or exception is deleted, only the specific article, subsection, 
enumeration or exception is deleted. Where this section states that an article or subsection is 
deleted in its entirety, all references listed thereafter associated with this specific article (with 
subsections, enumerations and exceptions) or subsection (with enumerations and exceptions) 
are deleted.  

 
 2017 NEC Chapter 2 Amendments  

 
 (1) Add the following exceptions to section 210.8, paragraph (A), subparagraph (2):   
  
  a.  Exception No. 1 to (2):  Receptacles that are not readily accessible. 
 
  b.  Exception No. 2 to (2):  A single receptacle or a duplex receptacle for two 

appliances located within dedicated space for each appliance that, in normal use, is not 
easily moved from one place to another and that is cord-and plug connected in 
accordance with 400.7(A)(6), (A)(7), or (A)(8). 

 
Receptacles installed under exceptions to 210.8(A)(2) shall not be considered as meeting 

the requirements of 210.52(G). 
 
(2)  Add the following exceptions to section 210.8, paragraph (A), subparagraph (5):   
 
  a.  Exception No. 2 to (5):  Receptacles that are not readily accessible. 
 
  b.  Exception No. 3. to (5):  A single receptacle or a duplex receptacle for two 

appliances located within dedicated space for each appliance that, in normal use, is not 
easily moved from one place to another and that is cord-and plug connected in 
accordance with 400.7(A)(6), (A)(7), or (A)(8). 

 
Receptacles installed under exceptions to 210.8(A)(2) shall not be considered as meeting 

the requirements of 210.52(G). 
 
(3) 210.11(C)(3) Bathroom Branch Circuits, is amended by deleting the italicized 

paragraph entitled "Exception" in its entirety.  
 
(4)  Section 210.12 (D) is deleted in its entirety. 
 
(5)  Delete the exception to section 220.12 and insert in lieu thereof the following exception:  

Exception:  Where the building is designed and constructed to comply with an energy 
code adopted by the local authority, the lighting load shall be permitted to be calculated 
at the values specified in the energy code.   

 
 (6)  230.30 Insulation, is amended by deleting the italicized paragraph entitled "Exception".  
 

-315-

Item G.2.x. 



  Page 3 

 (7)  230.40 The first paragraph shall be amended by adding the following, "The following 
exceptions may be allowed after review by the Authority Having Jurisdiction".  

 
 (8)  230.43 Wiring Methods for 600 Volts, Nominal, or Less, is amended by deleting items 

(1) and (6), and by adding the following as a new unnumbered paragraph at the end of 
the enumerated paragraphs: "Only items (3) Rigid metal conduit and (4) Intermediate 
metal conduit may be concealed inside the building. If meter and service panel are 
directly back to back, it is not considered concealed."  

 
 (9) 230.50(A) Underground Service-Entrance Conductors is deleted in its entirety and the 

following sentence is substituted therefor: "Underground service-entrance conductors 
shall be installed in a raceway not less than two feet underground."  

 
  (10) 250.52(A)(5) Rod and Pipe Electrodes, is deleted in its entirety and the following is 

substituted therefor: "Rod electrodes shall be not less than 2.5 m (8 ft.) in length, not 
less than 15.87 mm (5/8 in.) in diameter, and shall be copper clad or equivalent."  

 
 (11) 250.70 Methods of Grounding and Bonding Conductor Connection to Electrodes, is 

amended by deleting item (1), deleting from item (2) the words, "or plain or malleable 
iron".  

 
(12) 250.118 Types of Equipment grounding Conductors, is amended by deleting items (5), 

(6), and (7). 
 

 2017 NEC Chapter 3 Amendments 
 

(1) 300.13(B) Device Removal, is deleted in its entirety and the following is substituted 
therefor: "(B) Device Removal. In all circuits, the continuity of conductors shall not be 
dependent upon device connections where the removal of such devices would interrupt 
continuity."  

 
(2) 310.15(B)(7) is deleted in its entirety. 
 
 

                                                 2017 NEC Chapter 4 Amendments 
 

(1) Section 406.4 (D)(4) is deleted in its entirety. 
 

2017 NEC Annex H Amendments 
 

(1) 80.9(C) Additions, Alterations or Repairs is amended by adding the following:  
 

(1) It is prohibited by this ordinance to perform any repair to, add to, or revamp any 
residential services less than 60 ampere.  

 
(2) 80.13 Authority, subparagraph (13), is amended by inserting a period after the words 

"ready for inspection," and deleting the words, "and shall conduct the inspection within 
____________/____________/____________ days."  

 
(3) 80.15. Electrical Board, is deleted in its entirety and the following is substituted 

therefor: BOARD OF ELECTRICAL APPEALS  

-316-

Item G.2.x. 



  Page 4 

 
(A) Membership; Appointment of Members; Term of Office.  
 

(1) The board of electrical appeals shall consist of five members: one member of 
the city council, appointed each year, two members from the electrical 
contractors of the city, one journeyman electrician and one public member, 
each appointed for a period of four years. The electrical inspector shall serve 
as secretary to the board but is non-voting. Appointments are made by the 
Mayor with the approval of the city council. Should a vacancy in the board 
occur, it shall be the duty of the secretary of the board to notify the Mayor of 
the vacancy, and the Mayor and city council shall, at a regular meeting, as 
soon as possible thereafter, appoint a new member to the board to fill the 
vacancy for the unexpired term.  

 
(2) Expiration of appointments, except for the city council member, shall be 

staggered so that one member is appointed or reappointed each year. Terms 
of appointment shall expire on December 31. If the Mayor and city council fail 
to appoint at the scheduled time, the expired term member(s) will be held over 
until re-appointment or replacement.  

 
(3) The members of the board of electrical appeals shall serve without 

compensation. 
 
(4) In so far as reasonably practicable, appointees for membership on the board 

shall be residents of the city, or, if that is not reasonably practicable, shall 
have a place of employment in the city. Appointees who are neither residents 
of the city nor who have a place of employment in the city may be eligible for 
appointment to the board upon a finding of the unavailability of qualified 
applicants, as determined by the mayor. Any person who is a member of the 
board on the date of adoption of this ordinance who does not meet the 
qualifications for membership set forth herein shall continue to be eligible to 
serve as a member of the board until both the expiration of his or her current 
term and the member's non-reappointment by the mayor to an additional term.  

 
(B) Meetings; Records.  
 

(1) All meetings of the board of electrical appeals are open to the public and shall 
be held in the council chambers or other location indicated in a public notice 
posted 24 hours prior to any meeting.  

 
(2) Three members of the board shall constitute a quorum for the transacting of 

all business, but any action taken by the board shall require a majority vote of 
all members of the board.  

 
(3) The board shall annually elect one of its members as chairperson of the 

board. 
 
(4) The secretary of the board shall keep a record of the board meetings. 
 

(C) Appeals.  
 

-317-

Item G.2.x. 



  Page 5 

(1) Any person shall have the right to register an appeal with the board of 
electrical appeals for a review of any decision of the electrical inspector, 
provided that such appeal is made in writing within ten days after having been 
notified of such decision by the electrical inspector. Upon receipt of such 
appeal, the board of appeals shall proceed to determine whether the action of 
the electrical inspector complies with this article, and shall make a decision in 
accordance with its findings within ten days of receiving the appeal. No appeal 
shall be considered unless the appeal is filed within a period of ten days. The 
Board of Appeals shall have no authority to waive requirements of this code.  

 
(2) An appeal to the city council of any ruling of the board shall be made by filing 

a written notice of such appeal with the city clerk within ten days from the date 
of the ruling being appealed. The council shall give the appellant and the 
board a minimum of five (5) days written notice by certified mail of the date, 
time and location of hearing of said appeal. All interested persons shall be 
given the opportunity to be heard at such hearing and the city council may 
affirm, modify or overrule the action of the board based upon the evidence 
submitted before the city council.  

 
(4) 80.19(D) Annual Permits is deleted in its entirety. 
 
(5) 80.19(F) Inspection and Approvals, subparagraph(3), is amended by deleting 

the words "or until ____________ days have elapsed from the time of such 
notification".  

 
(6) 80.23 (B) Penalties, subparagraph(3), is deleted in its entirety, and replaced 

with the following: 
 
 80.23 (B)(3) Investigation.  Whenever any work for which a permit is required 

by this Code has been commenced without first obtaining said permit, a 
special investigation shall be made before a permit may be issued for such 
work. 

 
 80.23 (B)(4) Fee.  An investigation fee, in addition to the permit fee, shall be 

collected whether or not a permit is then or subsequently issued.  The 
investigation fee shall be equal to the amount of the permit fee required by this 
Code.  The payment of such investigation fee shall not exempt any person 
from compliance with all other provisions of this Code nor from any penalty 
prescribed by law. 

 
(7) 80.25 (C), Notification, is deleted in its entirety. 
 
(8) 80.27 Inspector's Qualifications, is amended by deleting said section in its 

entirety and substituting the following therefor: 80.27 Inspector's 
Qualifications.  

 
(A) The office of the electrical inspector, within the inspection services 

division of the department of  community development of the city, is 
hereby created, and such inspector is hereby authorized, directed and 
empowered to inspect any and all buildings, tents and other structures, 
public and private, and, as provided in this article, to condemn and order 

-318-

Item G.2.x. 



  Page 6 

removed or remodeled and put into proper and safe condition for the 
prevention of fire and for safety to life and property, all electrical 
equipment installations and connections of electrical current for light, heat 
and power purposes, and to control the disposition and arrangement of 
such equipment so that persons and property shall not be in danger 
therefrom.  

 
(B) The electrical inspector shall be appointed by the director of community 

development, after recommendation of the building official, and shall be 
directly responsible to the building official.  

 
(C) The appointee shall be qualified as an electrical inspector, as determined 

by any State of Iowa requirements, the job classification and the civil 
service commission.  

 
(9) New Section 80.28 Licensing is added as follows: 
 

(A) Licenses required. 
 

(1) Electrical licenses shall be governed by Iowa Code Chapter 103. 
 
(2) All electrical contractors not currently registered with the City of 

Cedar Falls shall pay a registration fee as set by the City Council.  
 
(3) Any electrical license issued by the City, as allowed by State law, 

shall be required to pay a fee as set by City Council annually.  
 

(10)  80.29 Liability for Damages, is amended by adding the word "city," in the 
blank. 

 
(11)  80.35 Effective Date, is deleted in its entirety. 
 

 
 

(Ord. No. 2765, § 1, 5-29-12; Ord. No. 2816, § 1, 6-9-14) 
Cross reference— Airport zoning commission, § 4-26 et seq; Definitions and rules of 
construction generally, § 1-2; Fire prevention codes, § 11-26 et seq.; Licenses and business 
regulations, ch. 16.  
State Law reference— Adoption of technical codes by reference, I.C.A. § 380.10.  
 
 
INTRODUCED: ______________________________________________________________ 

 
PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: ________________________________________________ 

 
PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: ________________________________________________ 

 
PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION: ________________________________________________ 
 
ADOPTED: _________________________________________________________________ 
 

-319-

Item G.2.x. 



  Page 7 

__________________________________ 
      James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

 
 

-320-

Item G.2.x. 



  Page 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. __________________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 7-49, NATIONAL ELECTRICAL 
CODE ADOPTION, AND SECTION 7-50, NATIONAL ELECTRICAL 
CODE AMENDMENTS, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE III, 
ELECTRICAL REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER 7, BUILDINGS AND 
BUILDING REGULATIONS, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF 
NEW SECTION 7-49, NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE ADOPTION, 
ADOPTING THE 2017 EDITION OF THE NATIONAL ELECTRICAL 
CODE, AND NEW SECTION 7-50, NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE 
AMENDMENTS, MAKING AMENDMENTS TO THE 2017 EDITION OF 
THE NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1.  Section 7-49, National Electrical Code Adoption, of Division 1, Generally, of 
Article III, Electrical regulations, of Chapter 7, Buildings and Building Regulations, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety, and a new 
Section 7-49, National Electrical Code Adoption, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 
 

Sec. 7-49. - National Electrical Code adoption. 
 
(a) The 2017 Edition of the National Electrical Code, including Article 90, Chapters 1 
through 9, and Annex A, B, C, D and H, inclusive, as published by the National Electrical 
Code Committee, and adopted by the National Fire Protection Association, is hereby 
adopted by reference and is effective as if fully set forth in this article. Where, in any 
specific case, different sections of this article specify different materials, methods of 
construction or requirements, the most restrictive shall govern.  

 
(b) An official copy of the code adopted by this article, including a certificate by the 
city clerk as to its adoption and effective date, is on file in the office of the city clerk, in 
either hardbound or electronic version, available for public inspection. 

 
 Section 2.  Section 7-50, National Electrical Code Amendments, of Division 1, Generally, 
of Article III, Electrical regulations, of Chapter 7, Buildings and Building Regulations, of the Code 
of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety, and a new 
Section 7-50, National Electrical Code Amendments, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

-321-

Item G.2.x. 



  Page 2 

 
 
Sec. 7-50. - National Electrical Code amendments.  
 

The provisions of this section specify certain amendments, by deletion, addition or 
substitution of the 2017 edition of the National Electrical Code. Where this section states that an 
article, subsection, enumeration or exception is deleted, only the specific article, subsection, 
enumeration or exception is deleted. Where this section states that an article or subsection is 
deleted in its entirety, all references listed thereafter associated with this specific article (with 
subsections, enumerations and exceptions) or subsection (with enumerations and exceptions) 
are deleted.  

 
 2017 NEC Chapter 2 Amendments  

 
(4)  Section 210.12 (D) is deleted in its entirety. 
 
 (9) 230.50(A) Underground Service-Entrance Conductors is deleted in its entirety and the 

following sentence is substituted therefor: "Underground service-entrance conductors 
shall be installed in a raceway not less than two feet underground."  
 

 2017 NEC Chapter 3 Amendments 
 

(1) 300.13(B) Device Removal, is deleted in its entirety and the following is substituted 
therefor: "(B) Device Removal. In all circuits, the continuity of conductors shall not be 
dependent upon device connections where the removal of such devices would interrupt 
continuity."  

 
 

                                                 2017 NEC Chapter 4 Amendments 
 

(1) Section 406.4 (D)(4) is deleted in its entirety. 
 

2017 NEC Annex H Amendments 
 

(1) 80.9(C) Additions, Alterations or Repairs is amended by adding the following:  
 

(1) It is prohibited by this ordinance to perform any repair to, add to, or revamp any 
residential services less than 60 ampere.  

 
(2) 80.13 Authority, subparagraph (13), is amended by inserting a period after the words 

"ready for inspection," and deleting the words, "and shall conduct the inspection within 
____________/____________/____________ days."  

 
(3) 80.15. Electrical Board, is deleted in its entirety and the following is substituted 

therefor: BOARD OF ELECTRICAL APPEALS  
 

(A) Membership; Appointment of Members; Term of Office.  
 

(1) The board of electrical appeals shall consist of five members: one member of 
the city council, appointed each year, two members from the electrical 
contractors of the city, one journeyman electrician and one public member, 

-322-

Item G.2.x. 



  Page 3 

each appointed for a period of four years. The electrical inspector shall serve 
as secretary to the board but is non-voting. Appointments are made by the 
Mayor with the approval of the city council. Should a vacancy in the board 
occur, it shall be the duty of the secretary of the board to notify the Mayor of 
the vacancy, and the Mayor and city council shall, at a regular meeting, as 
soon as possible thereafter, appoint a new member to the board to fill the 
vacancy for the unexpired term.  

 
(2) Expiration of appointments, except for the city council member, shall be 

staggered so that one member is appointed or reappointed each year. Terms 
of appointment shall expire on December 31. If the Mayor and city council fail 
to appoint at the scheduled time, the expired term member(s) will be held over 
until re-appointment or replacement.  

 
(3) The members of the board of electrical appeals shall serve without 

compensation. 
 
(4) In so far as reasonably practicable, appointees for membership on the board 

shall be residents of the city, or, if that is not reasonably practicable, shall 
have a place of employment in the city. Appointees who are neither residents 
of the city nor who have a place of employment in the city may be eligible for 
appointment to the board upon a finding of the unavailability of qualified 
applicants, as determined by the mayor. Any person who is a member of the 
board on the date of adoption of this ordinance who does not meet the 
qualifications for membership set forth herein shall continue to be eligible to 
serve as a member of the board until both the expiration of his or her current 
term and the member's non-reappointment by the mayor to an additional term.  

 
(B) Meetings; Records.  
 

(1) All meetings of the board of electrical appeals are open to the public and shall 
be held in the council chambers or other location indicated in a public notice 
posted 24 hours prior to any meeting.  

 
(2) Three members of the board shall constitute a quorum for the transacting of 

all business, but any action taken by the board shall require a majority vote of 
all members of the board.  

 
(3) The board shall annually elect one of its members as chairperson of the 

board. 
 
(4) The secretary of the board shall keep a record of the board meetings. 
 

(C) Appeals.  
 

(1) Any person shall have the right to register an appeal with the board of 
electrical appeals for a review of any decision of the electrical inspector, 
provided that such appeal is made in writing within ten days after having been 
notified of such decision by the electrical inspector. Upon receipt of such 
appeal, the board of appeals shall proceed to determine whether the action of 
the electrical inspector complies with this article, and shall make a decision in 

-323-

Item G.2.x. 



  Page 4 

accordance with its findings within ten days of receiving the appeal. No appeal 
shall be considered unless the appeal is filed within a period of ten days. The 
Board of Appeals shall have no authority to waive requirements of this code.  

 
(2) An appeal to the city council of any ruling of the board shall be made by filing 

a written notice of such appeal with the city clerk within ten days from the date 
of the ruling being appealed. The council shall give the appellant and the 
board a minimum of five (5) days written notice by certified mail of the date, 
time and location of hearing of said appeal. All interested persons shall be 
given the opportunity to be heard at such hearing and the city council may 
affirm, modify or overrule the action of the board based upon the evidence 
submitted before the city council.  

 
(4) 80.19(D) Annual Permits is deleted in its entirety. 
 
(5) 80.19(F) Inspection and Approvals, subparagraph(3), is amended by deleting 

the words "or until ____________ days have elapsed from the time of such 
notification".  

 
(6) 80.23 (B) Penalties, subparagraph(3), is deleted in its entirety, and replaced 

with the following: 
 
 80.23 (B)(3) Investigation.  Whenever any work for which a permit is required 

by this Code has been commenced without first obtaining said permit, a 
special investigation shall be made before a permit may be issued for such 
work. 

 
 80.23 (B)(4) Fee.  An investigation fee, in addition to the permit fee, shall be 

collected whether or not a permit is then or subsequently issued.  The 
investigation fee shall be equal to the amount of the permit fee required by this 
Code.  The payment of such investigation fee shall not exempt any person 
from compliance with all other provisions of this Code nor from any penalty 
prescribed by law. 

 
(7) 80.25 (C), Notification, is deleted in its entirety. 
 
(8) 80.27 Inspector's Qualifications, is amended by deleting said section in its 

entirety and substituting the following therefor: 80.27 Inspector's 
Qualifications.  

 
(A) The office of the electrical inspector, within the inspection services 

division of the department of  community development of the city, is 
hereby created, and such inspector is hereby authorized, directed and 
empowered to inspect any and all buildings, tents and other structures, 
public and private, and, as provided in this article, to condemn and order 
removed or remodeled and put into proper and safe condition for the 
prevention of fire and for safety to life and property, all electrical 
equipment installations and connections of electrical current for light, heat 
and power purposes, and to control the disposition and arrangement of 
such equipment so that persons and property shall not be in danger 
therefrom.  

-324-

Item G.2.x. 



  Page 5 

 
(B) The electrical inspector shall be appointed by the director of community 

development, after recommendation of the building official, and shall be 
directly responsible to the building official.  

 
(C) The appointee shall be qualified as an electrical inspector, as determined 

by any State of Iowa requirements, the job classification and the civil 
service commission.  

 
(9) New Section 80.28 Licensing is added as follows: 
 

(A) Licenses required. 
 

(1) Electrical licenses shall be governed by Iowa Code Chapter 103. 
 
(2) All electrical contractors not currently registered with the City of 

Cedar Falls shall pay a registration fee as set by the City Council.  
 
(3) Any electrical license issued by the City, as allowed by State law, 

shall be required to pay a fee as set by City Council annually.  
 

(10)  80.29 Liability for Damages, is amended by adding the word "city," in the 
blank. 

 
(11)  80.35 Effective Date, is deleted in its entirety. 
 

 
 

(Ord. No. 2765, § 1, 5-29-12; Ord. No. 2816, § 1, 6-9-14) 
Cross reference— Airport zoning commission, § 4-26 et seq; Definitions and rules of 
construction generally, § 1-2; Fire prevention codes, § 11-26 et seq.; Licenses and business 
regulations, ch. 16.  
State Law reference— Adoption of technical codes by reference, I.C.A. § 380.10.  
 
 
INTRODUCED: ______________________________________________________________ 

 
PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: ________________________________________________ 

 
PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: ________________________________________________ 

 
PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION: ________________________________________________ 
 
ADOPTED: _________________________________________________________________ 
 

__________________________________ 
      James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

-325-

Item G.2.x. 



 



-327-

Item G.3. 



-328-

Item G.3. 



-329-

Item G.3. 



 



 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

  

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: February 26, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Vine Street Parking Restriction – North of Cedar Street 
 
 

Staff received a petition requesting a no 
parking restriction on the Vine Street cul-
de-sac north of Cedar Street. The section of 
Vine Street north of Cedar Street is a 16-
18-foot wide asphalt roadway 
approximately 340-feet long. Currently, 
parking is allowed on both sides of the 
street and within the cul-de-sac. 
 

The pavement in the cul-de-sac is 
approximately 55 feet wide. The standard 
dimension for a cul-de-sac turnaround is 80 
feet wide. The existing cul-de-sac makes it 
difficult for vehicles to maneuver, especially 
when a vehicle is stored in this area. 
Another contributing factor in this request is 
the presence of a fire hydrant and the north end of the cul-de-sac and the potential of a new 
driveway off the east side of the street behind 2212 Center Street. 
 
The City Council discussed this request at their February 5, 2018 committee meeting. The 
committee recommended a no parking restriction around the Vine Street cul-de-sac. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Planning and Community Services office. 

 

-331-

Item G.4. 



 



 
Prepared By: David Sturch, Planner III, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, Phone: (319) 273-8600 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 26-271, PARKING PROHIBITED ON 
SPECIFIC STREETS, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE IV, STOPPING, 
STANDING AND PARKING, OF CHAPTER 26, TRAFFIC AND MOTOR 
VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA, BY ADDING A PROVISION PROHIBITING PARKING ON PORTIONS OF 
VINE STREET, CONTAINED IN SECTION 26-271, PARKING PROHIBITED ON 
SPECIFIC STREETS. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 

 Section 1. Parking prohibited on specific streets, contained in Section 26-271, of Division 1, 
Generally, of Article IV, Stopping, Standing and Parking, of Chapter 26, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of 
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is amended by adding thereto a provision 
prohibiting parking on portions of Vine Street, as follows: 
 

Street Portion Where Parking Prohibited 
 

Vine Street cul-de-sac Around the entire length of the cul-de-sac a distance 
of 240 feet from the north line of the Cedar Street 
right of way. 
 

 
INTRODUCED:           
 
PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:         
 
PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:         
 
PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:         
 
ADOPTED:            

 
 

_____________________________ 
                                                                             James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-333-

Item G.4. 



 


	AGENDA
	A. Call to Order by the Mayor.
	B. Roll Call.
	C. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 19, 2018.
	[180219MINUTES.doc]

	D. Agenda Revisions.
	E. Special Order of Business:
	1. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project.
	[1-PSE Memo.docx]
	[2 - 2018 Sanitary Sewer Lining Specs.pdf]
	a. Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published February 23, 2018)
	b. Written objections filed with the City Clerk.
	c. Oral comments.

	2. Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project.
	3. Public hearing on a proposal to undertake a public improvement project for the Campus Street Bridge Replacement University Branch of Dry Run Creek Project and to authorize acquisition of private property for said project.
	[PH - Campus Street Bridge - DRC.docx]
	a. Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published February 23, 2018)
	b. Written objections filed with the City Clerk.
	c. Oral comments.

	4. Resolution approving a public improvement for the Campus Street Bridge Replacement University Branch of Dry Run Creek Project and authorizing acquisition of private property for said project.
	5. Hearing on a complaint issued to B & B West, 3105 Hudson Road, for a first tobacco violation.
	[1-Order Assessing Penalty, 1st violation.doc]
	[2-Notice of Hearing, 1st Violation.pdf]
	[3-Hearing Complaint, 1st Violation.pdf]
	a. Oral comments.

	6. Approve and authorize execution of an Order Assessing Penalty relative to a First Tobacco Violation regarding B & B West, 3105 Hudson Road.
	7. Hearing on a complaint issued to Great Wall, 2125 West 22nd Street, for a first tobacco violation.
	[1-Order Assessing Penalty, 1st violation.doc]
	[2-Notice of Hearing, 1st Violation.pdf]
	[3-Hearing Complaint, 1st Violation.pdf]
	a. Oral comments.

	8. Approve and authorize execution of an Order Assessing Penalty relative to a First Tobacco Violation regarding Great Wall, 2125 College Street.

	F. Old Business:
	1. Reconsider action taken relative to a Highway Corridor and Greenbelt (HCG) Overlay Zoning District site plan for construction of a convenience store/gas station and detached carwash on Lots 33 & 34 of Pinnacle Prairie Business Center North. (4515 Coneflower Parkway)
	[Kwik Star Reconsideration Memo.docx]


	G. New Business:
	1. Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.)  
	a. Receive and file the resignation of Eashaan Vajpeyi as a member of the Human Rights Commission.
	[Resignation - Vajpeyi.pdf]

	b. Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Evan Renfro to the Library Board of Trustees, term ending 06/30/2022.
	[1-Appointments Council Memo.docx]
	[2-Library - Renfro 2-10-18.pdf]

	c. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of February 19, 2018 relative to the following items:
(1) Library Board of Trustees interview (Evan Renfro). 
(2) On-street parking regulations for trailers.
(3) Butchering/harvesting animals within city limits.
(4) Recreation/Aquatics Programs.
(5) Bills & Payroll.
	[Comm of the Whole 02 19 18.doc]

	d. Approve and adopt action taken at the Committee of the Whole meeting of February 19, 2018 relative to the following items:
(1) On-street parking regulations for trailers.
(2) Butchering/harvesting animals within city limits.
	e. Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of February 26, 2018.
	[Council Work Session 02 26 18.doc]

	f. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of January 2018.
	[Monthly Report - January 2018.pdf]

	g. Approve a request for street closures for the Downtown Show and Shine, May 6, 2018.
	[1-Special Events Memo.doc]
	[2-Street Closures-DT Show & Shine.pdf]

	h. Approve and authorize execution of an Order Accepting Settlement Agreement relative to a First Tobacco Violation regarding Metro Mart, 103 Franklin Street.
	[1-Order Accepting Agreement.doc]
	[2-Acknowledgement-Settlement Agreement.pdf]
	[3-Notice of Hearing, 1st Violation 2-05-18.pdf]
	[4-Hearing Complaint, 1st Violation.pdf]

	i. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:
(1) Pheasant Ridge Golf Course, 3205 West 12th Street, Class B beer & outdoor service - renewal.
(2) Happy's Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue, Class E liquor - renewal.
	[Liquor Beer.doc]


	2. Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 
	a. Resolution deleting the pay for an employee in the position of PT-Community Service Officer I in the Police Operations Division.
	[TERM PSS CSOI.doc]

	b. Resolution deleting the pay for an employee in the position of Public Safety Officer in the Police Operations Division.
	[TERM PSS Public Safety Officer 030518.doc]

	c. Resolution establishing the pay for a new employee hired in the position of PT-Community Service Officer I in the Police Operations Division.
	[new PSS Police CSOI.doc]

	d. Resolution establishing the pay for a new employee hired in the position of PT-Assistant Equipment Mechanic in the Public Works & Parks Division.
	[New MOP Asst Equip Mech.doc]

	e. Resolution establishing the pay for a new employee hired in the position of Traffic Operations Supervisor in the Public Works & Parks Division.
	[new MOP PWP Traffic - Traffic Op Super.doc]

	f. Resolution establishing the pay for an employee assigned to the position of Acting Battalion Chief-POC in the Fire Operations Division.
	[acting fire Batt Chief.doc]

	g. Resolution establishing the pay for an employee reclassified to the position of Public Safety Officer in the Police Operations Division.
	[acting remove Police Lt..doc]

	h. Resolution adjusting the pay for two employees in the position of PT-Community Service Officer I in the Police Operations Division.
	[pay adjust PSS-Police CSOI.doc]

	i. Resolution approving and adopting the Classification and Compensation Study relative to job classifications and pay grade allocations for certain employees of the City of Cedar Falls.
	[1-pay plan council.mem.doc]
	[2-City Cedar Falls Report Final 021918.pdf]
	[3-GOL 022718 - 5 Percent.pdf]
	[4-pay plan resolution.doc]

	j. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Amendment to Agreement for Animal Control Services with the City of Waterloo, Iowa.
	[1-FY19 amendment memo to council.doc]
	[2-Amendment to CF animal control agt 2-14-18.doc]

	k. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a grant agreement with the Black Hawk County Gaming Association relative to construction of pickle ball courts at Orchard Hill Park.
	[1-Pickleball_Agreement_Council.pdf]
	[2-BHCGA Pickleball Agreement.pdf]

	l. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Aspro, Inc. for the 2017 Street Restoration Project.
	[1. 2017 Restoration Final Out.pdf]
	[2. Final Pay Estimate.pdf]
	[3. Maintenance Bond.pdf]

	m. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Blacktop Service Company for the 2017 Seal Coat Project.
	[1. 2017 Seal Coat Final Out.pdf]
	[2. Final Pay Estimate.pdf]
	[3. Lien Waivers.pdf]

	n. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the 2018 Street Construction Project.
	[1. 2018 Street Recon Contract Memo.docx]
	[2. Form of Contract.pdf]
	[3. Bonds.pdf]
	[4. Insurance.pdf]
	[5. Form of Proposal.pdf]

	o. Resolution approving funding and authorizing execution of an Application for Assistance with the Black Hawk Soil and Water Conservation District relative to the University Avenue Bioretention Cells.
	[1. Uni Ave Bio Cell Memo.docx]
	[2. Uni Ave Contract.pdf]

	p. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Form of Contract for Asbestos Removal with Advanced Environmental Testing and Abatement, Inc., in conjunction with a nuisance abatement relative to 216 Iowa Street.
	[Asbestos Abatement Contract 2-26-18.pdf]

	q. Resolution approving the Pinnacle Ridge Minor Plat.
	[CC Staff Report for Pinnacle Ridge Minor Plat.pdf]

	r. Resolution approving the preliminary plat of Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls.
	[Preliminary Plat - Gateway Business Park at CF-ALL.pdf]

	s. Resolution setting March 19, 2018 as the date of public hearing to consider entering into a proposed Agreement for Private Development and to consider conveyance of certain city-owned real estate to ACOH, L.L.C.
	[Set PH - Agrmt for PD - ACOH-ALL.pdf]

	t. Resolution setting March 19, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the proposed vacation of utility easements on Lots 2 & 4 in Auditor’s Mill Company Plat.
	[1-CC staff Report on easement vacation for hampton inn 3-1-18.pdf]
	[2-CC Easement Vacation Notice - Hampton Inn.docx]
	[3-CC Easement Vacation Resolution Setting Public Hearing - Hampton Inn.docx]

	u. Resolution setting March 19, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the proposed vacation and dedication of utility easements on Lots 32 and 33 of Pinnacle Prairie Business Center North.
	[Set PH - Vac & Ded Ease - Pinnacle Prairie-ALL.pdf]

	v. Resolution setting March 19, 2018 as the date of public hearing on a proposed vacation and conveyance of a portion of Dallas Drive right-of-way to John G. Investments, Inc.
	[Set PH - Vac Dallas Dr ROW-ALL.pdf]

	w. Resolution setting March 19, 2018 as the date of public hearing on proposed amendments to the FY18-19 Annual Consolidated Plan and FY15-19 Consolidated Plan for the Community Development Block Grant and Home Programs.
	[1. Council memo setting PH 2-27-18.docx]
	[2. Notice of Public Meeting 2018-amended plan.docx]

	x. Resolution setting March 19, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the proposed adoption by reference of the 2017 Edition of the National Electrical Code and certain amendments thereto.
	[Set PH - Elect Code-ALL.pdf]


	3. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 6, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances relative to butchering and disposal of dead animals, upon its first consideration.
	[Ord-Animals.pdf]

	4. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 26, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances relative to prohibiting parking on the Vine Street cul-de-sac, upon its first consideration.
	[1-City Council Vine Street no parking memo 2-26-18.pdf]
	[2-Vine Street cul-de-sac No Parking Ordinance.docx]


	H. Allow Bills and Payroll.
	I. City Council Referrals.
	J. City Council Updates.
	K. Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City business.)
	L. Adjournment.



